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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

Statements contained in this Report on Form 10af dine not purely historical are forward-lookingtements within the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of theltange Act, including, without limitation, statent&nregarding our expectations, beliefs,
estimates, intentions or strategies. All forwardKimg statements included in this Report on ForaKldre based on information available to
us on the date hereof, and we assume no obligatiopdate any such forward-looking statements. $tmuld not place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements. Actual resultdddiffer materially from those anticipated in seeforward-looking statements as a result
of a number of factors, including, but not limited those set forth below under the headings "Mactufing,” "Customers and Marketing,"
and "Factors That May Affect Future Results" arsehere in this Report on Form 10-K.

Netergy Networks, Inc. and its subsidiaries (cailety, Netergy or the Company) develop and mat&ktcommunication technology f
Internet Protocol (IP) telephony and video appiara. The Company has three product lines:

voice and video semiconductors and related softwersted Internet Private Branch Exchange (iPBX)tems, and Voice-over-IP (VoIP)
service creation software.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, then@any formed two subsidiaries, Netergy Microeleaitrs, Inc. (NME) and Centile, Inc.
(Centile) and reorganized its operations more btedong its three product lines. NME provides \wand video semiconductors and related
communication software to original equipment mantifeers (OEMSs) of telephones, terminal adapterd,aher edge devices and to other
semiconductor companies. NME's technologies ard ttismake IP telephones and to voice-enable calalelmital subscriber line (DSL)
modems, wireless devices, and other broadbanddtmdias. Centile develops and markets hosted iP@disns that allow service providers
to offer private branch exchange (PBX) functionaid small and medium-sized businesses over broabbatworks. The Company is
developing its third product line, a VolP serviceation environment (SCE), at the parent compawst & his product is designed for use by
telecommunication equipment manufacturers and cepioviders.

HISTORY

The Company effected its initial public offering duly 2, 1997 under the name 8x8, Inc. In Augu§i?@e Company changed its name to
Netergy Networks, Inc

The Company began developing its multimedia comoatiun technology in the form of programmable s@métictors and accompanying
software in 1990 and became a leading manufactdisemiconductors for the embedded videoconfergnaird videophone markets. The
primary customer applications for these semicor@satvere communication terminals (such as videopbotelephones or room conferenc
systems) for the integrated services digital nekwtBDN), the public switched telephone network TR}, and IP networks, such as local ¢
networks (LANs), wide area networks (WANS), and lifieernet.

The Company began developing low cost consumeppitienes and marketing these products to consumedes the ViaTV brand name in
1997. The Company exited the consumer videophosiméss in the second quarter of the fiscal yeaeeémdarch 31, 2000.

In June 1998, using technology designed for itsaarer videophone business, the Company entereddbe monitoring market, focusing
security applications for small businesses. Howetbher Company determined that its video monitobnginess was not well aligned with its
strategic focus on the IP telephony market antjay 2000, sold its remaining video monitoring besis to Interlogix, Inc. (Interlogix), a
leading manufacturer of security equipment. Ing@kaontinues to purchase semiconductors from NbiEcértain of its security systems.

The Company entered the market for embedded Vd¢Bheny products in December 1998 with the annomece of its Audacity Internet
Telephony Processor (Audacity-ITP). The Audacitflgrocessor



combines IP telephony protocol support with audimpression/decompression capability and runs nlelsiipnultaneous IP phone calls on a
single integrated circuit. In April 1999, the Comgannounced its Netergy Media Hub, an integragstesn product that is based on the
Audacity-ITP semiconductor and that connects ujpto analog telephone lines to an IP network. Ipt&mber 1999, the Company
announced its Audacity-T2 IP Phone Processor, whiokiides the digital processing required to impetan IP telephone. In November
2000, the Company announced that it was movingpitelephony and videoconferencing semiconductdreanbedded software business into
a new subsidiary, Netergy Microelectronics, IncME). In March 2001, NME announced its Media HulVBHR) reference design based on
the Audacity-T2, which allows OEMs to manufacturgadeway system that connects two analog teleplime®to an IP network. NME's |IP
telephony products target OEM manufacturers o&l&phony equipment, such as voice-enabled cabl®&hdnodems, wireless devices, as
well as IP phones and gateways.

In May 1999, the Company acquired Odisei S.A. (&Jlia developer of IP telephony software base8iaphia Antipolis, France. The
Company leveraged the acquisition of Odisei to tlgevand market a hosted iPBX solution, which uselPMechnology to deliver voice
services over broadband networks. The hosted iRBXisn makes use of certain of NME's IP telephteghnology and products, as well as
IP phones and other devices developed by thirdspaanufacturers. The Company introduced the haB®BX in March 2000. In March
2001, the Company announced the commercial relradgeneral availability of the hosted iPBX solatitn March 2001, the Company also
announced that it was moving its hosted iPBX bissineto a new subsidiary, Centile, Inc. (Centi@®lisei will become a subsidiary of
Centile.

In June 2000, the Company acquired U/Force, Int=d@tte), a developer of IP-based software apptinatiincluding the SCE and a unified
messaging product, based in Montreal, Canada wiétnaulting office in Hull, Canada. In the fourthagter of the fiscal year ended March
2001, the Company discontinued its Canadian operatind closed the offices in Montreal and Hull.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

Traditional telecommunication networks use a firégttrical path that travels through a series ofches across the network. These networks
were designed solely to carry low-fidelity audigrsals with a high level of reliability. Althoughdke networks are indeed reliable for their
initially intended use, these networks are not walted to service the explosive growth of digtaimmunications applications.

Traditional networks transmit data at very low saé@d resolutions, making them poorly suited fdivdeng high-fidelity audio,
entertainment-quality video or other rich multimedbntent. Traditional networks are also expentiuild because each subscriber's
telephone must be individually connected to there¢nffice switch, which is usually several miksay from a typical subscriber's location.
The digital component of the traditional telecomigations infrastructure is also less efficient tmaodern networks because it allots fixed
bandwidth throughout the duration of each call, thbeor not voice is actually being transmittedrtker, it is difficult for telecommunication
service providers to provide new or differentiasedvices that the network was not designed to acuuate.

In contrast to the traditional telecommunicatiomsastructure, data networks -- such as the Intevne corporate LAN -- utilize a "packet-
switched" system in which information between twoonenunicating terminals (for example, a PC downlpgdi page from a web server) is
transmitted in the form of small data packets thatel through a series of switches, routers, arislacross the network. Packet-switched
networks have been built mainly for carrying noal+éme data. The advantages of such networkshaie efficiency, flexibility, and

scalability. Bandwidth is only consumed when needégtworks can be built in a variety of configueais to suit the number of users,
client/server application requirements and desinglability of bandwidth. Furthermore, many teraigcan share the same connection to the
network. The exponential growth of the Interneténent years has proven the scalability of theskerying packet networks. The most
common protocol used for communicating on thes&gtametworks is "Internet Protocol” (IP).

As broadband connectivity has become more availafdeless expensive, it is now possible for serpiowiders to offer VolP services to
businesses and consumers. Providing such senasethé potential to both

2



substantially lower the cost of telephone and emeipt costs to these customers and to increaseehdth of features available to the end-
user. Next generation services like full-motionptway video are now within the bandwidth availatsidroadband customers, whether
business or residential. To enable such new predadake hold, service and equipment supplierd seeiconductor products and software
to connect input and output devices to the netwarkdbto build system functionality.

TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS

The Company has developed a broad range of comationidechnologies, including semiconductors, erdbddsoftware, system design,
telephony call management software, and VolP semtieation software and related development tools.

The Company has leveraged its technologies to dpuik following product lines: semiconductors amtbedded software designed for IP
telephony and videoconferencing applications, dmesdl and marketed by NME; hosted iPBX solutionsetiped and marketed by Centile;
and VolP service creation software.

SEMICONDUCTORS AND EMBEDDED SOFTWARE

The Company's subsidiary, NME, develops and makessmge of technology products, including semicetals, embedded software, sys
software, and reference designs, that allow telesonication equipment OEMs to build IP phones antbIPSTN gateway products and to
add IP telephony functions to DSL, cable, and wiBelmodems. Additionally, NME provides semicondiscemd embedded software for use
in videoconferencing applications. The followingtens describe NME's technology and related prtsdomore fully.

Technology

SEMICONDUCTOR ARCHITECTURE -- NME's semiconductare based on programmable processor architechaesriable
implementation of IP telephony and videoconfereg@pplications in a highly efficient manner. NME&miconductor architectures employ
32-hit reduced instruction set computer (RISC) mpcocessor cores, which execute the embedded appitis software. Some of NME's
semiconductors also employ a 64-bit Single Instomciultiple Data (SIMD) digital signal process@$P) to accelerate the processing of
signal processing intensive operations.

NME's RISC processor cores use a proprietary iostnu set specifically designed for multimedia coonmication applications. The RIS
cores control the overall chip operation and martagenput/output interface through a variety odaplized ports which connect the chip
directly to external host, audio, and network sshsys. The cores are programmable in the C progiagnianguage and allow customers to
add their own features and functionality to theidesoftware provided by NME. The RISC cores ac82ssit instructions and data throug!
bus that interfaces to internal and external staticlom access memory (SRAM). The RISC core irAtigacity-T2 semiconductor also
contains an extended instruction set to executei@p@ed DSP instructions.

NME's DSP core architecture is a SIMD processdrithplements computationally intensive video, audiod graphics processing routine:
well as certain digital communication protocolseTWCP and LVP DSP cores operate at frequencies dp MHz, the VCPex and Audacity-
ITP DSP cores operate up to 80 MHz, the AudaERyDSP core operates up to 150 MHz, and the VP7 @B& operates up to 100 MHz. 1
DSP cores are programmable with a proprietaryusttin set consisting of variable-length 32-bit &ddbit microcode instructions that
provide the flexibility to improve algorithm perfmance, enhance audio and video quality, and maistanpliance with changing digital
audio, video, graphics, and communication protstahdards. The DSP cores access their instrudtioosgh an internal bus that interface
on-chip SRAM and read-only memory (ROM) that isgrogrammed with video and audio processing sulmestiThe combination of RISC
and DSP cores can be reconfigured through a chafryplication software. This flexibility allows féhe implementation of fundamental
processing steps that form the basis of Media Gate®ontrol Protocol (MGCP), Session Initiation el (SIP), and H.323
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standards-based audio telephony systems, as wdIB&§, H.323, and H.324 (collectively, H.32x) stards-based video communication
systems, all in embedded software that runs omthgrated circuit device.

EMBEDDED SOFTWARE -- NME has developed a broad eaofjlembedded application software that runs oseitsiconductor products.
NME's application software allows the use of itmgmnductors in systems that conform with variooerging and established internatio
telephony standards for vocoders and call signadioegocols. By refining its software, NME can enbamjuality, address new standards, and
add significant features and functionality to syséethat contain the semiconductor product. In &ftitertain customers have licensed sc
code to which they add proprietary features antbousnterfaces, and in some cases, port to otmiceaductor architectures.

Call signaling protocol stacks are complex softwan@egrams required to make voice calls over IP patg; including the Internet. Vocoders
format and compress digital audio signals and sasvie interface between the old phone networééshaw VolP networks. Developing and
establishing interoperability for VoIP software végs major engineering resources and significametbpment time, which is why many
OEMs choose to license it instead. NME's prototatlss support the three most commonly deployed otocols, along with seven
vocoders.

Written in ANSI C, NME's VolP software is modulardaportable, making it straightforward to use witustry-standard operating systems.
It can be compiled and run unchanged under NME#s B@SIX micro-kernel, Linux, and Solaris. Usindhattranslation layer it can be
adapted to run on other embedded operating sysgerols,as VxWorks and pSOS.

NME's protocol stacks were designed specificallyeimbedded applications such as consumer electrpnicducts and terminals, rather ti
for personal computers. NME has also designed gaotreal-time POSIX micro-kernel, along with TGR/RTP, and other network
services, that provides process scheduling and eonwation support services for its protocol staaikd vocoders. This micro-kernel is
appropriate for VolP devices where a large, coséigl-time operating system is not practical.

SYSTEM DESIGN -- NME has developed expertise iegnating its semiconductors and software with genipl components to produce
complete IP telephony and multimedia communicasigstems. NME's system technology consists of modullasystems that can be
combined and rearranged to interface to variousarés (such as POTS, ISDN, Ethernet LAN, wirelesg] home networks) and to various
telephony devices, such as the analog phonesama hNME's systems are designed and tested téysadiional and certain international
regulatory requirements such as consumer safebjicgelephone network requirements and electroraigemissions.

Products

AUDACITY INTERNET TELEPHONY PROCESSOR -- The AudiciTP semiconductor is designed to support fourt-fi@ based phone
terminals and gateways operating over broadbamnanks$. The Audacity-ITP translates audio signatsrfranalog telephones into the
compressed data format needed for real-time auvaismission over networks that use packet protpoalkiding corporate LANs, WANS,
and the Internet.

AUDACITY-T2 IP PHONE PROCESSOR -- The Audacify- semiconductor performs the digital processimgfions required to build an
phone, including formatting digital audio data fansmission over packet networks, including Etegrthe Internet, DSL links, digital cable
systems, etc. The chip can also be used in tworpedia hub or gateway applications.

VERACITY VOIP SOFTWARE -- The Veracity software mhact provides complex DSP and protocol functiomgiired in VolP terminal
devices in a documented, portable software packdgeVeracity software can be run on the Audacitycpssors or third-party processors.

VP7 AUDIO COMPRESSION ENGINE -- The VP7 audio comgmion engine (VP7) is a synthesizable Verilog HDte that can be
integrated into custom semiconductor designs. kamgle, the VP7 has been integrated into STMictodaics' STV0397 semiconductor.
The VP7 is based on NME's proprietary DSP architegtwhich allows flexibility via software microcedhat is downloaded to the core
engine.



REFERENCE DESIGN KITS -- NME currently supplies foowing reference design kits for its semicongiugroducts:

- The Media Hub MH2 reference design is a two-IvelP gateway based on the Audacity-T2 processsupports two analog telephone
interfaces, a 10/100 Mbps Ethernet port, and alsito@D display.

- The IP phone reference design includes pladtegad, display, and handset and is based on tHadkty-T2 processor.

NME's reference design kits are intended to sesyaratotype system products. The designs are iatetwallow a customer to levera
NME's system design expertise and acceleratanies tib market with new products. Each referencegddsiprovided with schematics, bills
materials (BOMs), documentation, embedded softwaard,a software development environment that eeablistomer to customize the
software and add new features.

VIDEOCONFERENCING SEMICONDUCTORS -- NME's family gideoconferencing semiconductors includes the UG, VPIC, and
VCPex. These semiconductors are used in H.323,0H&8®& H.324 videoconferencing applications inaigdjroup videoconferencing
systems, personal computer (PC) videophone adddrdis, consumer videophones, and video monitosiatems. These semiconductors are
based on NME's proprietary architecture, which coedon a single chip a custom RISC microprocesshigh performance DSP core,
SRAM, and proprietary software, which together parf the core processing functions required by LFDN, and POTS-based video
communication and other digital video applications.

HOSTED IPBX SOLUTIONS

The Company's subsidiary, Centile, is developindjmarketing a hosted iPBX, a software-driven tetephsolution that allows network
service providers and PBX resellers to offer PBXctipnality as a business communication service bv@adband IP networks. The
following sections describe Centile's technologg products more fully.

Technology

A business today requires an individual phone &mheoffice worker, typically dozens for small anddium sized enterprises (SMEs). Until
recently, there were two ways that businesses ahtlgin this type of phone service:

subscribe to Centrex services from their localgietsne company or buy a PBX system. In a Centresicggrthe telephone company provides
a telephone line from its central office switch &arch "extension” and associates all of the lingés acentral number assigned to the busir
Centrex, however, scales poorly for both regulatorgt architectural reasons. It is expensive orrdimpe basis when compared to enterprise-
owned PBXs, which typically deliver additional fuiomality as well. In addition, Centrex servicesrut offer the ability for easy integration
with computer programs, require long lead timesioves, adds, and changes, and are difficult tcagen

Rather than subscribe to individual telephone lioegach employee (as with Centrex), most companmigchase a PBX system, a telephone
switch that allows dozens or hundreds of employeatare a few incoming and outgoing telephonesjiaowing efficient usage of those
lines. Traditional PBXs use circuit-switched teclugy and must be installed on the enterprise prefnécause every phone is connected to it
by an individual cable. These systems are experfsiwam $20,000 to $200,000 or more, depending emtimber of extensions), difficult to
manage, maintain, and use, and cannot be ea®lyrated with data processing systems.

With the availability of broadband IP connectivitybusinesses, however, a third alternative hasgedehosted iPBX services. In this mo:
the service provider delivers PBX functionality oaa IP connection, which reduces the scaling gmblby allowing many extensions to
share a single connection. This solution also sffeany of the advantages of an enterprise-owned &&Murther enables integration with
enterprise data processing systems and suppaatlafenters, while eliminating the capital and nb@mance investments required for a PBX.

5



TELEPHONY CALL MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE -- Centile's tephony call management software (the iPBX servitwaeoe, hosted
iPBX, or iPBX), uses an IP network for both its whing fabric and media connections, providingdh# routing, setup, and teardown
necessary to establish a connection between twartals on an IP network. It also provides a vari@tynore complex PBX features such as
call transfers, web-based control and voice messgtgeval, and conferencing.

The iPBX software runs on a cluster of cargeade server platforms that are located in a datéec. A cluster typically consists of both ac
and backup servers. Each active server runs sesa@uags or "instances" of the iPBX software sirmétausly. Each instance is dedicated to a
particular phone line for an individual user. Tleever cluster in the data center is linked to aumgtosites with a dedicated broadband IP link
such as a T1 line. On the customer premise, madia ar IP telephones are connected to the IP lmlkaw IP router and Ethernet hubs or
switches. Media hubs connect standard analog tefegzhand fax machines to the IP network.

To address scalability and reliability issues, @entses a modular and distributed architecturgHeriPBX system. In this architecture, a
single instance of the iPBX server software prosidemplete PBX functionality, but it is designedstpport approximately 100 extensions.
Limiting the number of extensions supported linhitgh the processing capacity and memory requiresradithe server platform, allowing
less powerful, less expensive servers to be usettigié iPBX instances can be run on each servdrtha system can be scaled by adding
more servers.

This modular approach has another advantage. Birignthe capacity and therefore the size and msiog requirements of the iPBX
software, an instance of the iPBX can be dedicttedspecific customer. Doing so allows each iretdn be customized for each customer
by linking it to customer-specific computer progsafar call center automation or by selecting unifiueetions for feature phone buttons.

Much of the flexibility of the iPBX is due to these of abstraction layers between the core iPBXrengnd the devices with which it
interfaces and which it controls. To allow it tadrface to a variety of different telephone se&TR gateways, and softswitches, the iPBX
uses hardware drivers that support various indissémydard and proprietary call setup and teardawtopols. Currently, the iPBX supports
session initiation protocol (SIP), media gatewagtoml protocol (MGCP), H.323v2, and a variety obprietary protocols.

To allow easy integration with computer prograntnfputer telephony integration, or CTI), the iPBXsAmsed on the ECTF C.001
specification for PBX functionality and supportsn9dicrosystems' Java Telephony Application Proghararface (JTAPI) version 1.3 for
telephony call control. The ECTF C.001 specificatitefines a consistent call control behavior foXBBmaking it easier to develop compt
programs that can control a PBX, and JTAPI provateidustry standard series of function callslimwacomputer programs to control PB
from more than one manufacturer. Computer progiataesfaced to the PBX might provide a graphicalrusterface to make it easier to
transfer calls or initiate conference calls, oyth@ght connect a company's customer relationstapagement software directly to the phone
system, displaying customer information on a compstreen when that customer calls for support.

Running each instance of the iPBX in its own Jairdudl Machine (Java VM) offers a number of advget First, every instance of the
iPBX is designed to be completely insulated frorargwother instance so a failure in one should nesese a failure in any other. In other
operating environments, system resources suchrasaaication routines and database managers angeintly shared between all of the
programs that run on that machine. If one prograsuses a display driver, for example, all of theeotprograms running on that machine
may be affected. Because each Java VM provides #ikese resources to the program it hosts, timid &f inter-process interference should
not occur. A second advantage is security becaaudei®BX instance is separate from all otherscdtgiguration data and call control logic
are also separate. It is much less likely thattzratiser will inadvertently (or purposely) mis-cigiofe another customer's iPBX.

6



The iPBX solution was designed to address the stimings of traditional Centrex service offeringginumber of ways as described below.

- The use of an IP network allows the iPBX to scelatively easily and economically because subscsican add additional extensions
without adding a new cable for each extension. Aaidal IP phones are plugged into the existing LAN.

- The iPBX uses an IP network instead of a cireuittched one so it can be located in the serviogiger's data center which may be miles
away from the customer enterprise premise and aeddo it by only a single broadband IP link.

- The redundancies built into the system incretsseeliability, particularly when compared to epigse owned PBXs. The Company also
offers a monitoring service, in partnership withdéustomers, via a Network Operations Center (NO@)inimize service outages and
downtime of the iPBX network.

Products

IPBX SERVER SOFTWARE -Introduced in March 2000 and commercially reledsedieneral availability in March 2001, the CeatiPBX
server software runs on a cluster of five Sun Migatems Netra T1s to provide software PBX functibhaver IP networks. The iPBX
software was designed specifically to allow senyoaviders to deliver hosted iPBX services to sraatl medium-sized business customers.
The Centile iPBX will allow service providers topgort up to eighty discrete iPBXs per cluster, edetiicated to an individual customer, and
up to five thousand total extensions.

The Netra cluster running the iPBX server softwiad@cated in the service provider's data centés. donnected to the customer's premise
using any broadband IP connection, though deploysrterdate have generally utilized a T1 connectiar.telephone sets, customers can use
media hubs to adapt standard analog telephon&sgeriice or they can use IP phones. The iPBX sepfeware connects to the PSTN and
the long-distance IP backbone through a gateway.

Service providers control and configure the iPBX/eesoftware via a Web interface, allowing thetsgsadministrator to manage the iPBX
from any location using any workstation with a bsan Centile also offers a Network Operations GefN©C) service (discussed below) to
provide service provisioning and network monitorgggvices. The administrator interface is designgutovide control of phone number
block assignments, dial plans, service provisioniifp assignments, iPBX status, bandwidth managénae network topology. The iPBX
supports external billing, voicemalil, interactiveice response, automatic call distribution, auteratants, directory service, unified messa
modules, and OSS (operation, service, and supiptepration.

MH4 MEDIA HUB -- Media hubs are customer premiseipgent that adapt conventional telephony equipisrth as analog telephones
and fax machines, for IP service. Centile's MH4 imédib product supports four analog lines. Cemtileently uses the Company's MH4
product, along with certain IP phones and medisstdgveloped by third parties, in its hosted iPBXibess communication service
deployments.

Each media hub supports as many simultaneous cimmeas it has analog lines and multiple medisstuam be used in an IP telephony
system to provide as many lines as required. Beciauses a standard touch-tone telephone astsadlidio and user interface, media hub-
based systems are both reliable and cost-effe@smecially when compared to proprietary digitakRBlephones.

MH4 media hubs support the MGCP IP telephony stahddéth Centile extensions for auto-discovery andfiguration. All media hubs
deployed by Centile incorporate FLASH memory fanote upgrade capability so that the Centile iPBXeesoftware can upgrade media
hubs automatically via the network as required.

IPBX USER INTERFACE SOFTWARE -- Centile has annceohthree user interface applications for its ho&&X solution:
Communication Center, Switchboard, and Administraddl of these applications are designed to hasrike graphical capabilities of persc
computers and workstations to make the hosted iP&s¥ to use.



The Centile Communications Center software with @ahouncer is designed for the end users of tiBXiRt provides Caller ID, call
transfers, conference call setup, on-screen diestacontact management, and call logging. It E&ousers set up and control their
voicemail, set forwarding numbers and filters, aatlup personal speed dial numbers.

The Centile Switchboard software (Switchboardhis attendant interface for the iPBX. Switchboamksran a personal computer or
workstation to allow attendants to route incomiajscto an enterprise with a point-and-click intexé. Switchboard provides caller ID for
multiple incoming calls, extension status, twoklgall transfers, corporate voice mailbox managdireerd multi-attendant support. Its
graphical interface minimizes training and improa&gndant productivity.

With the iPBX, customers control their own moveddss and changes using the Centile Administratongiistrator). To add additional
lines, the customer simply connects an additioredianhub to the IP network. The Centile Auto Digergvmechanism automatically
configures the media hub. The customer then usesifistrator to assign extension numbers, assoasge names, and create a voicemail
account for each line. Administrator also allows thustomer to define hunt groups, set user permissdefine phone button functions, and
set voicemail parameters, all with a point-andiclitterface.

NETWORK OPERATIONS CENTER (NOC-- Centile maintains a 24x7 Network Operations €e(WOC) staffed by personnel trained in
the use of monitoring, debugging, and deployindvearfe associated with the hosted iPBX business aamuation service. The NOC
monitors customer deployments, responds to searndeadd/move/change requests, and assists custaitteeny reported service problems.
The NOC personnel training and operating procedareslocumented and packaged in a form which all©grgile to provide service
providers with the capability to create and deplmir own NOC facilities.

SERVICE CREATION SOFTWARE
Technology and Products

SERVICE CREATION ENVIRONMENT -- The Company is déwging a set of software applications that enaéiecommunication
equipment providers to specify, create, and depiyt-generation VolP services. Historically, telecomneation equipment providers offel
their customers fixed menus of services and apics that could be run in conjunction with thestmimmunication network. The providers
offered rigid sets of available applications thareslow to change and were not customizable td theaeeds of different customers.

With the convergence of voice and data networllscéenmunication providers now have the buildingck®oto build rich sets of custom-
tailored voice and data services. Based upon téohp@cquired from UCForce in June 2000, the Coryaas been developing a software
tool that is designed to enable these new sergicdsapplications to be quickly created, custominsaijified, deployed, and delivered while
maintaining the robust service delivery paradigntheflegacy switched network. This tool providesraswith an easy to use graphical user
environment for creating a specification of theidad) flow for a range of telecommunication servagmplications, such as voicemail, unified
messaging, automated call centers, and other malepsing applications. The critical requiremerithis tool are: to de-couple service
creation and delivery from the physical networlset of devices that the service is running onjltmeopen, flexible, and fast service creat
(even by the end-user of the service, in somerniests); and to provide robust service delivery.

The Company's product offering, which bundles tb@ and other related software development apibiog, is called the Service Creation
Environment (SCE). The core software componente@SCE are written in Java. Java provides a nuwiienportant advantages over older
computer languages, such as C and C++. For exaaiplava programs run in a Java VM, which traeslatava code to a specific operating
environment, such as Windows or Sun Solaris. Tihisva the SCE to be easily run on a number of défifé hardware platforms, including
Windows-based machines, Solaris platforms, andxtinachines. The Java VM also provides memory managethat eliminates frequent
sources of problems in other



development environments including pointer aritimahd automatic garbage collection. Moreover, Jamsoves coding ambiguities that are
a common problem with C and C++.

As with the hosted iPBX, the SCE uses JTAPI fosytstem telephony interface design. While JTARI sfandard interface, different system
implementations of the JTAPI protocol can makeitemely difficult to port a JTAPI application tonew platform. The Company's software
takes advantage of its robust implementation ofBTéalls and usage to maximize the SCE's compi#yikiith different computing

platforms.

The Company is currently developing an enhancesioeiof the SCE for executing service logic appi@as in high volume call processing
environments.

UNIFIED MESSAGING -- The Company's unified messagfdM) software is a pre-packaged application,@viee, that was created with
the SCE. The UM software was designed to allowea tesreceive and retrieve messages of differetat ypes from a single telephony acc
point. For example, a user is assigned a telephomber that can be used to leave or retrieve voessages, FAX messages or e-mail (FAX
and e-mail messages are sent through a text-t@ispegine and read back to the user on the ph8mejlarly, a user could access voice
messages from any network-enabled personal computeceive FAX messages in electronic form as &-filae Company's UM software is
not currently deployed in a commercial setting, &ridre UM development efforts are dependent odadepents of the Company's SCE
product.

CUSTOMERS AND MARKETING
SEMICONDUCTORS AND EMBEDDED SOFTWARE

CUSTOMERS -- NME sells its IP telephony semicondtstembedded software, and reference designs Ms@EVoIP products, such as
BATM, CIDCO, D-Link, Ericsson, and WellTech. NME $also licensed portions of its semiconductor tetdgy and embedded VolP
software to Alcatel Microelectronics and STMicragtenics.

NME sells its LVP semiconductors, related software] reference board designs to OEMs of POTS wddemmunication systems for t|
consumer and video monitoring market, such asltgex, Inc., Kyushu Matsushita Electric Co., Li(KME), Leadtek Research, Inc., and
Samsung. NME is selling its VCP and VCPex semicetals, related software, and reference designsapilyrto OEMs of ISDN and LAN
office videoconferencing systems, including MitsibiElectronics, PictureTel Corporation, Sony Hiewics, Inc., VCON
Telecommunications Ltd., and VTEL Corporation.

SALES AND MARKETING -- NME markets its semiconductembedded software, and reference design protluctisgh its own direct
sales force, third-party sales representativesdéstdbutors. NME supports its domestic and in&iomal direct sales efforts from its
headquarters in Santa Clara, California and a Eaopffice in Marlow, United Kingdom. NME's salexlamarketing personnel typically
provide support to its OEM and distributor custosndrough its application engineering team andogkeitraining sessions.

COMPETITION -- NME competes with both manufacturefsligital signal processing semiconductors arfthwere products developed for
the OEM VolP marketplace. NME also competes witmuafacturers of videoconferencing semiconductorsratated firmware. The markets
for NME's products are characterized by intensepsdition, declining average selling prices, andddpchnological change. The principal
competitive factors in the market for IP teleph@myg videoconferencing semiconductors and embedzfetiase include product definition,
product design, system integration, chip size, cige, functionality, time-to-market, adherencéntustry standards, price, and reliability.
NME has a number of competitors in this marketudalg: Agere Systems, Analog Devices, Inc., Audid€oLtd., Broadcom Corporatic
Conexant Systems, Inc., DSP Group, Mitel Semicotmtuiotorola, Inc., Radvision Ltd., Texas Instrum&Telogy Networks, Inc.,
TriMedia Technologies, Inc. (a Philips Electron&sd Sony Corporation joint venture), and WinbonecEbnics.
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HOSTED IPBX SOLUTIONS

CUSTOMERS -During fiscal 2000, the Company announced its iRBKer software product and a limited externalagapent of its hoste
iPBX services through Dialink, a competitive loeathange carrier (CLEC) based in the San Fran@sgoArea. In addition to the Dialink
customer trial, the Company is in laboratory ttégting with several other service providers.

In fiscal 2001, the Company decided that the loiaistand time-tanarket constraints of the CLEC and service providarket, as well as tt
decreasing availability of cash to certain CLECthiem North American market, required that the Comyparovide a hosted business
communication service offering to PBX reselleradtition to the existing service provider offeritig.March 2001, the Company formed
Centile to conduct the operations of the hostedXiBBsiness and announced a reseller agreemenMilltmnia Telecom. Centile is still
actively marketing the product to service providargurope. In April 2001 Centile announced a lgiag agreement with Telecom Partners
and in May 2001 announced a licensing agreemehtTgtel Europe Holding AB.

SALES AND MARKETING -- Centile markets the hostd®BiX software product through a direct sales foheeaddition, Centile has
established a relationship with Exodus Communioatia hosted service provider partner, and intemdstablish relationships with PBX and
other system integrators that can serve as resellbe sales force operates primarily from the Camg{s headquarters in Santa Clara,
California.

COMPETITION -- Centile currently competes with slipps of traditional PBXs, Centrex equipment, areaver generation IP-based PBX or
Centrex solutions that seek to sell such productslecommunication service providers or to thelbaral medium-size enterprise (SME)
marketplace. The main competition includes Avayiac€ Commworks Corporation, Lucent, Mitel, Nofigtworks, Sylantro Systems,
VocalData, Inc., VocalTec Communications, and savether providers of traditional and newer gerieralP-based solutions, such as
Broadsoft, Inc. (which is being acquired by Unigghetworks), IP Centrex, Shoreline Communicati@phere Communications, Tundo
Corporation and Vertical Networks.

As an IP-based solution, the hosted iPBX produntpetes by leveraging the innate efficiencies ddni¢hitectures and combining those
efficiencies with certain required features fronmpetitive legacy products. The principal compeéitfactors in the market for hosted iPBX
solutions include product feature parity, interfdesign, product reliability, time-toarket, adherence to standards, price, functignalitd IF
network delivery/design. The Company believes thatmarket for iPBX solutions is currently in timitial adoption phase and that growth of
the market will be driven primarily by three factor

the ability of iPBX products to meet the advanceakdire requirements of end customers; the loweas af$P-based solutions; and a general
trend toward the replacement of circuit-switchetivoeks with packet-switched ones.

SERVICE CREATION SOFTWARE

CUSTOMERS -- In May 2001, the Company announceditsecustomer license of its SCE to Lucent. TI&ESwill be used in Lucent's
enhanced Service Authoring Environment (eSAE),#haing environment for creating intelligent netkiog applications for both voice a
data networks within Lucent's PacketIN intelligaetwork service control point. The Company hashdistaed a royalty-bearing licensing
agreement with Lucent whereby Lucent will sell 8€€E under Lucent's eSAE branding. Under a maintmalause in the agreement, the
Company may also provide support, training, andgzsional services directly to Lucent's customa&rgucent's option.

SALES AND MARKETING --As a result of the cessation of the Company's @ianaoperations in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20§ales an
marketing efforts related to the SCE and relatedipets, including UM, have been drastically reduddae Company does not currently have
any in-house or third party sales efforts dedicabemharketing its SCE and related products to custs other than Lucent nor does the
Company presently have plans to increase sucht&ff8ales and marketing activities in the foreskeefiture may include demonstrating the
SCE product to other potential OEM customers ifapmities arise and providing sales literaturandastration platforms, and pre-sales
support in pursuing such opportunities.
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COMPETITION --The Company competes with other providers of eobdrservice platforms, applications, and servieation solutions fc
nextgeneration communication networks. The applicatgeserated by the SCE also compete with suppliaraditional telecommunicatic
applications software that seek to sell such prisdiactelecommunication equipment manufacturerssandice providers. The main
competitors for the Company's SCE product linefdcatel, Dynamicsoft, Inc., LongBoard, Inc., Nordéétworks, Pactolus Communications,
Pagoo, Sylantro Systems, Tekelec, Telcordia, T,esid Ubiquity Software. This market is characedliby rapid technological change,
intense competition, and first-mover advantagendiwal competitive factors in the market for then@any's SCE product include product
feature parity, interface design, product relidpjlperformance, time-to-market, adherence to stats] price, functionality, and IP network
delivery/design.

MANUFACTURING

NME outsources the manufacturing of its semiconohscto independent foundries. NME's primary sendc@tor manufacturer is Taiwi
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (TSMC). N&IEo relies on various independent third party panies for packaging and testing
of its semiconductors. NME does not have long-tpurthase agreements with its subcontract manutastor its component suppliers.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses in the fisca gaded March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were $tBi6n, $11.9 million, and $9.9
million, respectively. The development of new produand the enhancement of existing products b tmapany and its subsidiaries are
essential to their success.

The Company's current and future research and aleweint efforts relate primarily to VolP semicondwstand embedded software, hosted
iPBX systems, and service creation and executicmi@ogies. Areas of emphasis will include:

enhanced versions of its Audacity-T2 semiconduatohitecture to provide higher performance, enhaifigeactionality, and further
integration of certain essential system functioms iaterfaces; enhanced versions of its hosted iBBs{ness communication service to
include additional call control features, systernagement capabilities, additional protocol andpietey device support, and new graphical
user interface and web-based applications; andneekdaversions of the SCE to offer additional edéatures and a performance-enhanced
version of the service logic execution environmepgcifically tailored for high volume call switcig environments. Future developments
may also focus on emerging audio and video teleplstandards and protocols, quality and performamtencements to multimedia
compression algorithms, and additional featurepsrtimg all of the Company's products.

LICENSING AND DEVELOPMENT ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has entered into licensing and devedoparrangements with its customers to promotedsegn, development, manufacture,
and sale of the Company's products. In order townage the use of its semiconductors, NME hasdieémportions of its systems technology
and software object code for its semiconductorsrtaally all of its semiconductor customers. Moveg many of NME's OEM customers
have licensed portions of the source code to ftsvace for its semiconductors. NME intends to coné to license its semiconductor,
software, and systems technology to other compamiary of which are current or potential compesit@uch arrangements may enable t
companies to use NME's technology to produce prsdbat compete with the Company's IP telephonyvaaieb products.

NME has also licensed the right to manufactureagendf its videoconferencing and IP telephony semdtictor products, subject to paym
of royalties, to several original equipment mantifeers (OEMs). Of these OEM licensees, only AlcMealroelectronics, ESS Technology,
Inc. (ESS), and STMicroelectronics may sell semilcmtors based on the licensed technology to trartlgs, while other licensees are limi
to sales of such semiconductors as part of multianesimmunication systems or sub-systems. The didigaf ESS to pay royalties to the
Company with regard to the sale of semiconductasgt on the licensed technology expired in Oct2bes.
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In addition, Netergy has licensed source codet$oBCE product to Lucent. Under the agreement, ihiutas licensed the technology for use
in its Enhanced Service Authoring Environment (egA#hich enables carriers and application devepeidesign innovative new services
for converged voice and data networks. Netergy amaginue to license its SCE source code to othepamies. Such arrangements may
enable these companies to use the technology tlupegoroducts that compete with Netergy's SCE aladed products.

The Company expects to continue licensing its teldgy to others, many of whom may be located oetsidthe United States. In addition to
licensing its technology to others, the Companynftame to time will take a license to technologyred by third parties and currently relies
upon certain technology, including hardware andvsafe, licensed from third parties.

EMPLOYEES

As of March 31, 2001, the Company employed 156grexsincluding 8 in manufacturing operations, 8éeisearch and development, 35 in
sales and marketing, and 27 in general and admétist capacities. None of the Company's emplogeesepresented by a labor union or are
subject to a collective bargaining arrangement. Chmpany believes that relations with employeegamal.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company's principal operations are locatedhiaproximately 45,000 square foot facility in $a@iara, California that is leased throt
May 2003. Design, limited manufacturing, reseancth development, marketing, and administrative éivare performed in this facility.

The Company also leases facilities for its saléis®fn Marlow, United Kingdom, and for its reselar@nd development operation in Sophia
Antipolis, France. In addition, the Company hasask for approximately 6,000 square feet of vagffice space in Hull, Canada that it is
actively seeking to sublet. The Company believasits existing facilities are adequate to meetitgent and foreseeable future needs. For
additional information regarding the Company's gédgions under leases see Note 10 to the Consdlifencial Statements contained in
Part Il, Iltem 8.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On April 6, 2001, the Company, along with Sun M&ystems, Inc., Netscape Communications CanadaBaomgsand Inc., and Intraware
Canada Inc., was sued by Milinx Business Services,and Milinx Business Group Inc. (collectiveiilinx™) in the Supreme Court of
British Columbia, Canada (the "Court"). Milinx halleged that the Company failed to perform certaintractual obligations and knowingly
misrepresented the capabilities of its product® [Blwsuit seeks general, special, and aggravatedgiss totaling in excess of Canadian $65
million plus interest, costs, and any other relibich the Court may choose to provide. Managemeligtes that the Company has valid
defenses against the claims alleged by Milinx amends to defend this lawsuit vigorously. Howewkre to the nature of litigation and
because the lawsuit is in the very early, pre-discpstages, the Company cannot determine thelpedsss, if any, that may ultimately be
incurred either in the context of a trial or a nigfed settlement. If the Company does not pramaihny such litigation, its operating results
and financial condition could be adversely impacted

The Company is involved in various other legalmsiand litigation that have arisen in the normalrse of the Company's operations. While
the results of such claims and litigation cannophkelicted with certainty, the Company believes tha final outcome of such matters will
have a significant adverse effect on the Compdmasicial position or results of operations. Howeahould the Company not prevail in any
such litigation, its operating results and finahciandition could be adversely impacted.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of securitgéid during the fourth quarter of the fiscal yearared by this Repor
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RE LATED SECURITY HOLDER MATTERS

The Company effected its initial public offering dualy 2, 1997 under the name 8x8, Inc. From theg ttaough April 3, 2000, the Company's
common stock was traded on the NASDAQ National Mafthe NASDAQ) under the symbol "EGHT." StartingrA 4, 2000 the Company's
common stock has been traded on the NASDAQ undesytmbol "NTRG." The Company has never paid cagld@nds on its common sto
and has no present plans to do so. As of May 41 2B@re were 272 holders of record of the Comsarynmon stock. The following table
sets forth the range of high and low closing pricesach period indicated:

PERIOD HIGH LOW

Fiscal 2001
First Quarter........coccoovveeviveeevcvneeeeees $29.63 $7.67
Second QUAMNer......ccocvuveeeeiiiiiee e $12.94 $6.63
Third Quarter......cccoveveevviiiecciiieeees $9.06 $1.50
Fourth Quarter......ccccoovveevveevieecieeeeee $4.72 $0.78

Fiscal 2000
FirstQuarer......cccooveeevvvvieeccicceeees $6.25 $3.94
Second QUAMNer.....ccocvuveeeeeiiieee e $5.50 $2.75
Third Quarter........coccoeveevvceeciveeeieeee $5.83 $3.94
Fourth Quarter......cccccovevvveevieecieeeeee $34.63 $5.63

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31(1)

2001( 2)(5) 2000(3)(5) 1999(4) 1998 1997
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
Total revenues..........ccccccvveeeveeenne. $18 228 $25,384 $31,682 $49,776 $ 19,146
Net income (I0SS)......c..cccvveevveennne. $(74 ,399)  $(24,848) $(19,224) $ 3,727 $(13,613)
Net income (loss) per share:
BASIC...vvveeveeeeeeeeeeeereeeenan, $ ( 2.99) $ (1.38) $ (1.28) $ 0.31 $ (2.56)
DilULET. cvee v, $ ( 2.99) $ (1.38) $ (1.28) $ 0.25 $ (2.56)
Total assets........ccoveeeveeeviveennnnn, $39 145  $59,983 $28,709 $46,429 $12,727
Convertible subordinated debentures......... $6 238 $5498 $ - $ - $ -

(1) Fiscal 2001 was a 52 week and 2 day fiscal.y@acal year 2000 was a 53-week fiscal year, wisksal 1999, 1998, and 1997 were 52-
week fiscal years.

(2) Net loss and net loss per share include aussitting charge of $33.3 million, an in-processersh and development charge of $4.6
million, and a $1.1 million charge for the cumulatieffect of a change in accounting principle.

(3) Net loss and net loss per share include a®@libn charge for a discount on the issuance oficmn stock and an in-process research anc
development charge of $10.1 million.

(4) Net loss and net loss per share include a®ilibn charge associated with the write off of Y consumer videophone inventories.

(5) Convertible subordinated debentures are predamdt of the related debt discount, which is beimgrtized over the three-year term of the
debentures. The face value of the debentures Ssriillion.
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ITEM 7.MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINA NCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditaord Results of Operations contains forward-looldtagements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 2.the Exchange Act, including, but not limited those specifically identified as such, that
involve risks and uncertainties. The statementsained in this Report on Form 10-K (the Report} i@ not purely historical are forward
looking statements, including, without limitatistatements regarding our expectations, beliefsnatds, intentions or strategies regarding
the future, including statements regarding worldagital and capital expenditure requirements, &fftur raise additional financing, the
acquisition or investment in other businesses andyzts, commitment of resources, and reductiapgrating costs including the possible
sale or cessation of certain business lines anddbeible reduction of personnel and suspensisalafy increases and capital expenditures.
All forward-looking statements included in this Repare based on information available to us ordtite hereof, and we assume no
obligation to update any such forward-looking staats. You should not place undue reliance on tfeeserd-looking statements. Actual
results could differ materially from those antidigdin these forward-looking statements as a res@tnumber of factors, including, but not
limited to, risks faced by us as described in Béport, including those set forth under the seatiotitled "Factors that May Affect Future
Results" in Item 1, and the other documents wewith the Securities and Exchange Commission (S&€)Iding our most recent reports on
Form 8-K.

OVERVIEW

Netergy Networks, Inc. and its subsidiaries (cailedty, We or Netergy) develop and market telecomioation technology for Intern:
Protocol (IP) telephony and video applications. Nege three product lines: voice and video semicotuils and related software, hosted
Internet Private Branch Exchange (iPBX) soluticarg] Voice-over-IP (VolP) service creation software.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, wenfet two subsidiaries, Netergy Microelectronics, (INME) and Centile, Inc. (Centile)
and reorganized our operations more clearly alangloee product lines. NME provides voice and gidemiconductors and related
communication software to original equipment mantifeers (OEMSs) of telephones, terminal adapterd,aher edge devices and to other
semiconductor companies. NME's technologies ard ttsmake IP telephones and to voice-enable calulelmital subscriber line (DSL)
modems, wireless devices, and other broadbanddémiias. Centile develops and markets hosted iP@itisns that allow service providers
to offer private branch exchange (PBX) functionaid small and medium-sized businesses over broatbatworks. We are also developing
a third product line, a VolIP service creation eoniment (SCE), at the parent company level. Thiglygebis designed for use by
telecommunication equipment manufacturers and cepioviders.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth consolidated statetrod operations data for each of the years endactM31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, as we
the percentage of our total revenues representeaddty item. Cost of product revenues is preserstedpgrcentage of product revenues and
cost of license and other revenues is presentadgascentage of license and other revenues. Yaudhead this information in conjunction
with our Consolidated Financial Statements andedlaotes included elsewhere in this Report:

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

200 1 2000 1999
($ IN MILLIONS)
Product revenues............ccceeueee. $12.8 70% $20.8 82% $26.2 83%
License and other revenues............... 5.4 30% 46 18% 55 17%
Total revenues................. 18.2 100% 254 100% 31.7 100%
Cost of product revenues................. 5.2 41% 85 41% 242 92%
Cost of license and other revenues....... 1.8 33% 0.1 3% 0.1 2%
Total cost of revenues. . . 38% 86 34% 243 T7%
Gross profit.......cccceeeees . 62% 168 66% 7.4 23%
Operating expenses:
Research and development............... 18.7 104% 119 47% 9.9 31%
Selling, general and administrative.... 18.1 99% 21.3 84% 17.7 56%
In-process research and development.... 4.6 25% 10.1 40% - %
Restructuring charge................... 33.3 183% - =% - %
Amortization of intangibles.. 11.0 60% 0.6 2% - %
Total operating expenses....... 85.7 471% 439 173% 276 87%
Loss from operations..................... (74.5) (409)% (27.1) (107)% (20.2) (64)%
Other income, net..........cccceeuee. 2.6 14% 28 11% 1.0 3%
Interest expense 8% (0.4) 2% - =%
Loss before provision for income taxes... (73.3) (403)% (24.7) (97)% (19.2) (61)%
Provision for income taxes............... - -% 0.1 1% - =%
Net loss before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle......... (73.3) (403)% (24.8) (98)% (19.2) (61)%
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle......cccocveeeeiiiiinnns (1.2) ®)% - -% - =%
NEet 10SS...coeiiiaiiiiiieeiiee e $(74.4) (409)% $(24.8) (98)% $(19.2) (61)%
Revenues

The following table illustrates net revenues byugriags of similar products (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Videoconferencing semiconductors.........ccoeceeee. L $9,478 $11,323 $10,302
IP telephony semiconductors...........oeeeeeeeeee. 1,878 37 --
Consumer videophone systems......cccccccecvvveeeee. L 105 3,000 12,935
Video monitoring Systems.......ccccccevccveeeeeeee L. 915 6,006 2,952
Media hub systems........ccccoovvveiiniice L 432 451 -
Product revenues........ccccccvveeeee. Ll 12,808 20,817 26,189
Videoconferencing licenses and royalties.......... ... 3,237 4,318 4,248
IP telephony licenses and royalties.................— ... 825 179 --
Nonrecurring engineering fees......cccococeeeeeeee. L - - 1,245
Hosted iPBX licenses.........ccoooevevevvceeenns L 198 70 -
Professional services........ccccooevvevvvcs L 1,160 - -
License and other revenues............... ... 5420 4,567 5,493
Total revenues.......cccveeeeevceeeeees L $18,228 $25,384 $31,682
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Product revenues were $12.8 million in fiscal 20@#lecrease of $8.0 million from the $20.8 millieported in fiscal 2000. The decrease in
product revenues in fiscal 2001 was primarily dudécreases in sales of video monitoring and coaswuideophone systems, resulting from
our exit from these businesses, and a decreaseiage selling prices for our videoconferencingisemductors. These decreases were
partially offset by an increase in IP telephony memductor revenues resulting from the commerabdase of our Audacity-T2 product in
fiscal 2001. Product revenues were $20.8 milliofidoal 2000, a decrease of $5.4 million from t26.2 million reported in fiscal 1999. The
decrease in product revenues in fiscal 2000 condparéiscal 1999 was primarily due to a significdetrease in unit shipments of our
consumer videophone systems and average selliogspfhSPs) realized on those shipments. This deengas partially offset by increases
unit shipments of our videoconferencing semiconoluahd video monitoring system products.

License and other revenues consist primarily dinetogy licenses, including royalties earned pumst@ such licenses, and nonrecurring
engineering fees for services performed by us toronistomers. License and other revenues for fal also included service revenues
resulting from the integration of U/Force's professl services organization after the acquisitiblé-orce in June 2000. License and other
revenues increased $853,000, from $4.6 millioriscal 2000 to $5.4 million in fiscal 2001, due pairity to U/Force professional service
revenues of $1.2 million, offset by a decreaseyalties earned under a license agreement withTe88nology, Inc. for certain of our video
compression technology, which expired in Octobdi®@icense and other revenues were $4.6 millidisoal 2000, a decrease of $926,000
from the $5.5 million reported in fiscal 1999, dudmarily to a decrease in nonrecurring engineefaes.

Revenues from our ten largest customers in thalfisgars ended March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 ateddor approximately 48%, 35%,
and 40%, respectively, of our total revenues. Oytire fiscal years ended March 31, 2001, 2000,1898, no customer accounted for 10%
more of total revenues.

Sales to customers outside the United States maexs63%, 47%, and 43% of total revenues in swalfiyears ended March 31, 2001, 2000,
and 1999, respectively. Specifically, sales toAki& Pacific region represented 31%, 24%, and 26&uptotal revenues for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respecti@rly.sales to Europe represented 32%, 23%, andof T8tal revenues for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

The cost of product revenues consists of costated with components, semiconductor wafer fatinoa system and semiconductor
assembly and testing performed by third-party vesidand direct and indirect costs associated witkhmasing, scheduling, and quality
assurance. Gross profit from product revenues wasillion, $12.3 million, and $2.0 million for ¢hfiscal years ended March 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively. Product gross mavgm59% for fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000, compace8% in fiscal 1999. The $4.7 million
decrease in gross profit from fiscal 2000 to fis2@01 is due primarily to a significant decreasedfes of our video monitoring and consumer
videophone products due to our exit from thosermssies. Gross profit in fiscal 2001 was also ingzhby lower average selling prices
(ASPs) realized on sales of our videoconferencamisonductors, offset by a significant increas&inelephony semiconductor sales. The
significant increase in product gross profit irc2000 compared to fiscal 1999 was due to areass in higher margin videoconferencing
semiconductor and video monitoring system reveanelsdue to higher gross margins realized on sélesrd/iaTV products. In addition,
fiscal 1999 gross profit and margins were signifibaimpacted by a $5.7 million charge associatét ¥he write-off of ViaTV product
inventory due to our decision to cease productith® ViaTV product line and withdraw from our dikution channels.

Gross profit from license and other revenues, suistly all of which were nonrecurring, was $3.#lion, $4.5 million, and $5.4 million in
fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Assedigiross margins were 67%, 97%, and 98% in fige@1 22000, and 1999. The significant
decrease in gross margin from fiscal 2000 to fi2€4ll was due to reduced margins associated withrofessional service revenues in fiscal
2001. This was a result of lower than expectedkatibn of our professional services resourcesthad
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elimination of the professional services organaatks part of the restructuring of our Canadiarrapens in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001.
Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist priroaplgrsonnel, system prototype design and falioicaimask, prototype wafer, and
equipment costs necessary for us to conduct owldement efforts. Research and development costisiding software development costs,
are expensed as incurred. Research and developpsnises were $18.7 million, $11.9 million, and$8illion for fiscal 2001, 2000, and
1999, respectively. Higher research and developmegntnses during fiscal 2001 as compared to f2@@0 were due primarily to increase:
personnel, resulting from the acquisition of U/Foend increases in hosted iPBX development effbighier consulting expenses associated
with the development of a graphical user interflacehe hosted iPBX product, higher depreciatiod araintenance expenses as a result of
additional lab equipment and computer aided desigts, and increased stock compensation chargagpmbximately $325,000 related to
stock option bonus programs. Higher research amadldement expenses during fiscal 2000 as comparésddal 1999 were due primarily to
increased spending related to hosted iPBX systdiwaie development. Significant expenses were ialsarred in fiscal 2000 related to
development efforts associated with the Audacitypf@essor and media hub products.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expenses sbpsimarily of personnel and related overheadscfistsales, marketing, finance, human
resources, and general management. Such costacllste advertising, sales commissions, trade skaow,other marketing and promotional
expenses. Selling, general, and administrativeressggewere $18.1 million, $21.3 million, and $17.iftiam in fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively. The decrease in selling, general aamiinistrative expenses during the year ended iM2t¢ 2001 as compared to the
comparable period in the prior year is due prinyanla one-time $6.4 million charge related toght of 3.7 million shares of our common
stock to STMicroelectronics that we recorded inftheth quarter of fiscal 2000. The charge reflddtee discount from the fair market value
of our common stock on the date of the relatedeagemt. The decrease also reflects lower headcodnbther costs required to support
ViaTV and video monitoring sales, promotion, angmart activities due to our exit from the consumideophone and video monitoring
businesses. These decreases were substantialty bjfincreased expenses associated with the aclditithe U/Force sales, marketing,
finance, and corporate organizations, costs indueated to our name change, and increased stoogensation charges. The increase in
expenses in fiscal 2000 compared to fiscal 1999wiasarily the result of the $6.4 million chargesdiissed above. This increase was offset
by lower costs associated with the marketing, atsieg, and promotion of the ViaTV product line dogver headcount required to support
these activities as we exited the consumer videopihosiness.

In-Process Research and Development and Amortizatioof Intangibles

We incurred in-process research and developmengebaf $10.1 million in the first quarter of fi$@900 related to the acquisition of Odisei
S.A. (Odisei), and $4.6 million in the second gerdf fiscal 2001 related to the acquisition of ke, Inc. (U/Force). A discussion of these
acquisitions follows below.

U/Force, Inc.

The Company's consolidated financial statementsatethe acquisition of all of the outstanding &to¢ U/Force, Inc. on June 30, 2000 for a
total purchase price of $46.8 million. U/Force, dzag Montreal, Canada, was a developer of IP-bastdiare applications and a provider of
professional services. U/Force was also develogidgva-based service creation environment (SCEjstesigned to allow
telecommunication service providers to develop)aemnd manage telephony applications and servic#dseir customers. The purchase
price was comprised of Netergy common stock withiavalue of approximately $38.0 million comprisef (i) 1,447,523 shares issued at
closing of the acquisition, and (ii) 2,107,780 €sato be issued upon the exchange or redemptitire @xchangeable shares (the
Exchangeable Shares) of Canadian entities
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held by former employee shareholders or indireaters of U/Force stock. The Exchangeable ShareshyelifForce employees are subjec
certain restrictions, including our right to repuase the Exchangeable Shares if an employee dgpiant$o vesting. In addition, we also
agreed to issue one share of preferred stock fibei& Voting Share) that provides holders of Exgjeable Shares with voting rights that are
equivalent to the shares of common stock into wttielir shares are convertible. We also assumedanlisig stock options to purchase
1,023,898 shares of U/Force common stock for wthiehBlackScholes pricing model value of approximately $6iiam was included in th
purchase price. Direct transaction costs relatebdeanerger were approximately $747,000.

The purchase price was allocated to tangible assetsired and liabilities assumed based on the kahle of U/Force's assets and liabilities,
which we believe approximated their fair valueatidition, we engaged an independent appraiserte ae intangible assets, including
amounts allocated to U/Force's in-process researdtdevelopment. The in-process research and gewveltt related to U/Force's initial
products, the SCE and a unified messaging apmitafior which technological feasibility had not hesstablished and the technology had no
alternative future use. The estimated percentagelate for the unified messaging and SCE produets approximately 44% and 34%,
respectively, at June 30, 2000. The fair valuédefibprocess technology was based on a discounted loasimidel, similar to the tradition
"Income Approach," which discounts expected futash flows to present value, net of tax. In devielpgash flow projections, revenues
were forecasted based on relevant factors, inaudatimated aggregate revenue growth rates fdrubkimess as a whole, characteristics o
potential market for the technology, and the apéitad life of the technology. Projected annual neres for the in-process research and
development projects were assumed to ramp uplipiiad decline significantly at the end of thegrecess technology's economic life.
Operating expenses and resulting profit marginevi@ecasted based on the characteristics andloashenerating potential of the acquired
in-process technologies. Risks that were considasquhrt of the analysis included the scope oéfftats necessary to achieve technological
feasibility, rapidly changing customer markets, aighificant competitive threats from numerous canips. We also considered the risk that
if we failed to bring the products to market inragly manner, it could adversely affect sales amdifability of the combined company in the
future. The resulting estimated net cash flows vadseounted at a rate of 25%. This discount rate mesed on the estimated cost of capital
plus an additional discount for the increased ais&ociated with in-process technology. Based omtlependent appraisal, the value of the
acquired U/Force in-process research and develdpmbith was expensed in the second quarter cdlfd@01, approximated $4.6 million.
The excess of the purchase price over the netlitngnd intangible assets acquired and liabilaEgsumed was allocated to goodwill.
Amounts allocated to goodwill, the value of an ased distribution agreement, and workforce weredaimortized on a straight-line basis
over three, three, and two years, respectively.dlloeation of the purchase price was as followglfpusands):

In-process research and development........cc..... ... $ 4,563
Distribution agreement..........ccooevveeevvceeees L. 1,053
WOrKfOICe ..o 1,182
U/Force net tangible assets...........coeeeeceeeee. L 1,801
GoOAWill.coveeiiiiiiiicic 38,236
$46,835

Our consolidated financial statements include #sailts of the operations of U/Force from the datde acquisition, June 30, 2000, the
beginning of our second quarter of fiscal 2001.

Odisei S.A.

In May 1999, we acquired Odisei, a privately heleyelopment stage company based in Sophia Antjgaigce, that was developing
software for managing voice-over IP networks. Toesplidated financial statements reflect the adgoiisof Odisei on May 24, 1999 for
approximately 2,868,000 shares of Netergy's comshock and approximately 121,000 of contingent shambich were subsequently issued
to Odisei employee shareholders in March 2000. &xiprately 30,000 of the shares issued to Odiseil@yeps
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are subject to repurchase as of March 31, 200kietployee departs prior to vesting. The purcpese was approximately $13.6 million,
which includes approximately $295,000 of acquisiielated costs. The purchase price was allocatehgible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on the book value of Odisei's cuassets and liabilities, which we believed apprated their fair value. In addition, we
engaged an independent appraiser to value thegibtarassets, including amounts allocated to Odigeiprocess research and development.
The inprocess research and development related to Gdisigial product for which technological feasibjlihad not been established and
estimated to be approximately 60% complete. Thevilue of the in-process technology was baseddisaunted cash flow model, which
discounted expected future cash flows to presdoeyaet of tax. In developing cash flow projectiprevenues were forecasted based on
relevant factors, including estimated aggregatemae growth rates for the business as a wholeactsistics of the potential market for the
technology, and the anticipated life of the tecbgygl Projected annual revenues for the in-prooessarch and development projects were
assumed to ramp up initially and decline signifibaat the end of the in-process technology's eotndife. Operating expenses and resulting
profit margins were forecasted based on the cheriatits and estimated cash flow generating pakatithe acquired in-process technology.
Associated risks include the inherent difficulteesd uncertainties in completing the project andehy achieving technological feasibility, ¢
risks related to the impact of potential changemarket conditions and technology. The resultirntgreted net cash flows were discounted at
a rate of 27%. This discount rate was based oegtimated cost of capital plus an additional dis¢dor the increased risk associated with in-
process technology. Based on the independent apprdie value of the acquired Odisei in-processarch and development, which was
expensed in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2088,%¢0.1 million. The excess of the purchase mveg the net tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed was afiddatgoodwill. Amounts allocated to goodwill andrikforce are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over five and three years,@espely. The allocation of the purchase price awa$ollows (in thousands):

In-process research and development................ . ... $10,100
WOrKfOICe ..o 200
Net tangible liabilities...........cccoccvceeeee. L (219)
GoOdWill.ccooiiiiiiiiice e 3,481
$13,562

Our consolidated financial statements for the figear ended March 31, 2000 include the resul@ditei from the date of acquisition.

Amortization of intangible assets charged to openatwas $11.0 million and $614,000 during thedisears ended March 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

Restructuring Charges

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, afterigngficant number of employees had resigned, wedatiinued our Canadian operations
acquired in conjunction with the acquisition of dfEe in June 2000. We closed our offices in Montaea Hull, Quebec and laid-off all
remaining employees resulting in the cessation @strof the research and development efforts anaf #tle sales and marketing and
professional services activities associated wighUii-orce business. As a result of the restruajusire recorded a one-time charge of $33.3
million in the quarter ended March 31, 2001. Thetnecturing charges consisted of the followingtfiousands):

Employee separation.........cccooeeeveevvccces L. $ 765
Fixed asset losses and impairments.................. ... 2,084
Intangible asset impairments...........cccceceeeee.. L 30,247
Lease obligation and termination................... ... 220
$33,316

Employee separation costs represent severance ptg/matated to the 96 employees in the MontrealHultioffices who were laid-off.
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The impairment charges for fixed assets of appratéty $2.1 million included write-offs of abandor@uad unusable assets of approximately
$1.4 million, a loss on sale of assets of $567,800,a charge for assets to be disposed of $17.2T®@0oss on sale of assets of $567,000
attributable to the sale of office, computer, attteo equipment of the Montreal office. We receigechmon stock of the purchaser valued at
approximately $412,000 as of the date of sale. Fdire of assets to be disposed was measured basegected salvage value, less costs to
sell. These assets are expected to be sold or ahedddepending on re-sale market conditions, withé next six to twelve months.

The impairment charges for intangible assets repites the write-off of the unamortized intangibésets recorded in connection with the
acquisition of U/Force. The charges of approxinya$80.2 million included: $28.7 million for the gdwill related to the acquisition,
$739,000 for the assembled workforce, and $78%8led to a distribution agreement. The impairmevere directly attributable to the
cessation of operations in Canada. We performezlzaluation of the recoverability of the intangiblesets related to these operations in
accordance with SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for thpairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Livedsits to be Disposed Of." The
lack of estimated future net cash flows relatetheoacquired products necessitated an impairmemgetto write-off the remaining
unamortized goodwill. The distribution agreemerstehsvas written off because we will no longer pdevproducts and services to customers
under that agreement.

In March 2001 we terminated the lease for our prynfiacility in Montreal. Pursuant to the lease taration agreement, we are obligated to
pay rent on the Montreal facility through May 3D02. We recorded charges for this rental obligasisnvell as the related lease termination
costs. We are actively seeking a third party tdesutur vacant facility in Hull, Quebec, and haeearded a charge for estimated lease
termination and related costs.

Cash payments related to the restructuring, whictuded all employee separation costs and cewaisel termination costs, approximated
$920,000 during our fourth fiscal quarter ended dia81, 2001. As of March 31, 2001, the remainirtgrested cash requirements of
approximately $215,000 are related to lease oliigatand anticipated lease termination costs.

The restructuring and discontinuation of our Caaadiperations will reduce our operating expensdsash used in operations beginning in
fiscal 2002. From June 30, 2000 (date of acquisitibU/Force) to March 31, 2001, we incurred opapexpenses, excluding restructuring
charges, of approximately $7.0 million, and nethcastflows of approximately $10 million relateddar Canadian operations. As a result of
the cessation of operations in Canada, we do rpeatxo incur significant related operating expsnsecash outflows in fiscal 2002.

Other Income, Net

In fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999, other income, wag approximately $2.6 million, $2.8 million, antl.$ million, respectively. The decreast
other income, net, in fiscal 2001 compared to fi2€®0 was due primarily to a $1.7 million decreasgains realized from the sale of equity
investments, offset by an increase in interestrimeoesulting from higher average cash equivaledtséuort-term investment balances as
compared to fiscal 2000. The increase in otherrmgmet, in fiscal 2000 as compared to fiscal 188 due primarily to a $1.9 million gain
realized from the sale of an equity investmentsetfby approximately $205,000 of losses realizethersale of certain of investments
classified as available-for-sale.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased from $391,000 in fa@a0 to $1.4 million in fiscal 2001 due primarity &n increase in interest charges and
amortization of both the debt discount and dehtarse costs associated with the convertible subatell debentures issued in December
1999.
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Provision for Income Taxes

The provisions of $17,000 and $120,000 for the yeaded March 31, 2001 and 2000, respectivelyesept certain foreign taxes. There was
no tax provision for the year ended March 31, 1898 to the net losses incurred.

At March 31, 2001, we had net operating loss carwyards for federal and state income tax purposapmroximately $61.4 million and

$38.7 million, respectively, which expire at varsodates beginning in 2005. In addition, at MarchZD1, we had research and development
credit carryforwards for federal and state tax répg purposes of approximately $2.9 million andi$illion, respectively. The federal cre
carryforwards will begin expiring in 2010 while ti@alifornia credit will carryforward indefinitelyjJnder the ownership change limitations of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedntioeint and benefit from the net operating lossdscagdit carryforwards may be

impaired or limited in certain circumstances.

At March 31, 2001, we had gross deferred tax asdetpproximately $47.7 million. We believe thaasked on a number of factors, the weight
of objective available evidence indicates thas iniore likely than not that we will not be able¢alize our deferred tax assets, and thus a full
valuation allowance was recorded at March 31, 20@d March 31, 2000.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

In November 2000, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) Emerging Issues Task Force reackeeral conclusions regarding the
accounting for debt and equity securities with lfiered conversion features, including a consensagiiring the application of the "account
conversion price" method, versus the use of thiedteonversion price, to calculate the beneficmversion feature for such securities. The
Securities and Exchange Commission required corepdairecord a cumulative catch-up adjustmentarfalirth quarter of calendar 2000
related to the application of the "accounting casian price" method to securities issued after May1999. Accordingly, we recorded a $
million non-cash expense during the quarter endecehber 31, 2000 to account for a beneficial caionrfeature associated with the
convertible subordinated debentures and relatechwirissued in December 1999, and we have prebitate a cumulative effect of a cha
in accounting principle.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the FASB issued Statement of FinhAcieounting Standards No. 133 (SFAS 133), "Accaumfor Derivative Instruments al
Hedging Activities." SFAS 133 establishes methddasazounting for derivative financial instrumentslehedging activities related to those
instruments as well as other hedging activities.aMerequired to adopt SFAS 133 in the first quartdiscal 2002 pursuant to the issuanci
SFAS 137, "Accounting for Derivative Instrumentslatiedging Activities -- Deferral of the Effectiveal® of FASB Statement No. 133,"
which deferred the effective date of SFAS 133 bg gear. In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No($B&S 138), "Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedghatjvities -- an amendment of FASB statement N@,18vhich amends certain terms and
conditions of SFAS 133. We do not expect that thapéion of SFAS 133, as amended, will have a maltaripact on our consolidated
financial statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2001, we had cash and cash equitsatetaling $24.1 million, representing a decrez#s®24.5 million from March 31, 2000.
We currently have no borrowing arrangements.

Cash used in operations of $24.6 million in fis2@01 reflected a net loss of $74.4 million, decesda accounts payable and accrued
compensation of $2.2 million and $623,000, an iaseein other current and non-current assets ofr#ilidn, and a noreash adjustment for
gain on sale of investments of $225,000. Cash isefderations was partially offset by cash provitbgch decrease in accounts receivable of
$851,000, an increase in other accrued liabilie$378,000, and non-cash items, including restmireg charges of $32.3 million,
depreciation and amortization of $14.4 million precess research and development of
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$4.6 million, the cumulative effect of a changaatounting principle of $1.1 million, and stock quensation charges of $753,000. Cash
provided by investing activities in fiscal 2001pismarily attributable to net proceeds from theesafl assets and the license of technology
associated with our video monitoring line of $5.#ion, offset by acquisitions of property and eguient of $6.1 million and cash paid for
acquisitions, net, of $558,000. Cash flows fronaficing activities in fiscal 2000 consisted primadf proceeds from sales of the Company's
common stock totaling $2.8 million, offset by ded®payments of $891,000 and repurchases of commok ahd Exchangeable Shares of
$514,000. For the year, cash and cash equivalecteased $24.5 million.

Cash used in operations of $4.1 million in fisca0Q reflected a net loss of $24.8 million, a desecia deferred revenue of $3.4 million, ar
non-cash adjustment for a gain on sale of investsnaet, of $1.7 million. Cash used in operatiors wartially offset by cash provided by a
decrease in accounts receivable of $3.5 milliocte@ease in inventory of $2.5 million, and non-ciésims, including depreciation and
amortization of $2.1 million, iprocess research and development of $10.1 milliod,discount on issuance of common stock of $7libmi
Cash provided by investing activities in fiscal 208 attributable to proceeds from the sale ofrestment of $1.9 million, offset by
acquisitions of property and equipment of $1.7 iomilland cash paid for acquisitions, net, of $140,@ash flows from financing activities in
fiscal 2000 consisted primarily of proceeds from siale of convertible subordinated debentures & Sifllion and sales of the Company's
common stock totaling $29.8 million, offset by dedstuance costs of $617,000. For the year, caskasidequivalents increased $32.8
million.

Cash used in operations of $10.4 million in fist®99 reflected a net loss of $19.2 million, an é&e in accounts receivable of $1.4 million,
and a decrease in accounts payable of $708,000.3asl in operations was partially offset by caslvided by a decrease in inventory of
$8.8 million, an increase in deferred revenue o6$iillion, and non-cash items, including stock pemsation expense of $416,000 and
depreciation and amortization of $967,000. Cash usévesting activities in fiscal 1999 is primgrattributable to capital expenditures of
$1.8 million. Cash flows from financing activitiesfiscal 1999 consisted primarily of net proce&dsn the repayment of stockholders' notes
receivable and sales of the Company's common sipok the exercise of employee stock options. F®y#ar, cash and cash equivalents
decreased by $10.9 million.

As of March 31, 2001, our principal commitments sisted of obligations outstanding under noncandelaperating leases.

We believe that our current cash and cash equitsland cash generated from operations, if any sailsfy our expected working capital ¢
capital expenditure requirements through at ldesnhext 12 months. We may, however, need additiwnaking capital shortly thereafter.
Accordingly, we may raise additional financing airge point during the next twelve months in ordemiet our cash requirements for fiscal
2003. We will be evaluating financing alternatiye®r to that time. We may also seek to explorarmss opportunities, including acquiring
or investing in complementary businesses or pradihett will require additional capital from equdy debt sources. Additionally, the
development and marketing of new products couldirea significant commitment of resources, whiohld in turn require us to obtain
additional financing earlier than otherwise expdci®e may not be able to obtain additional finagas needed on acceptable terms, or ¢
which may require us to reduce our operating castsother expenditures, including reductions ofpenel and suspension of salary
increases and capital expenditures. Alternativalyn addition to such potential measures, we nt@gtéo implement other cost reduction
actions as we may determine are necessary and Imestiinterests, including the possible sale esagon of certain of our business lines.
Any such actions undertaken might limit our oppnities to realize plans for revenue growth and vightnot be able to reduce our costs in
amounts sufficient to achieve break-even or prbfgaperations.
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FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

WE MAY NEED TO RAISE ADDITIONAL CAPITAL TO SUPPORMUR GROWTH, AND FAILURE TO DO SO IN A TIMELY
MANNER MAY CAUSE US TO DELAY OUR PLANS FOR GROWTHRCAUSE US TO IMPLEMENT ADDITIONAL COST
REDUCTION STRATEGIES

As of March 31, 2001, we had approximately $24.llioni in cash and cash equivalents. We believe dbatcurrent cash and cash
equivalents, and cash generated from operatioasyif will satisfy our expected working capital arapital expenditure requirements through
at least the next twelve months. We may, howevedradditional working capital shortly thereaffsccordingly, we may seek additional
financing at some point during the next twelve nhsrih order to meet our cash requirements in fi2088. We may also seek to explore
business opportunities, including acquiring or stigy in complementary businesses or productsihlatequire additional capital from

equity or debt sources. Additionally, the developtrend marketing of new products could requirggaificant commitment of resources,
which could in turn require us to obtain additiofiahncing earlier than otherwise expected. We matybe able to obtain additional financing
as needed on acceptable terms, or at all, whichretayire us to reduce our operating costs and etk@enditures, including reductions of
personnel and suspension of salary increases gitdlaaxpenditures. Alternatively, or in additiamguch potential measures, we may elect to
implement other cost reduction actions as we magraene are necessary and in our best interestisidimg the possible sale or cessation of
certain of our business lines. Any such actionsewatten might limit our opportunities to realizaps for revenue growth and we might not
be able to reduce our costs in amounts sufficeachieve break-even or profitable operations.dfisgsue additional equity or convertible
debt securities to raise funds, the ownership pgage of our existing stockholders would be redubsslv investors may demand rights,
preferences or privileges senior to those of engstiolders of our common stock.

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF LOSSES AND WE ARE UNCERTAIN AS TO OUR FUTURE PROFITABILITY

We recorded an operating loss of $74.4 milliontfar fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 and had amadiated deficit of $128.1 million at
March 31, 2001. In addition, we recorded operalirsges for the fiscal years ended March 31, 20001899. We expect that Netergy, as\

as its subsidiaries individually, will continueitecur operating losses for the foreseeable futamd,such losses may be substantial. We will
need to generate significant revenue growth toeaghprofitability. Given our history of fluctuatirrgvenues and operating losses, we cannot
be certain that we will be able to achieve profitgbon either a quarterly or annual basis.

THE GROWTH OF OUR BUSINESS AND FUTURE PROFITABILITY DEPENDS ON FUTURE IP TELEPHONY REVENUE

We believe that our business and future profitghiliill be largely dependent on widespread markeeptance of our IP telephony products.
Our videoconferencing semiconductor business haprowided, nor is it expected to provide, suffitieevenues to profitably operate our
business. To date, we have not generated signifiesrnue from the sale of our IP telephony proslutiwe are not able to generate
significant revenues selling into the IP telephamgrket, our business and operating results woukkbeusly harmed.

Success of our IP telephony product strategy asstna¢ there will be future demand for IP telephepstems. In order for the IP telephony
market to continue to grow, several things neeactur. Telephone service providers must contindevest in the deployment of high speed
broadband networks to residential and commercistiotners. IP networks must improve quality of sexdiar real-time communications,
managing effects such as packet jitter, packet ke unreliable bandwidth, so that toll-qualityvéee can be provided. IP telephony
equipment must achieve the 99.999% reliability tregrs of the PSTN have come to expect from tephone service. IP telephony service
providers must offer cost and feature benefith&irtcustomers that are sufficient to cause théoowsrs to switch away from traditional
telephony service providers. If any or all of thésetors fail to occur, our business may not grow.
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OUR FUTURE OPERATING RESULTS MAY NOT FOLLOW PAST OR EXPECTED TRENDS DUE TO MANY FACTORS AND
ANY OF THESE COULD CAUSE OUR STOCK PRICE TO FALL

Our historical operating results have fluctuatephgicantly and will likely continue to fluctuata ithe future, and a decline in our operating
results could cause our stock price to fall. Omanual and a quarterly basis, there are a numbfacturs that may affect our operating
results, many of which are outside our control. Sehimclude, but are not limited to:

- changes in market demand;

- the timing of customer orders;

- competitive market conditions;

- lengthy sales cycles and/or regulatory approyeles;
- new product introductions by us or our compesitor
- market acceptance of new or existing products;

- the cost and availability of components;

- the mix of our customer base and sales channels;
- the mix of products sold;

- the management of inventory;

- the level of international sales;

- continued compliance with industry standards; and
- general economic conditions.

Our gross margin is affected by a number of fadtorhiding, product mix, the recognition of liceresed other revenues for which there may
be little or no corresponding cost of revenuesdpob pricing, the allocation between internatiomadl domestic sales, the percentage of direct
sales and sales to resellers, and manufacturing@mg@onent costs. The markets for our productslaaeacterized by falling average selling
prices. We expect that, as a result of competjiressures and other factors, gross profit as @&ptage of revenue for our videoconferencing
semiconductor products will continue to decreaselfe foreseeable future. Average selling priceSR8) realized to date for our IP teleph
semiconductors have been lower than those histiyriaiained for our multimedia communication seamiductor products resulting in lower
gross margins. In the likely event that we encousigmificant price competition in the markets éar products, we could be at a significant
disadvantage compared to our competitors, manyhofmvhave substantially greater resources, andftirermay be better able to withstand
an extended period of downward pricing pressure.

Variations in timing of sales may cause significBunttuations in future operating results. In agdit because a significant portion of our
business may be derived from orders placed by itelimumber of large customers, including OEM cotos, the timing of such orders can
also cause significant fluctuations in our ope@gti@sults. Anticipated orders from customers méydamaterialize. Delivery schedules may
be deferred or canceled for a number of reasonkidimg changes in specific customer requirementsternational economic conditions.
The adverse impact of a shortfall in our revenuag be magnified by our inability to adjust spendiogompensate for such shortfall.
Announcements by our competitors or us of new prtsdand technologies could cause customers to gefehases of our existing products,
which would also have a material adverse effeatarbusiness and operating results.

As a result of these and other factors, it is likblat in some or all future periods our operatiesults will be below the expectations of
securities analysts or investors, which would fk&lsult in a significant reduction in the markeatg of our common stock.
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WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MANAGE OUR INVENTORY LEVELS E FFECTIVELY, WHICH MAY LEAD TO INVENTORY
OBSOLESCENCE THAT WOULD FORCE US TO LOWER OUR PRICE S

Our products have lead times of up to several ngrthd are built to forecasts that are necessarpyecise. Because of our practice of
building our products to necessarily imprecise ¢asts, it is likely that, from time to time, we lilave either excess or insufficient product
inventory. Excess inventory levels would subjectaithe risk of inventory obsolescence and thethisit our selling prices may drop below
our inventory costs, while insufficient levels a/entory may negatively affect relations with cusérs. Any of these factors could have a
material adverse effect on our business, operagisglts, and financial condition.

WE DEPEND ON PURCHASE ORDERS FROM KEY CUSTOMERS ARNBILURE TO RECEIVE SIGNIFICANT PURCHASE
ORDERS IN THE FUTURE WOULD CAUSE A DECLINE IN OURRERATING RESULTS

Historically, a significant portion of our salesshaeen to relatively few customers, although thremusition of these customers has varied.
Revenues from our ten largest customers for tloalfigears ended March 31, 2001, 2000, and 199ated for approximately 48%, 35%,
and 40%, respectively, of total revenues. Substiytill of our product sales have been made, aaedgpected to continue to be made, on a
purchase order basis. None of our customers haseginto a londerm agreement requiring it to purchase our praduntthe future, we wi
need to gain purchase orders for our productsrio additional revenue. Further, substantially &lbor license and other revenues are
nonrecurring.

THE IP TELEPHONY MARKET IS SUBJECT TO RAPID TECHNOL OGICAL CHANGE AND WE DEPEND ON NEW
PRODUCT INTRODUCTION IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN AND GROW OUR BUSINESS

IP telephony is an emerging market that is charaet by rapid changes in customer requiremerggjuient introductions of new and
enhanced products, and continuing and rapid teolgizal advancement. To compete successfully ineimerging market, we must continue
to design, develop, manufacture, and sell new ahdrced semiconductor and IP telephony softwargygts that provide increasingly higl
levels of performance and reliability at lower cddtese new and enhanced products must take adeantédechnological advancements and
changes, and respond to new customer requirenm@uatsuccess in designing, developing, manufactuend selling such products will
depend on a variety of factors, including:

- the identification of market demand for new proid

- product and feature selection;

- timely implementation of product design and depehent;
- product performance;

- cost-effectiveness of products under development;

- effective manufacturing processes; and

- success of promotional efforts.

Additionally, we may also be required to collaberaiith third parties to develop our products ang mat be able to do so on a timely and
cost-effective basis, if at all. We have in thetmagperienced delays in the development of newymrtsdand the enhancement of existing
products, and such delays will likely occur in fbure. If we are unable, due to resource congsaintechnological or other reasons, to
develop and introduce new or enhanced productgimedy manner, if such new or enhanced productsat@chieve sufficient market
acceptance, or if such new product introductiornsekese demand for existing products, our operaéiaglts would decline and our business
would not grow.

THE LONG AND VARIABLE SALES AND DEPLOYMENT CYCLES F OR OUR IP TELEPHONY SOFTWARE PRODUCTS
MAY CAUSE OUR REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS TO VARY

Our IP telephony software products, including oosted iPBX and SCE products, have lengthy saldesyand we may incur substantial
sales and marketing expenses and expend signifitanagement effort
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without making a sale. A customer's decision tacpase our products often involves a significant mitment of its resources and a lengthy
product evaluation and qualification process. Idithoh, the length of our sales cycles will varypdading on the type of customer to whom
we are selling and the product being sold. Evesr aiftaking the decision to purchase our productsgcostomers may deploy our products
slowly. Timing of deployment can vary widely andivdepend on various factors, including:

- the size of the network deployment;

- the complexity of our customers' network enviremts;

- our customers' skill sets;

- the hardware and software configuration and cugtation necessary to deploy our products; and
- our customers' ability to finance their purchageur products.

As aresult, it is difficult for us to predict thygiarter in which our customers may purchase ouwtymis, and our revenue and operating results
may vary significantly from quarter to quarter.

IF OUR PRODUCTS DO NOT INTEROPERATE WITH OUR CUSTERS' NETWORKS, ORDERS FOR OUR PRODUCTS WILL BE
DELAYED OR CANCELED AND SUBSTANTIAL PRODUCT RETURNEOULD OCCUR, WHICH COULD HARM OUR BUSINESS

Many of the potential customers for our hosted iPBX unified messaging products have requesteatingiroducts be designed to
interoperate with their existing networks, eactivbfch may have different specifications and usetiplel standards. Our customers' networks
may contain multiple generations of products fraffecent vendors that have been added over tinteeis networks have grown and evolv
Our products must interoperate with these prodastsell as with future products in order to meetaustomers' requirements. In some ce
we may be required to modify our product designsdiaieve a sale, which may result in a longer saleke, increased research and
development expense, and reduced operating matfjsg. products do not interoperate with existeguipment or software in our custom
networks, installations could be delayed, orderto products could be canceled or our produatédche returned. This could harm our
business, financial condition, and results of opens.

INTENSE COMPETITION IN THE MARKETS IN WHICH WE COMP ETE COULD PREVENT US FROM INCREASING OR
SUSTAINING OUR REVENUE AND PREVENT US FROM ACHIEVIN G PROFITABILITY

We expect our competitors to continue to improveghrformance of their current products and intoeduew products or new technologies.
If our competitors successfully introduce new praddwr enhance their existing products, this coettiice the sales or market acceptance of
our products and services, increase price cometiti make our products obsolete. To be competitiemust continue to invest significant
resources in research and development, sales aketing, and customer support. We may not havecseiftt resources to make these
investments or to make the technological advaneesssary to be competitive, which in turn will caesir business to suffer.

In addition, our focus on developing a range ohtextogy products, including semiconductors andteel@mbedded software, hosted iPBX
solutions, and service creation software, placggrificant strain on our research and developmestdurces. Competitors that focus on one
aspect of technology, such as software or semiatiodk) may have a considerable advantage oven agldition, many of our current and
potential competitors have longer operating hiswmrare substantially larger, and have greatendiaf manufacturing, marketing, technical,
and other resources. For example, certain compeiitdhe market for our semiconductor productsntaén their own semiconductor
foundries and may therefore benefit from certajpacity, cost and technical advantages. Many alse geeater name recognition and a la
installed base of products than us. Competitioouinmarkets may result in significant price redoiesi. As a result of their greater resources,
many current and potential competitors may be batike than us to initiate and withstand signifigarice competition or downturns in the
economy. There can be no assurance that we wébkeeto continue to compete effectively, and ariyifa to do so would harm our business,
operating results, and financial condition.
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IF WE DO NOT DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN SUCCESSFUL PARTNE RSHIPS FOR IP TELEPHONY PRODUCTS, WE MAY
NOT BE ABLE TO SUCCESSFULLY MARKET OUR SOLUTIONS

We are entering into new market areas and our sadseartly dependent on our ability to forge mearketing and engineering partnerships.
IP telephony communication systems are extrematyptex and no single company possesses all theregfjtdchnology components needed
to build a complete end to end solution. We wiEly need to enter into partnerships to augmenteuelopment programs and to assist us in
marketing complete solutions to our targeted custsim/Ve may not be able to develop such partnesshifhe course of our product
development. Even if we do establish the necegsantyierships, we may not be able to adequatelyateg on these partnerships to aid in
success of our business.

INABILITY TO PROTECT OUR PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY OR OUR INFRINGEMENT OF A THIRD PARTY'S
PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY WOULD DISRUPT OUR BUSINESS

We rely in part on trademark, copyright, and traderet law to protect our intellectual propertytia United States and abroad. We seek to
protect our software, documentation, and othert@nimaterials under trade secret and copyrightvavich afford only limited protection. W
also rely in part on patent law to protect ourlietgual property in the United States and intéomedlly. As of March 31, 2001, we held forty
(40) United States patents, including patentsirgjab programmable integrated circuit architecsutelephone control arrangements, soft
structures, and memory architecture technology bata number of United States and foreign pafgplications pending. We cannot predict
whether such pending patent applications will reisuissued patents. We may not be able to pratecproprietary rights in the United States
or internationally (where effective intellectuabperty protection may be unavailable or limitedid @ompetitors may independently develop
technologies that are similar or superior to ooht®mlogy, duplicate our technology or design aroang patent of ours. We have in the past
licensed and in the future expect to continue baggour technology to others; many of who aretied@®r may be located abroad. There are
no assurances that such licensees will protecteatinology from misappropriation. Moreover, litiget may be necessary in the future to
enforce our intellectual property rights, to deterenthe validity and scope of the proprietary rigbt others, or to defend against claims of
infringement or invalidity. Such litigation couldésult in substantial costs and diversion of manageime and resources and could have a
material adverse effect on our business and opegregisults. Any settlement or adverse determinatiGuch litigation would also subject us
to significant liability.

There has been substantial litigation in the sendaator, electronics, and related industries raggrihtellectual property rights, and from
time to time third parties may claim infringemewtus of their intellectual property rights. Our Adorange of technology, including systems,
digital and analog circuits, software, and semicmbairs, increases the likelihood that third pantiesy claim infringement by us of their
intellectual property rights. If we were found te infringing on the intellectual property rightsafy third party, we could be subject to
liabilities for such infringement, which could beatarial. We could also be required to refrain fresing, manufacturing or selling certain
products or using certain processes, either of vbiild have a material adverse effect on our lesgsiand operating results. From time to
time, we have received, and may continue to redeitlee future, notices of claims of infringememisappropriation or misuse of other
parties' proprietary rights. There can be no asseréhat we will prevail in these discussions acttbas or that other actions alleging
infringement by the Company of third-party pateni$ not be asserted or prosecuted against the Gomp

We rely on certain technology, including hardwand aoftware licensed from third parties. The los®pinability to maintain, existing
licenses could have a material adverse effect otvesiness and operating results. In addition, \ag bre required to license technology from
third parties in the future to develop new produstproduct enhancements. Third-party licenses neaye available to us on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all. Our inability to obt#ird-party licenses required to develop new productspraduct enhancements could req
us to obtain substitute technology of lower quatityperformance standards or at a greater costofawhich could seriously harm our
business, financial condition and operating results
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CONTINUED REDUCTIONS IN LEVELS OF CAPITAL INVESTMEN BY TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICE PROVIDERS MIGHT
IMPACT OUR ABILITY TO INCREASE REVENUE AND PREVENTUS FROM ACHIEVING PROFITABILITY

The market for the services provided by telecomiation service providers who compete against fadit telephone companies has only
begun to emerge, and many of these service pravaterstill building their infrastructure and rodi out their services. These
telecommunication service providers require sulitbeapital for the development, construction, axgansion of their networks and the
introduction of their services. Financing may netavailable to emerging telecommunication serviceigers on favorable terms, if at all.
The inability of our current or potential emergitedecommunication service provider customers tamecand keep customers, to success
raise needed funds, or to respond to any otheds$reach as price reductions for their servicesmamished demand for telecommunication
services generally, could adversely affect theagraping results or cause them to reduce their @agiending programs. If our current or
potential customers are forced to defer or cuthailr capital spending programs, sales of our libiitBX and SCE products to those
telecommunication service providers may be adveisi#cted, which would negatively impact our besis, financial condition, and results
of operations. In addition, many of the industiiesvhich telecommunication service providers opelave recently experienced
consolidation. The loss of one or more of our auirg potential telecommunication service providestomers, through industry
consolidation or otherwise, could reduce or elireraur sales to such a customer and consequemtty diar business, financial condition, ¢
results of operations.

THE FAILURE OF IP NETWORKS TO MEET THE RELIABILITY  AND QUALITY STANDARDS REQUIRED FOR VOICE
COMMUNICATIONS COULD RENDER OUR PRODUCTS OBSOLETE

Circuit-switched telephony networks feature vergthieliability, with a guaranteed quality of seeidhe common standard for reliability of
carrier-grade real-time voice communications i999%, meaning that the network can be down for arfgw minutes per year. In addition,
such networks have imperceptible delay and comlgteatisfactory audio quality. Emerging broadb#fchetworks, such as LANs, WANS,
and the Internet, or emerging last mile technolegigch as cable, DSL, and wireless local loop, nodye used for telephony unless such
networks and technologies can provide reliabilitg guality consistent with these standards.

OUR PRODUCTS MUST COMPLY WITH INDUSTRY STANDARDS AN D FCC REGULATIONS, AND CHANGES MAY
REQUIRE US TO MODIFY EXISTING PRODUCTS

In addition to reliability and quality standardisetmarket acceptance of telephony over broadbanétiRorks is dependent upon the adoption
of industry standards so that products from mudtiplinufacturers are able to communicate with eti@r.dP telephony products rely heay

on standards such as H.323, SIP, SGCP, MGCP, H.@&@PMegaco to interoperate with other vendorsipgaent. There is currently a lack

of agreement among industry leaders about whictdstal should be used for a particular applicator about the definition of the standards
themselves. We also must comply with certain rates regulations of the Federal Communications Casion (FCC) regarding
electromagnetic radiation and safety standard®ksttad by Underwriters Laboratories as well aslasinmegulations and standards applicable
in other countries. Standards are continuouslygmindified and replaced. As standards evolve, we Imearequired to modify our existing
products or develop and support new versions opoatlucts. The failure of our products to complydelays in compliance, with various
existing and evolving industry standards could gelainterrupt volume production of our IP telepkgroducts, which would have a mate
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod operating results.

FUTURE REGULATION OR LEGISLATION OF THE INTERNET CO ULD RESTRICT OUR BUSINESS OR INCREASE OUR
COST OF DOING BUSINESS

At present there are few laws or regulations that#ically address access to or commerce on tteeret, including IP telephony. We are
unable to predict the impact, if any, that futwegislation, legal decisions or regulations concegrihe Internet may have on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations. ®atjon may be targeted towards, among other thiagsessing access or settlement charges
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imposing tariffs or imposing regulations based pargption concerns or the characteristics and guafiproducts and services, any of which
could restrict our business or increase our codbafg business. The increasing growth of the Hvaad IP telephony market and popularity
of broadband IP telephony products and serviceghten the risk that governments will seek to regutaoadband IP telephony and the
Internet. In addition, large, established telecomivation companies may devote substantial lobbegfifigrts to influence the regulation of the
broadband IP telephony market, which may be cont@our interests.

WE MAY TRANSITION TO SMALLER GEOMETRY PROCESS TECHN OLOGIES AND HIGHER LEVELS OF DESIGN
INTEGRATION, WHICH COULD DISRUPT OUR BUSINESS

We continuously evaluate the benefits, on an iatiegk circuit, product-by-product basis, of migrgtto smaller geometry process
technologies in order to reduce costs relatedg¢aldvelopment and production of our semiconducWisbelieve that the transition of our
products to increasingly smaller geometries wilirbportant for us to remain competitive. We havéhia past experienced difficulty in
migrating to new manufacturing processes, whichraaslted and could continue to result in redudettly, delays in product deliveries, and
increased expense levels. Moreover, we are depeodaglationships with our foundries and theirtpars to migrate to smaller geometry
processes successfully. If any such transitionlistntially delayed or inefficiently implementede may experience delays in product
introductions and incur increased expenses. Aslengdometry processes become more prevalent, peceto integrate greater levels of
functionality, as well as customer and third pantgllectual property, into our products. We canmedict whether higher levels of design
integration or the use of thindarty intellectual property will adversely affectrability to deliver new integrated products otingely basis, o
at all.

WE DEPEND ON SUBCONTRACTED MANUFACTURERS TO MANUFAIMWRE SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF OUR PRODUCTS, ANI
ANY DELAY OR INTERRUPTION IN MANUFACTURING BY THESECONTRACT MANUFACTURERS WOULD RESULT IN
DELAYED OR REDUCED SHIPMENTS TO OUR CUSTOMERS ANDAW HARM OUR BUSINESS

We outsource the manufacturing of our semicondymtoducts to independent foundries. Our primaryisenductor manufacturer is Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (TSMC). WHISMC has been a valuable and capable supgiiere fare no assurances or supply
contracts guaranteeing that they will continueuppdy us with our required wafer supply. Furthermdraiwan is always subject to geolog

or geopolitical disturbances that could instantly aff such supply. We also rely on other thirdtpananufacturers for packaging and testing
of our semiconductors.

We do not have longerm purchase agreements with our subcontract rmatwrers or our component suppliers. There carolasgurance th
our subcontract manufacturers will be able or wglto reliably manufacture our products, in volupwsa cost effective basis or in a timely
manner. For our semiconductor products, the tinmtbour technology to another foundry, the timejtalify the new versions of product,
and the cost of this effort as well as the tooksgociated with wafer production would have a niltadverse effect on our business,
operating results, and financial condition.

IF WE DISCOVER PRODUCT DEFECTS, WE MAY HAVE PRODUCT -RELATED LIABILITIES WHICH MAY CAUSE US TO
LOSE REVENUES OR DELAY MARKET ACCEPTANCE OF OUR PRO DUCTS

Products as complex as those we offer frequentiyado errors, defects, and functional limitationisen first introduced or as new versions
released. We have in the past experienced suctsgdefects or functional limitations. We sell puats into markets that are extremely
demanding of robust, reliable, fully functional duzts. Therefore, delivery of products with produetdefects or reliability, quality or
compatibility problems could significantly delay lsinder market acceptance of such products, whocihdodamage our credibility with our
customers and adversely affect our ability to retair existing customers and to attract new custenméoreover, such errors, defects or
functional limitations could cause problems, iniptions, delays or a cessation of sales to ouomests. Alleviating such problems may
require significant expenditures of capital andurses by us. Despite our testing, our suppliersuorcustomers may find errors, defects or
functional limitations in new products after comrmaement of commercial production. This could resutidditional development costs, loss
of, or delays in, market acceptance, diversiorechfihical and other
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resources from our other development efforts, ptodepair or replacement costs, claims by our custs or others against us, or the loss of
credibility with our current and prospective custrm

WE HAVE SIGNIFICANT INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS, WHICH  SUBJECT US TO RISKS THAT COULD CAUSE OUR
OPERATING RESULTS TO DECLINE

Sales to customers outside of the United Statessepted 63%, 47%, and 43% of total revenues ifisbal years ended March 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively. Specifically, satesustomers in the Asia Pacific region represeBied, 24%, and 26% of our total revenues
for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2001, 2006,1899, respectively, while sales to customersurope represented 32%, 23%, and 17
our total revenues for the same periods, respéygtive

Substantially all of our current semiconductor agstem-level products are, and substantially afiwffuture products will be, manufactured,
assembled, and tested by independent third pamtfeseign countries. International sales and maatufring are subject to a number of risks,
including general economic conditions in regionshsas Asia, changes in foreign government regulatand telecommunication standards,
export license requirements, tariffs and taxesgottade barriers, fluctuations in currency exclearages, difficulty in collecting accounts
receivable, and difficulty in staffing and managfiogeign operations. We are also subject to getipalirisks, such as political, social, and
economic instability, potential hostilities, andadiges in diplomatic and trade relationships, imeation with our international operations. A
significant decline in demand from foreign marketsild have a material adverse effect on our busjreserating results, and financial
condition.

WE NEED TO HIRE AND RETAIN KEY PERSONNEL TO SUPPORT OUR PRODUCTS

The development and marketing of our IP telephangpcts will continue to place a significant stramour limited personnel, management,
and other resources. Competition for highly skikejineering, sales, marketing, and support pesasiintense because there are a limited
number of people available with the necessary tieahgkills and understanding of our market, paittdy in the San Francisco Bay area
where we are principally located. Any failure ttratt, assimilate or retain qualified personnédiéll our current or future needs could
impair our growth. We currently do not have empl@yincontracts with nor maintain key person lifeuirasice policies on any of our
employees.

WE ARE INVOLVED IN A LITIGATION MATTER THAT COULD S ERIOUSLY HARM OUR FINANCIAL CONDITION

On April 6, 2001, we, along with Sun Microsystenms,., Netscape Communications Canada Inc., Burdttan, and Intraware Canada Inc.,
were sued by Milinx Business Services, Inc. andMiBusiness Group Inc. (collectively, Milinx) iheé Supreme Court of British Columbia,
Canada (the Court). Milinx has alleged that weefhilo perform certain contractual obligations andwingly misrepresented the capabilities
of its products. The lawsuit seeks general, spegral aggravated damages totaling in excess ofdian&65 million plus interest, costs, and
any other relief which the Court may choose to mevWe believe we have valid defenses againstitiims alleged by Milinx and intend to
defend this lawsuit vigorously. However, due to tag¢ure of litigation and because the lawsuit ithmvery early pre-discovery stages, we
cannot determine the possible loss, if any, that nittmately be incurred either in the context dfial or a negotiated settlement. Should we
not prevail in any such litigation, our operatimgults and financial condition could be adverseigacted.

OUR STOCK PRICE HAS BEEN HIGHLY VOLATILE

The market price of the shares of our common shaskbeen and is likely to be highly volatile. Ityrze significantly affected by factors such
as:

- actual or anticipated fluctuations in our opergtiesults;
- announcements of technical innovations;
- loss of key personnel;
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- new products or new contracts by us, our comgstibr their customers; and

- developments with respect to patents or propsigights, general market conditions, changesniartial estimates by securities analysts,
and other factors which could be unrelated to,utside our control.

The stock market has from time to time experiergigdificant price and volume fluctuations that hgagticularly affected the market prices
for the common stocks of technology companies hatitave often been unrelated to the operatingppeeince of particular companies.
These broad market fluctuations may adversely affecmarket price of our common stock. In the padfowing periods of volatility in the
market price of a company's securities, securii@ss action litigation has often been initiatediagt the issuing company. If our stock price
is volatile, we may also be subject to such lifigat Such litigation could result in substantiastsand a diversion of management's attention
and resources, which would disrupt business anftl@awse a decline in our operating results. Artifesaent or adverse determination in
such litigation would also subject us to significhability.

THE LOCATION OF OUR HEADQUARTERS FACILITY SUBJECTS US TO THE RISK OF EARTHQUAKES

Our corporate headquarters is located in the Samcisco Bay area of Northern California, a regioown for seismic activity. A significant
natural disaster, such as an earthquake, coulddawaterial adverse impact on our business, opgregsults, and financial condition.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Our financial market risk consists primarily ofk$sassociated with international operations arateedl foreign currencies. We derive a
significant portion of our revenues from customargurope and Asia. In order to reduce the riskfftuctuation in foreign exchange rates,
the vast majority of our sales are denominated.®. dollars. In addition, all of our arrangementthwur semiconductor foundry and
assembly vendors are denominated in U.S. dollaesh&¥e foreign subsidiaries and are thus exposethtket risk from changes in exchange
rates. We have not entered into any currency hedagtivities. To date, our exposure to exchangevalatility has not been significant;
however, there can be no assurance that theraetibe a material impact in the future.

We invest our surplus cash and cash equivalentoimey market funds that bear variable interessrated, accordingly, fluctuations in
interest rates do not have an impact on the fdiregaof such investments.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PAGE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Report of Independent Accountants................ ... 32
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2001 e 35
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Schedules other than the one listed above havede#ted because they are inapplicable, becausethered information has been included
in the financial statements or notes thereto, eratmounts are immaterial.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Netagy Networks, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fairall material respects, the financial
position of Netergy Networks, Inc. and its subgiis at March 31, 2001 and March 31, 2000, anddbelts of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghillarch 31, 2001 in conformity with accountingngiples generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, fir@ancial statement schedule listed in the accamiog index presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein whexri@ conjunction with the related consolidatedficial statements. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule aresipensibility of the Company's management; ospaasibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial statersamdule based on our audits. We conducted oursanfdhese statements in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in thidd States of America, which require that we @ad perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsénts are free of material misstatement. Antancludes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overahdiaastatement presentation. We believe that adita provide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

San Jose, California
May 4, 2001
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..
Accounts receivable, net............ccceeeeeee...
Accounts receivable from related party...........
INVENTOIY ...
Other current assets.........cccccvvveveeeennnns

Total current assets...........cc.ue....
Property and equipment, net.............cccceeees
Intangibles and other assets............ccccveee.

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable..........cccccccveveniennnnnn.
Accrued compensation..........ccccceeeeeeeeennn.
Accrued warranty..........
Deferred revenue..........
Other accrued liabilities....
Income taxes payable..........cccccoevvvinnnnns

Total current liabilities................
Convertible subordinated debentures..............

Total liabilities.............ccccvveee

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 and 15)
Stockholders' equity:
Convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value:
Authorized: 5,000,000 shares;
Issued and outstanding: 1 share at March 31, 2
none at March 31, 2000..............cc.cuueee
Common stock, $0.001 par value:
Authorized: 100,000,000 shares at March 31, 20
40,000,000 at March 31, 2000;
Issued and outstanding: 26,419,919 shares of ¢

stock and 260,807 Exchangeable Shares at Marc
2001 and 22,958,921 shares of common stock at

Additional paid-in capital
Notes receivable from stockholders....
Deferred compensation............ccccccuveeeennnee
Accumulated other comprehensive loss...............
Accumulated defiCit..........cccovevriireeeinins

Total stockholders' equity...............
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......... $ 24,126 $48,576

......... 2,907 1,546
......... -- 1,000
......... 1,328 1,367
......... 2,571 891
......... 30,932 53,380
......... 5,016 2,687
......... 3,197 3,916

$ 39,145 $59,983

'EQUITY

......... $ 1,387 $ 1,887
......... 1,531 2,154
......... 525 694
......... 5,903 731
......... 1,623 1,245
......... 306 384

......... 11,275 7,095

001 and

01 and

ommon

h 31,

March

......... 27 23
......... 150,015 101,559
......... (1) (69)
......... (174) (376)
......... (89)

......... (128,146) (-5-3,747)

$ 39,145 $59,983

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.



NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Product revenues........ccccocvvevcveeiceenee. $12,808 $20,817 $ 26,189
License and other revenues........ccoccceevvceeee. L 5,420 4,567 5,493
Total revenues.......ccoeevevvcceees L 18,228 25,384 31,682
Cost of product revenues.........cceeeveeevvceees L 5,225 8,448 24,199
Cost of license and other revenues................ ... 1,761 150 82
Total cost of revenues........ccceeeeeee. L 6,986 8,598 24,281
Gross profit...cccccceveeeeeveneneee. 11,242 16,786 7,401
Operating expenses:
Research and development........ccccccovceeeeee. L 18,736 11,909 9,922
Selling, general and administrative............. ... 18,113 21,307 17,712
In-process research and development.............. ... 4,563 10,100 --
Amortization of intangibles..........c............ L. 10,987 614 -
Restructuring charge.......ccccccovveeeeneeee. L 33,316 - --
Total operating expenses..........ceeeee. .. 85,715 43,930 27,634

Loss from operations.........ccocevevvcveeeeneeee . (74,473) (27,144) (20,233)
Other income, net...... —— 2,628 2,807 1,009
Interest eXPenSe....cccvveveveeeeeeeeeieeieieeeeee (1,456) (391) --

Loss before provision for income taxes............ . ... (73,301) (24,728) (19,224)

Provision for income taxes.......ccccccovvcceee. L 17 120
Net loss before cumulative effect of change in acco unting

PrNCIPIE..coeiiiiii e (73,318) (24,848) (19,224)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... (1,081) - -
NEtI0SS..oiiiiiiiiiicie e $(74,399) $(24,848) $(19,224)
Net loss before cumulative effect of change in acco unting

principle per basic and diluted share............ ... $ (2.95) $ (1.38) $ (1.28)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... (0.04) -- --
Net loss per basic and diluted share.................~ .. $ (2.99) $ (1.38) $ (1.28)
Basic and diluted shares outstanding.................~ ... 24,846 18,071 15,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

PREFERRED STOCK

Balance at March 31, 1998......... --
Issuance of common stock under
stock plans..................... -- --
Repayment of notes receivable from
stockholders.................... - -
Repurchase of unvested common
StOCK. .o - -
Deferred compensation related to
stock options...........c....... - -
Change in unrealized loss on
investments............c..o..... - -
Net 10SS......coeviiiiiieeeanins - --
Total comprehensive loss.......... -
Balance at March 31, 1999......... --
Acquisition of Odisei S.A. ....... --
Issuance of common stock to
STMicroelectronics, net......... --
Issuance of warrants with
convertible subordinated
debentures..........ccceeene - -
Issuance of common stock under
stock plans..................... -- --
Repayment of notes receivable from
stockholders.................... - -
Repurchase of common stock........
Deferred compensation related to
stock options...........c....... - -
Realized loss on investments...... -
Net 10SS......coevvviiieeeennins -- -
Total comprehensive loss.......... --
Balance at March 31, 2000......... --
Acquisition of UForce, Inc. ...... 1
Issuance of common stock under
stock plans..................... -- --
Repayment of notes receivable from
stockholders.................... - -
Repurchase of common stock and
Exchangeable Shares............. --
Deferred compensation related to
stock options..........cc....... - -
Value of beneficial conversion
feature associated with the
convertible subordinated
debentures..........ccceeene - -
Change in unrealized loss on
investments............cc.o..... - -
Cumulative translation
adjustment............ccceeuees - -
Net 10SS......coevvviiieeeinins -- -
Total comprehensive loss.......... --

Balance at March 31, 2001......... 1

$ --

ACCUMULATED

OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE

LOSS

Balance at March 31, 1998......... $ (45)

Issuance of common stock under
stock plans..................... --
Repayment of notes receivable from
stockholders.................... -
Repurchase of unvested common
StOCK. ..o --
Deferred compensation related to

COMMON STOCK
------------------- PAID-IN FROM

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARES)

NOTES
ADDITIONAL RECEIVABLE
DEFERRED

SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL STOCKHOLDERS COMPENSATION
15,293,614 $15 $47,785  $(893) $(744)
389,823 -- 838 - -
- - 498 -
(257,685) -- (129) 129 -
- (131) - 547
15425752 15 48,363  (266) (197)
2,988,646 3 13,264 (76) -
3,700,000 4 35089 - -
- 2,467 - -
906,119 1 2,079 - -
- - 240 -
(61,596) - (43) 33 -
- 340 - (179)
22,958,921 23 101,559 (69) (376)
3555303 4 44,584 - -
1,206,591 1 2,761 - -
- - - 60 -
(1,040,089) (1) (521) 8 -
- 551 - 202
- 1,081 - -
26,680,726 $27 $150,015 $ (1) $(174)
ACCUMULATED
DEFICIT  TOTAL
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stock options..........cc....... - - 416
Change in unrealized loss on

investments.................... (148) --
Net 10SS......oeeeiiiiieeiiins - (19,224)
Total comprehensive loss.......... - - (19,372)

Balance at March 31, 1999......... (193) (28,899) 18,823
Acquisition of Odisei S.A. ....... - - 13,191
Issuance of common stock to

STMicroelectronics, net......... -- -- 35,093
Issuance of warrants with

convertible subordinated

debentures..........ccceeene -- - 2,467
Issuance of common stock under

stock plans..................... -- -- 2,080
Repayment of notes receivable from

stockholders.................... - - 240
Repurchase of common stock........ -- -- (10)
Deferred compensation related to

stock options...........c....... - - 161
Realized loss on investments...... 193 -
Net 10SS......oeeviiiiiieeianins - (24,848)
Total comprehensive loss.......... -- --  (24,655)
Balance at March 31, 2000......... - (53,747) 47,390
Acquisition of UForce, Inc. ...... -- -- 44,588
Issuance of common stock under

stock plans..................... -- -- 2,762
Repayment of notes receivable from

stockholders.................... - - 60
Repurchase of common stock and

Exchangeable Shares............. - -- (514)
Deferred compensation related to

stock options...........c....... - - 753

Value of beneficial conversion

feature associated with the

convertible subordinated

debentures...........cccuvee -- 1,081
Change in unrealized loss on

investments..................... (24) --
Cumulative translation

adjustment............cceeueee (65) -
Net l0SS.....ccoveiviiiiiiieens -- (74,399)
Total comprehensive loss.......... -- - (74,488)

Balance at March 31, 2001......... $(89) $(128,146) $ 21,632

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net10SS.....covviiiiieiiiiie e

(IN THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001

2000

1999

$(74,399) $(24,848) $(19,224)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash use din
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.........c......... ... 14,355 2,118 967
Stock compensation expense.......ccoccceveeeeee e 753 161 416
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ iple..... 1,081 -- --
In-process research and development............ ... 4,563 10,100 --
Discount on issuance of common stock.......... . ... - 7,400 -
Gain on sale of investments, net................ ... (225) (1,687) -
Non-cash restructuring charges.................. ... 32,331 - --
Other..cciiiiiiiic e (20) - (148)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects o f
businesses acquired
and sold:
Accounts receivable...........cccoceeeeeee. 851 3,492  (1,359)
Inventory, Net.....ccoccevviveneiiiiieeeeeee (85) 2,548 8,843
Other current and noncurrent assets.............. ... (1,281) (96) 102
Accounts payable.......cccococcveveneeee. (2,197) (71) (708)
Accrued compensation......cccccceveeeveveneees (623) 583 (209)
Accrued warranty.....c.ccocoeeeeeviiieenennceees . (169) (349) (418)
Deferred revenue........cccoeeeevvcveeenneeeee L 197 (3,358) 1,642
Other accrued liabilities...........oooeeeceeee.. L 378 (48) (197)
Income taxes payable.......ccccooveeeeveneenees L (78) 27) (125)
Net cash used in operating activities..... ... (24,568) (4,082) (10,418)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions of property and equipment........... ... (6,127) (1,693) (1,760)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net.................. . (558) (149) -
Proceeds from sale of investment................. ... 225 1,880 -
Proceeds from the sale of video monitoring assets , het.. 5,160 -- --
Othel e -- -- (25)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activitieS.....oovvveveeciecie (1,300) 38 (1,785)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinate d
debentures.......ccccvieiiniiiiiie. - 7,500 -
Debtissuance COStS.......ccccoeevvvvvvcvcccceeee -- (617) --
Debtrepayments........cccocveiviiceennees (891) - -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net...... ... 2,763 29,763 838
Repayment of notes receivable from stockholders.. ... 60 240 498
Repurchase of common stock and Exchangeable Share Serrerens (514) (76) --
Net cash provided by financing activites. ... 1,418 36,810 1,336
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent Serrerens (24,450) 32,766 (10,867)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year....... ... 48,576 15,810 26,677
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year............. ... $24,126 $48,576 $15,810
Supplemental disclosures:
Income taxes paid.......ccoceevvveivceenienee $ 25 $ 34 $ 126
Interest paid........cooevvevvecveveeceeees $ 308 $ - $ -
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 -- THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES
THE COMPANY

Netergy Networks, Inc. and its subsidiaries (cailety, the Company or Netergy) develop and mat&ltcommunication technology f
Internet Protocol (IP) telephony and video appiara. The Company has three product lines:

voice and video semiconductors and related softwersted Internet Private Branch Exchange (iPBX)tems, and Voice-over-IP (VolP)
service creation software.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, then@any formed two subsidiaries, Netergy Microeleaitrs, Inc. (NME) and Centile, Inc.
(Centile) and reorganized its operations more btedong its three product lines. NME provides wand video semiconductors and related
communication software to original equipment mantifeers (OEMSs) of telephones, terminal adapterd,ather edge devices and to other
semiconductor companies. NME's technologies aré ttismake IP telephones and to voice-enable calalelmital subscriber line (DSL)
modems, wireless devices, and other broadbanddémdias. Centile develops and markets hosted iP@disns that allow service providers
to offer private branch exchange (PBX) functionyaid small and medium-sized businesses over bromtbatworks. The Company is
developing its third product line, a VolP serviceation environment (SCE), at the parent compawsi & his product is designed for use by
telecommunication equipment manufacturers and cepioviders.

The Company was incorporated in California in Fabyul987 and in December 1996 was reincorporat&ktlaware. In August 2000 the
Company changed its name from 8x8, Inc. to Net&rgiworks, Inc.

FISCAL YEAR

Effective beginning in fiscal 2001, the Companyruird its fiscal year from a year ending on the $tlay closest to March 31 to a year
ending on March

31. Fiscal 2001 was 52 weeks and 2 days, whilalfid800 and fiscal 1999 were 53 week and 52 weaksyeespectively. For purposes of
these consolidated financial statements, the Coynpas indicated its fiscal year ends on March 31.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Agthgicant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdass#ts and liabilities and disclosure of contihgessets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the repamedunts of revenues and expenses during the repqiriod. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Product revenue -- The Company recognizes revaoue froduct sales upon shipment to OEMs and eng uReserves for returns and
allowances for OEM and end user sales are recate time of shipment. The Company defers redmgmnof revenue on sales to
distributors where the right of return exists uptibducts are resold by the distributor to the eset.

License and other revenue -- The Company recogniesnue from license contracts when a non-canlkeglabn-contingent license
agreement has been signed, the software produtigessdelivered, no uncertainties exist surroungiogluct acceptance, fees from the
agreement are fixed and determinable, and collediprobable. The Company uses the residual meathoetognize revenue when a license
agreement
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

includes one or more elements to be deliveredaiiae date if evidence of the fair value of aldatfivered elements exists. If evidence of the
fair value of the undelivered elements does nattergvenue is deferred and recognized when dglivecurs. When the Company enters into
a license agreement requiring that the Companyigeasignificant customization of the software proiduthe license and consulting revenue
is recognized using contract accounting. Revenua fnaintenance agreements is recognized ratabhytiogeerm of the maintenance
agreement, which in most instances is one year Cidmpany recognizes royalties upon notificatiosal® by its licensees. Revenue from
consulting, training, and development servicegi®gnized as the services are performed.

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Cssioni (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No118AB 101), "Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements." SAB 101 ptesgi guidance on applying generally accepted acicmuptinciples to revenue recogniti
issues in financial statements. The Company addpfd®l 101 in the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 200t adoption of SAB 101 did not
have a significant impact on the Company's reveaaegnition practices.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid investmensith an original maturity of three months or lésde cash equivalents. Management
determines the appropriate classification of delt@quity securities at the time of purchase apdaieates the classification at each repo
date. The cost of the Company's investments isméted based upon specific identification.

At March 31, 2001, the Company classified $388,60i0s investments, consisting of marketable egségurities, as available-for-sale. The
investments are recorded in Other Current AssetseiifConsolidated Balance Sheets. Investmentsfaisas available-for-sale are reported
at fair value, based upon quoted market price$ wirealized gains and losses, net of relatedftary, included in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss in the Consolidated BalancetSRealized losses on investments classified aidade for sale were approximately
$205,000 during the year ended March 31, 2000.iR&hbnd unrealized gains and losses for all athestments were not significant for the
years ended March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1

INVENTORY
Inventory is stated at the lower of standard oskich approximates actual cost using the firsfinsf-out method, or market.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and amortization. Depreciadind amortization are computed using
the straight-line method, based upon the shortée€stimated useful lives, ranging from threéue years, or the lease term of the
respective assets as follows:

Machinery and computer equipment.... 3 years

Furniture and fixtures.............. 5 years
Licensed software................... 3 years
Leasehold improvements.............. Shorter of le ase term or useful life

of the asset

Maintenance, repairs and ordinary replacementstarged to expense; expenditures for improveméatseixtend the physical or economic
life of the property are capitalized. Gains or ksssn the disposition of property and equipmenteifiected in income.
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

Goodwill and other intangible assets are amortizgdg the straight-line method over lives of twdite years. The Company periodically
evaluates whether events and circumstances havereddhat indicate the remaining estimated uddéubf goodwill and other intangible
assets may warrant revision or that the remainaigrite may not be recoverable. When factors inglittett goodwill and other intangible
assets should be evaluated for possible impairmigiCompany uses an estimate of undiscountedefutetrcash flows over the remaining
life of the asset to determine if impairment hasurced. Assets are grouped at the lowest levelfoch there are identifiable cash flows that
are largely independent from other asset groupsmfairment in the carrying value of an asset seased when the undiscounted, expected
future operating cash flows derived from the aasetless than its carrying value. If the Compartgmieines an asset has been impaired, the
impairment is recorded based on the fair valudefilnpaired asset. See Note 4 regarding the cliargmpairment of intangible assets
recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001. Adarch 31, 2001, accumulated amortization of igtale assets was approximately $1.4
million.

WARRANTY EXPENSE
The Company accrues for the estimated cost thatbaaycurred under its product warranties uponmaeaecognition.
RESEARCH AND SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Research and development costs are charged tatiopsras incurred. Software development costs neduprior to the establishment of
technological feasibility are included in reseaacidl development and are expensed as incurred. dimp&hy defines establishment of
technological feasibility as the completion of arking model. Software development costs incurrdzsequent to the establishment of
technological feasibility through the period of geal market availability of the product are cajitadl, if material. To date, all software
development costs have been expensed as incurred.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Assets and liabilities of the Company's foreignssdiaries are translated from their respective fional currencies at exchange rates in effect
at the balance sheet date, and revenues and eg@ersteanslated at average exchange rates preydiiring the year. If the functional
currency is the local currency, resulting transkatdjustments are reflected as a separate comipoingtiockholders' equity. If the functional
currency is the United States (U.S.) dollar, résgltonversion adjustments are included in theltesd operations. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses, which have been iemiaktare included in results of operations. Tatgdets of the Company's foreign
subsidiaries were $3.8 million, $1.6 million, areb$,000 as of March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, otispdy. The Company does not
undertake any foreign currency hedging activities.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for using the assdtahility approach. Under the asset and liabilippeoach, a current tax liability or asset is
recognized for the estimated taxes payable or dafole on tax returns for the current year. A defétax liability or asset is recognized for
the estimated future tax effects attributed to teragy differences and carryforwards. If necessidmy deferred tax assets are reduced by the
amount of benefits that, based on available evieleme not expected to be realized.
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
TAX CREDITS

Research and development and other tax crediscaminted for using the cost reduction method. Utlde method, tax credits relating to
eligible expenditures are accounted for as a réstucf related expenses in the period during wiihehexpenditures are incurred, provided
there is reasonable assurance of realization.

CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to significant concentrations of credik gsnsist principally of cash and cash
equivalents and trade accounts receivable. At MaigI2001, approximately 96% of the Company's eaglivalents were placed in an
institutional money market fund of a reputable, Uh&sed financial institution. The Company hasexperienced any material losses relating
to any investment instruments. The Company sallpribducts to OEMs and distributors throughouttbed. The Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers' financondition, and for certain transactions doegine collateral from its customers. For each
of the three years ended March 31, 2001, the Comegperienced minimal write-offs for bad debts dodbtful accounts. At March 31,
2001, two customers accounted for 23% and 12%afads receivable, respectively. At March 31, 2Q@@, customers accounted for 16%
and 14% of accounts receivable, respectively.

The Company outsources the manufacturing, packagimdjtesting of its semiconductor products to reshelent foundries. The inability of
any manufacturer to fulfill supply requirementstioé Company could materially impact future opegatiesults.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of financial instrumestglétermined by the Company, using available manketmation and valuation
methodologies considered to be appropriate Thgicgramounts of the Company's cash equivalentsaandunts receivable approximate
their fair values due to their short maturity. Tae value of the Company's convertible subordidatebentures (see Note 9) of approximately
$6.9 million has been estimated using discountsti 8aw analysis, based on the incremental borrgwate currently available to the
Company for debt with similar terms and maturity.

ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company accounts for employee stbaked compensation in accordance with Accountiimgiptes Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounti
for Stock Issued to Employees" (APB Opinion No..26)March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standddard (FASB) issued
Interpretation No. 44, "Accounting for Certain Tsagtions Involving Stock Compensation (an Integireh of APB Opinion No. 25)," (FIN
44), which became effective July 1, 2000. The adopf the provisions of FIN 44 did not have a miaiempact on the Company's
consolidated financial position or results of opierss. As required under Statement of FinancialcAeting Standards (SFAS) No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," (SFAS)1Re Company provides pro forma disclosure ofim&tme and earnings per share.

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Comprehensive loss, as defined, includes all chaimgequity (net assets) during a period from pamer sources. The difference betweer
loss and comprehensive loss is due primarily tealiwed losses on short-term investments classifiegivailable-for-sale and foreign
currency translation adjustments. Comprehensiveitoreflected in the Consolidated Statements eékBtolders' Equity.
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain prior year balances have been reclassifiednform with the current year presentation.
NET LOSS PER SHARE

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividirtdoss available to common stockholders (numerdtgithe weighted average number of
vested, unrestricted common and Exchangeable StsmedNote 3) outstanding during the period (denator). Diluted net loss per share is
computed using the weighted average number of canshares and potential common shares outstandiiggdhe period. Potential
common shares result from the assumed exercisey thg treasury stock method, of common stock aptioonvertible subordinated
debentures, warrants, and unvested, restricted constock having a dilutive effect. The numeratorsefach period presented are equal tc
reported net loss. Additionally, due to net lossesirred for all periods presented, weighted avetzagsic and diluted shares outstanding for
the respective periods are the same. The followngty instruments were not included in the comiloria of net loss per share because the
effect on the calculations would be anti-dilutiwe thousands):

MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Common stock OptioNS.....ccccvveeevvciiieeeiiceee . 7,732 4,174 3,430
WarrantS......cocooevvevveiiiiiiiiis e eeeeeeeeeeee i, 701 701
Convertible subordinated debentures................. ... 638 638
Unvested restricted common stock.......ccccceeeeeee. L 30 516 143

9,101 6,029 3,573

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS No. 133 (SFAS, 13ccounting for Derivative Instruments and HadpActivities." SFAS 133
establishes methods of accounting for derivatimarftial instruments and hedging activities relateithose instruments, as well as other
hedging activities. The Company is required to a&AS 133 in its first quarter of fiscal 2002 puast to the issuance of SFAS 137,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgiigtivities -- Deferral of the Effective Date of FBSStatement No. 133," which deferred
the effective date of SFAS 133 by one year. In ROGH, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138 (SFAS 138)ctinting for Certain Derivative
Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -- areagment of FASB statement No. 133," which amendsiceterms and conditions of
SFAS 133. The Company does not expect that thetiatopf SFAS 133, as amended, will have a maténphct on its consolidated financial
statements.
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NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
NOTE 2 -- BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS

MARCH 31,

(IN THOUSANDS)
Accounts receivable........cccoeeiiiiiiiiee. L $3,296 $1,988
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts............ .. (389) (442

$2,907 $1,546

Inventories:
Raw materialS........cccoevvveeevivieeeciiieee. L $ 213 $ 65
WOrk-in-proCess.......ccccouvvvvevccvvvvneneene 783 797
Finished goods......ccccccevvvvvvviiiciiiieee L 332 505

$1,328 $1,367

Property and equipment:

Machinery and computer equipment................. .. $7,987 $4,841
Furniture and fixtures......c.cccooevveeeveeeee. L 1,311 1,230
Licensed software........ccocceevvvvevenneeeee L 4,185 3,544
Leasehold improvements......ccccccceveveveeen. L 1,018 644

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization.... ... (9,485) (7,572)

$5,016 $2,687

NOTE 3 -- ACQUISITIONS
U/Force, Inc.

The Company's consolidated financial statementsatethe purchase acquisition of all of the outdiag stock of U/Force, Inc. (U/Force) on
June 30, 2000 for a total purchase price of $46l&m U/Force, based in Montreal, Canada, wagweetbper of IP-based software
applications and a provider of professional sesvit#Force was also developing a Java-based semgegion environment (SCE) that is
designed to allow telecommunication service proide develop, deploy, and manage telephony agitmand services to their customers.
The purchase price was comprised of Netergy conmstawk with a fair value of approximately $38.0 moii comprised of: (i) 1,447,523
shares issued at closing of the acquisition, ap@,{07,780 shares to be issued upon the exchamngelemption of the exchangeable shares
(the Exchangeable Shares) of Canadian entitiestyeldrmer employee shareholders or indirect owoétd/Force stock. The Exchangeable
Shares held by U/Force employees are subject taiceestrictions, including the Company's rightépurchase the Exchangeable Shares if
an employee departs prior to vesting. See Noteedarding the repurchase of certain of the Exchdigezhares in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2001. In addition, the Company also agreed to issigeshare of preferred stock (the Special Votingr&) that provides holders of
Exchangeable Shares with voting rights that arévatgnt to the shares of common stock into whidirtehares are convertible. Netergy also
assumed outstanding stock options to purchase ,B®23hares of U/Force common stock for which ttaelgScholes option-pricing model
value of approximately $6.6 million was includedli@ purchase price. Direct transaction costse@ltd the merger were approximately
$747,000. Additionally, the Company advanced $1ilfan to U/Force upon signing the agreement, biipto the close of the transaction.
This amount was accounted for as part of the psecpaice.

The purchase price was allocated to tangible aasetsired and liabilities assumed based on the bahle of U/Force's assets and liabilities,
which approximated their fair value. In additionetCompany engaged an independent appraiser te tratintangible assets, including
amounts allocated to U/Force's in-
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process research and development. The in-procesarch and development related to U/Force's imitaducts, the SCE and a unified
messaging application, for which technological fieitisy had not been established and the technolugy no alternative future use. The
estimated percentage complete for the unified ngisgand SCE products was approximately 44% and, 3é8pectively, at June 30, 2000.
The fair value of the in-process technology wastam a discounted cash flow model, similar totthditional "Income Approach," which
discounts expected future cash flows to presenteyaiet of tax. In developing cash flow projectiorevenues were forecasted based on
relevant factors, including aggregate revenue draates for the business as a whole, characteristithe potential market for the
technology, and the anticipated life of the tecbgygl Projected annual revenues for the in-prooessarch and development projects were
assumed to ramp up initially and decline signifitaat the end of the in-process technology's entndife. Operating expenses and resulting
profit margins were forecasted based on the cheniatits and cash flow generating potential ofébguired in-process technologies. Risks
that were considered as part of the analysis irdutle scope of the efforts necessary to achiehmtdogical feasibility, rapidly changing
customer markets, and significant competitive tte'é@m numerous companies. The Company also cereidhe risk that if the products
were not brought to market in a timely manneropitld adversely affect sales and profitability af tombined company in the future. The
resulting estimated net cash flows were discouatedrate of 25%. This discount rate was baseth@edstimated cost of capital plus an
additional discount for the increased risk assediatith in-process technology. Based on the indégenappraisal, the value of the acquired
U/Force inprocess research and development, which was expénsiee second quarter of fiscal 2001, approxinh&#.6 million. The exce!

of the purchase price over the net tangible arahiible assets acquired and liabilities assumedall@sated to goodwill. Amounts allocated
to goodwill, the value of an assumed distributigne@ment, and workforce were being amortized dnaéght-line basis over three, three, and
two years, respectively. The allocation of the pase price was as follows (in thousands):

In-process research and development................. ... $ 4,563
Distribution agreement.........cccoccocveveeeeee. L 1,053
WoOrkforce. ..o 1,182
U/Force net tangible assets..........ccccceeeeeeee. L 1,801
GOOAWill.cvviiiiiiiiicvici e 38,236
$46,835

The consolidated results of the Company include¢kelts of the operations of U/Force from the dditdhe acquisition, June 30, 2000, the
beginning of our second quarter of fiscal 2001. fidilewing unaudited pro forma consolidated amowgit® effect to the acquisition of
U/Force as if it had occurred at the beginningaafteof fiscal 2001 and 2000 (in thousands, excepsbare data):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000
Revenue.........cccceeeeiieiieieieiii, $18,765 $25,874
NEt I0SS...ccvevriiriesieresee e $74,949 $41,155
Net loss per share............cccceeeevveenennn $ 297 $ 205

The above unaudited pro forma consolidated amanmetsiot necessarily indicative of the actual resofitoperations that would have been
reported if the acquisition had actually occurrsafithe beginning of the periods described aboeedoes such information purport to
indicate the results of our future operationshi@ dpinion of management, all adjustments necessgmesent fairly such pro forma amounts
have been made.
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Odisei S.A.

On May 24, 1999, the Company acquired Odisei SO4ligei), a privately held, development stage compmased in Sophia Antipolis,

France, that was developing software for managaigevover IP networks. The consolidated finandatesnents reflect the acquisition of
Odisei for approximately 2,868,000 shares of then@any's common stock and approximately 121,00@oficgent shares, which were
subsequently issued to Odisei employee sharehdldétarch 2000. Approximately 30,000 of the shasssied to Odisei employees are
subject to repurchase as of March 31, 2001 if thpleyee departs prior to vesting. The purchaseeprias approximately $13.6 million,

which includes approximately $295,000 of acquisiielated costs. The purchase price was allocateahgible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on the book value of Odisei's cuassets and liabilities, which approximated thair falue. In addition, the Company
engaged an independent appraiser to value thegibtarassets, including amounts allocated to Odigeiprocess research and development.
The inprocess research and development related to Gdisiial product for which technological feasibjlihad not been established and
estimated to be approximately 60% complete. Thevidue of the in-process technology was based disaunted cash flow model, which
discounted expected future cash flows to presdoeyaet of tax. In developing cash flow projectiprevenues were forecasted based on
relevant factors, including aggregate revenue draates for the business as a whole, characteristithe potential market for the
technology, and the anticipated life of the tecbggl Projected annual revenues for the in-prooessarch and development projects were
assumed to ramp up initially and decline signifibaat the end of the in-process technology's eotndife. Operating expenses and resulting
profit margins were forecasted based on the cheriatits and cash flow generating potential ofaébquired in-process technology.
Associated risks include the inherent difficulteesd uncertainties in completing the project andehy achieving technological feasibility, ¢
risks related to the impact of potential changesanket conditions and technology. The resultirtgrested net cash flows were discounted at
a rate of 27%. This discount rate was based oestimated cost of capital plus an additional dis¢dor the increased risk associated with in-
process technology. Based on the independent apprdie value of the acquired Odisei in-processarch and development, which was
expensed in the fiscal year ended March 31, 20@8,%¢0.1 million. The excess of the purchase mes the net tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed was afilddatgoodwill. The allocation of the purchase @gonsisted of the following (in
thousands):

In-process research and development................ ... $10,100
WOrKfOICe ..o 200
Net tangible liabilities..........cccccccvveeeee. L (219)
GoOdWill.ccooiiiiiiiie e 3,481
$13,562

The Company's Consolidated Statement of Operatmrthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 includhesresults of Odisei from the date of
acquisition. Had the acquisition taken place ahefoeginning of either fiscal 2000 or fiscal 198% pro forma net loss for both periods
would have been substantially the same.

NOTE 4 -- RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, afterignficant number of employees had resigned, the@any discontinued its Canadian
operations acquired in conjunction with the acdigisiof U/Force in June 2000. The Company closgdffices in Montreal and Hull, Quebec
and laid-off all remaining employees resultinghie tessation of most of the research and develdpsffents and all of the sales and
marketing and professional services activities @ased with the U/Force business. As a result efrdstructuring, the
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Company recorded a one-time charge of $33.3 milliathe quarter ended March 31, 2001. The restringficharges consisted of the
following (in thousands):

Employee separation........cccccccevveeeeeevenneees L $ 765
Fixed asset losses and impairments.................. ... 2,084
Intangible asset impairments.........ccoccceeveeeee. L 30,247
Lease obligation and termination.........c......... . ... 220
$33,316

Employee separation costs represent severance ptg/redated to the 96 employees in the Montrealkulti offices who were laid-off.

The impairment charges for fixed assets approxich@fel million which included write-offs of abandmhand unusable assets of
approximately $1.4 million, a loss on sale of as®$t$567,000, and a charge for assets to be didpfs$172,000. The asset write-offs of
$1.4 million included approximately $850,000 rethte leasehold improvements and $560,000 relatedrwputer equipment, furniture, and
software. The loss on sale of assets of $567,0@0atiabutable to the sale of office, computer, atiter equipment of the Montreal office.

The Company received common stock of the purchasdeed at approximately $412,000 at the date @ Sdlis common stock has been
accounted for as an available-for-sale securityinddided in Other Current Assets. Fair value ckts to be disposed was measured based o
expected salvage value, less costs to sell. Asséis disposed of consist of computer equipmertt witair value of $57,000 at March 31,
2001. These assets are expected to be sold or@bethdlepending on re-sale market conditions, witné next six to twelve months.

The impairment charges for intangible assets reptase write-off of the unamortized intangibleetssecorded in connection with the
acquisition of U/Force. The charges of approxime$30.2 million included: $28.7 million for the gdwill related to the acquisition,
$739,000 for the assembled workforce, and $78%8led to a distribution agreement. The impairmevere directly attributable to the
cessation of operations in Canada. The Companyipeedd an evaluation of the recoverability of thiaungible assets related to these
operations in accordance with SFAS No. 121, "Actiogrfor the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and fmng-Lived Assets to be
Disposed Of." The lack of estimated future net déshis related to the acquired products necessitateimpairment charge to write-off the
remaining unamortized goodwill. The distributiorr@gment asset was written off because the Compdhyononger provide products and
services to customers under that agreement.

In March 2001 the Company terminated the leasédqrimary facility in Montreal. Pursuant to treake termination agreement, the
Company is obligated to pay rent on its Montreallity through May 31, 2001. The Company recordbdrges for these rental obligations as
well as the related lease termination costs. Thagamy is actively seeking a third-party to subigtacant facility in Hull, Quebec, and has
recorded a charge for estimated lease terminatidnmelated costs.

At March 31, 2001 the remaining accrued obligatiassociated with the aboveferenced restructuring charges were approxim&zly2,00(
and consisted of obligations related to the leases.

NOTE 5 -- DISPOSITION OF VIDEO MONITORING BUSINESS

On May 19, 2000, the Company entered into an ABgathase Agreement with Interlogix, Inc. (Interbggdroviding for the sale of certain
assets comprising the Company's video monitorirgjnass (the Business) to Interlogix. The assetsiscluded certain accounts receivable,
inventories, technical information, machinery, gumént, contract rights, intangibles, records, ambBes. Concurrently with the executior
the Asset Purchase Agreement, the Company andogiteentered into a Technology License Agreemdra (icense Agreement) providing
for the licensing of certain related intellectuadjperty to
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Interlogix, a Development Agreement providing litgix continuing rights in certain products to kevdloped by the Company, a Transition
Services Agreement providing for certain servicebd rendered by the Company to Interlogix in respéthe Business, and a Supply
Agreement providing for the continuing sale of aertproducts to Interlogix by the Company (colleely, the Agreements). The aggregate
purchase price paid by Interlogix was approxima$&y2 million in cash.

At the signing of the Agreements the Company'sinairig obligations included: (i) providing futur@dates and upgrades to the licensed
technology, if any, over the initial three-yeamtenf the License Agreement, (ii) certain warrantyigations related to video monitoring
products manufactured prior to May 19, 2000, aidagrtain potential obligations under the Devetamt Agreement (the Development
Obligations). The Company deferred the recognitibthe $3.9 million net gain from the transactiontilthe satisfactory completion of the
Development Obligations. Due to the expirationhaf period for completion of the Development Obligias, in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2001 the Company commenced recognition of the tiaguhet gain, the balance of which is include®gferred Revenue in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at March 31, 2001. The remainingaietwill be recognized to income over the remajrigrm of the License Agreement,
which expires in May 2003.

NOTE 6 -- STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIP WITH STMICROELECTR ONICS

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, the Compaold 3.7 million shares of its common stock TdVEcroelectronics NV (STM) at a
purchase price of $7.50 per share. In additionQbmpany granted STM the right to a seat on the i2my's Board of Directors as long as it
holds at least 10% of the Company's outstandingesh&TM will have certain rights to maintain iergentage ownership interest of the
Company's outstanding voting securities providesydver, that its total percentage ownership ofatlstanding voting stock of the Compi
shall not exceed 19.9%. The Company also grant&d M a non-exclusive, royalty-bearing license tdaie technology and has undertaken
certain joint development activities with a subaigliof STM. Under the terms of the agreement, STidrgnteed certain minimum payments
to the Company totaling $1.0 million for prepaigatiies and certain non-recurring engineering sewithe Minimum Payments). The
Company received the Minimum Payments in fiscall200

Net proceeds from the sale of stock were $27.7anilrepresenting a discount of approximately $#ilion from the $35.1 million fai
market value of the stock on the date of the agee¢nThe discount, less the Minimum Payments, whsated in the fiscal 2000
Consolidated Statements of Operations with a chef§6.4 million to Selling, General, and Adminative Expense.

NOTE 7 -- TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company purchased $956,000 of components faampdS8Semiconductor Corporation (Sanyo) and anat#ilof Sanyo during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1999. An executive of Sanyeeseon the Company's Board of Directors throudi 16, 1999.

During fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Company painember of the Board of Directors approxima$2g,000, $41,000, and $85,000,
respectively, for technical consulting servicesvied on behalf of the Company.

During fiscal 2001, the Company contributed $150,@0a research program of a major university wisamanaged by a director of the
Company.
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NOTE 8 -- INCOME TAXES

The Company's loss before income taxes includeg,806, $160,500, and $105,000 of foreign subsidimygme for the fiscal years ended
March 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Tdmponents of the consolidated provision for incdenes consisted of the following (in
thousands):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Current:
Federal........oovovviveeieceee e . 8- $-- 3$(26)
17 120 26
$17 $120 $--
Deferred tax assets are comprised of the followimghousands):
MARCH 31,
2001 2000
Research and development credit carryforwards...... ... $ 4,455 $ 2,982
Net operating loss carryforwards................... ... 22,625 11,678
Inventory valuation............cccceeiiiienenne 650 1,104
Reserves and allowances.............ccccoccveeennn. ... 1,181 697
GoOdWill....eevieieec e ... 15,584 -
Other. ..o ... 3,155 2,162
47,650 18,623
Valuation allowance.............cccocoovevvvnnnnns .... (47,650) (18,623)
Total.veieeeieciecee e $ $ -

Management believes that, based on a number afrfad¢he weight of objective available evidencdadatks that it is more likely than not that
the Company will not be able to realize its defértiax assets, and thus a full valuation allowanas wecorded at March 31, 2001 and March
31, 2000.

At March 31, 2001, the Company had net operatisg tarryforwards for federal and state income tapg@ses of approximately $61.4
million and $38.7 million, respectively, which expiat various dates beginning in 2005. The netaijey loss carryforwards include
approximately $4.3 million resulting from employexercises of non-qualified stock options or disifyialg dispositions the tax benefits of
which, when realized, will be accounted for as dditéon to additional paid-in capital rather thamaareduction of the provision for income
taxes. In addition, at March 31, 2001, the Company research and development credit carryforwandfetleral and state tax reporting
purposes of approximately $2.9 million and $2.1lionil, respectively. The federal credit carryforwssill begin expiring in 2010 while the
California credit will carryforward indefinitely. kbder applicable tax laws, the amount of and ben&fim net operating losses and credits
can be carried forward may be impaired or limite@dértain circumstances. Events which may causéalions in the amount of net operating
loss carryforwards that the Company may utilizany one year include, but are not limited to, a glative ownership change of more than
50% over a three year period.
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A reconciliation of the tax provision to the amasinbmputed using the statutory U.S. federal inctameate of 34% is as follows (in
thousands):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Provision at statutory rate........................ .. $(25,296) $(8,408) $(6,572)
State income taxes before valuation allowance, net of

federal effect........ccccoociieiiiiinnns . (3,909) (251) (729)
In-process research and development................ .. 1551 3,434 -
Discount on issuance of common stock............... . - 2,176 --
Research and development credits................... .. (1,162) (338) (483)
Valuation allowance...........cccccceeeeiniineeenn. .. 29,027 3,125 7,712
Non-deductible compensation........................ . 256 55 165
Foreign income taxes........cccccveeeeeveniinnnns . 1 66

ONE e . (451) 261  (93)

$ 17 $ 120 $

NOTE 9 -- DEBT
Convertible Subordinated Debentures

In December 1999, the Company issued $7.5 millfo#?6 Series A and Series B convertible subordindezkntures (the Debentures). The
Debentures mature on December 17, 2002 unless tedwearlier. Repayment of the debentures may tele@ated under certain
circumstances. The $3.75 million Series A debestaral $3.75 million Series B debentures are coimeiinto the Company's common st
at a conversion price equal to $7.05 and $35.5peetively. Interest is payable semiannually.

For the Series A and Series B debentures, thelleadeived a three-year warrant to purchase apmately 532,000 common shares of the
Company at $7.05 per share and 106,000 share$ &0b8er share, respectively. The Company alsedsarrants to the placement agent in
conjunction with the Series A and Series B debestequal to approximately 53,000 shares and 1E/08&s, respectively, at substantially
the same terms granted to the lender. The convepsioes of the Debentures and the exercise pfiteeovarrants issued to the lender ma
adjusted under certain circumstances.

Using the Black-Scholes pricing model, the Compaetermined that the debt discount associated wéHdir value of the warrants issued to
the lender approximated $2.2 million. The amort@abf the debt discount is being reflected as@-cash charge to interest expense over the
term of the warrants. The Company recognized istepense associated with amortization of the disbbunt of approximately $740,000
and $218,000, respectively, during the fiscal yesded March 31, 2001 and 2000. The debt discaenhpf accumulated amortization, is
reflected as a reduction in the face value of teedhtures.

The costs of issuing the Debentures totaled $864j806luding a non-cash charge of $247,000 fonédae of the warrants issued to the
placement agent. The deferred debt issuance cesesrecorded in Intangibles and Other Assets amtée@ing amortized to interest expense
over the term of the Debentures. The Company rézedrinterest expense associated with amortizatidhe deferred debt issuance costs of
approximately $288,000 and $85,000, respectivelyind the fiscal years ended March 31, 2001 an®200

In November 2000, the FASB Emerging Issues Taskd-m#ached several conclusions regarding the atinguor debt and equity securities
with beneficial conversion features, including @asensus requiring the application of the "accogntionversion price” method, versus the
use of the stated conversion price, to calculaetmneficial conversion feature for such securifiéee SEC required companies to record a
cumulative catch-up adjustment in the fourth quastecalendar 2000 related to the application ef th
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"accounting conversion price" method to securigesed after May 21, 1999. Accordingly, the Compeegorded a $1.1 million non-cash
expense during the quarter ended December 31,208 ount for a beneficial conversion feature eissed with the Debentures and related
warrants. The Company has presented the charpe i@dnsolidated Statements of Operations as a atirakffect of a change in account
principle.

Other Debt

At June 30, 2000, the Company assumed certainatdgitse and loan obligations of U/Force. In Felyr@2901, the Company paid
approximately $560,000 to purchase all equipmetgtanding under the capital leases, and repaitahk& loan of approximately $146,000.

NOTE 10 -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases its primary facility in Santar&| California under a noncancelable operatingel@greement that expires in May 2003.
The Company also has leased facilities in Canadade, and the United Kingdom. The facility leaisetude rent escalation clauses, and
require the Company to pay taxes, insurance, andalanaintenance costs. At March 31, 2001, futurdmum annual lease payments under
noncancelable operating leases were as followh@unsands):

YEAR ENDING MARCH 31,

Rent expense for the years ended March 31, 20@D, 20id 1999 was $1.8 million, $1.3 million, an@$®00, respectively.

The Company is involved in various legal claims &tigation that have arisen in the normal courbthe Company's operations. While the
results of such claims and litigation cannot bedfmted with certainty, the Company believes thatfihal outcome of such matters will not
have a significant adverse effect on the Compdmasicial position or results of operations. Howeahould the Company not prevail in any
such litigation, its operating results and finahpiasition could be adversely impacted. See alsteN56.

NOTE 11 -- STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

In August 2000 the Company's stockholders authdriameamendment to the restated certificate of pmmtion to increase the authorized
number of shares of common stock to 100,000,006esHeom 40,000,000 shares.

Exchangeable Shares

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, the Compaepurchased 1,034,107 unvested ExchangeablesShtan average price of $0.49 per
share. These Exchangeable Shares were issuedamamployees of U/Force in conjunction with thi&-bice acquisition (see Note 3) and
were repurchased when the employees resigned frer@dmpany. In addition, 812,866 Exchangeable Shaeee converted into an

equivalent
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number of shares of the Company's common stodkeiidurth quarter of fiscal 2001. There were 260,BRchangeable Shares issued and
outstanding at March 31, 2001.

1992 Stock Option Plan

The Board of Directors has reserved 3,000,000 stafrthe Company's common stock for issuance uh@et992 Stock Option Plan (the
1992 Plan). The 1992 Plan provides for grantin@imiwze and nonstatutory stock options to employtgsices equal to the fair market value
of the stock at the grant dates. Options genevalby over four years.

Key Personnel Plan

In July 1995, the Board of Directors adopted thg Rersonnel Plan. The Board of Directors resery2d®000 shares of the Company's
common stock for issuance under this plan. The Ragonnel Plan provides for granting incentive amaistatutory stock options to officers
of the Company at prices equal to the fair marlkdtie of the stock at the grant dates. Options gdigerest over four years.

1996 Stock Plan

In June 1996, the Board of Directors adopted tf#61%ock Plan (the 1996 Plan) and reserved 1,00G08res of the Company's common
stock for issuance under this plan. The Compangtkholders subsequently authorized increasesimtimber of shares of the Company's
common stock reserved for issuance under the 1B86d? 500,000 shares in June 1997 and 2,000,08@sln August 2000. The 1996 Plan
also provides for an annual increase on the fagtaf each of the Company's fiscal years in an arthegual to 5% of the Company's common
stock issued and outstanding at the end of the uifatedy preceding fiscal year, subject to certaaximum limitations. This provision
resulted in an increase of 1,000,000, 771,287,7&4d680 shares issuable under the 1996 Plan diminfiscal years ended March 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively. The 1996 Plan previdegranting incentive and nonstatutory stockas to employees at prices equal to the
fair market value of the stock at the grant datedetermined by the Company's Board of Directopidds generally vest over a period of
more than five years.

1996 Director Option Plan

The Company's 1996 Director Option Plan (the Doe&lan) was adopted in June 1996 and becameig&eaatJuly 1997. A total of 150,000
shares of common stock were initially reserveddsuance under the Director Plan. The Companyskistdders subsequently authorized an
increase in the number of shares of common stadeved for issuance under the Director Plan to@shares in August 2000. The
Director Plan provides for both discretionary amdiqdic grants of nonstatutory stock options to-eamployee directors of the Company (the
Outside Directors). The exercise price per shaadlafptions granted under the Director Plan wdldgual to the fair market value of a share
of the Company's common stock on the date of g@yptions generally vest over a period of four ye@rstions granted to Outside Directors
under the Director Plan have a ten year term, ortehupon termination of an Outside Director'sustas a director. If not terminated earlier,
the Director Plan will have a term of ten years.

1999 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan

In fiscal 2000, the Company's Board of Directorpraped the 1999 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan {#@9 Plan) with 600,000 shares
initially reserved for issuance thereunder. Indls2001, the number of shares reserved for issuaaséncreased to 3,600,000 shares by the
Board of Directors. Under the terms of the 199%Péptions may not be issued to either officerdimrctors of the Company provided,
however, that options may be granted to an officeonnection with the officer's initial employmenyt the Company. Vesting for certain
options accelerates if certain predefined milestare met.
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UForce Company -- Societe UForce Amended and Restalt 1999 Stock Option Plan

In connection with the acquisition of U/Force ($éate 3), the Company assumed the UForce Compa®gciete UForce Amended and
Restated 1999 Stock Option Plan (the U/Force P&, reserved 1,023,898 shares of the Company'sioarstock related to options issued
thereunder. The U/Force Plan provided for the gombnstatutory stock options to employees anduwlvants of U/Force at prices equal to
the fair market value of the stock at the graneslaDptions generally vested over four years addttarm of ten years unless otherwise
cancelled.

Option activity under the Company's stock opticengl since March 31, 1998, excluding subsidiarykstqtion plans, is summarized as
follows:

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

SHARES SHARES SUBJECT TO  EXERCISE PRICE
AVAILABLE FOR G RANT OPTIONS OUTSTANDING PER SHARE
Balance at March 31, 1998......... 120,909 2,859,864 $5.26
Increase in options available for
(o] 7= 14 | AP 764,680 -- --
Granted.........cccoevvevveennn (3,243,175) 3,243,175 $3.32
Exercised................ - (202,332) $1.00
Returned to plan 2,470,397 (2,470,397) $6.74
Balance at March 31, 1999......... 112,811 3,430,310 $2.60
Increase in options available for
grant......ccooeveecvininnnnns 1,371,287 -- --
(2,105,015) 2,105,015 $7.94
- (725,209) $2.12
636,354 (636,354) $3.40
Balance at March 31, 2000 15,437 4,173,762 $5.25
Increase in options available for
(o] 7= 14 | AP 7,373,898 -- --
Granted or assumed................ (8,116,100) 8,116,100 $6.26
Exercised.........ccoceeiirane - (925,008) $2.30
Returned to plan.................. 3,632,963 (3,632,963) $8.29
2,906,198 7,731,891 $5.24

Balance at March 31, 2001..

Significant option groups outstanding at March 3101 and related weighted average exercise prideamtractual life information are as
follows:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE WEIGHTED AVER AGE
------------------------ - REMAINING
WEIGHTED AVE RAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE CONTRACTUAL L IFE
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES SHARES  EXERCISE PR ICE SHARES EXERCISE PRICE (YEARS)

$0.01t0 $3.16 3,918,727 $2.12 1,115,964 $2.40 8.8
$3.16t0 $6.32 1,339,546 $4.09 524,839 $4.36 8.6
$6.32t0 $9.49 983,701 $7.32 134,856 $7.17 9.0
$9.49 to $12.65 1,206,617 $11.86 57,560 $10.55 9.1
$12.65 to $15.81 129,250 $14.32 16,526 $14.50 8.1
$15.81 to $31.62 154,050 $21.54 39,408 $21.29 8.9

7,731,891 $5.24 1,889,153 $4.03 8.8

In September 1998, the Board of Directors apprapdbposal under which employees elected to capg@bximately 2,107,000 options in
exchange for grants of new options with an exengigee equal to the then current fair market valneconsideration for such repricing, each
participating employee agreed that they
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forfeit their right to exercise such options shothldy resign from the Company within twelve montfishe repricing date.

Shares issued under the Key Personnel Plan arecstibjrepurchase at the original issuance pritieeiemployee leaves the Company pric
vesting. During fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999, thenfany repurchased 5,982, 46,296, and 257,685 w@u/ebares, respectively. As of March
31, 2001, all shares were vested.

The Company recorded a deferred compensation clofiamproximately $7,267,000 with respect to opdiogpriced and certain additional
options granted in fiscal 1997. In addition, then@any recorded deferred compensation charges obxipmately $503,000 and $406,000 in
connection with certain options granted to noneaffiemployees in fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectividglg Company recognized $753,000,
$161,000, and $416,000 of said amounts as compengadpense in the fiscal years ended March 3112P000, and 1999, respectively. The
Company recognizes deferred compensation oveethted vesting period of the options (which is gahe forty-eight months). At March

31, 2001, the balance of deferred compensatiorhda4,000. Deferred compensation is subject to tagtuéor any employee who terminates
employment prior to the expiration of such empldyeption vesting period.

Netergy Microelectronics, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Rin

NME's 2000 Stock Option Plan (the NME Plan) waspa€eld in December 2000 by the NME Board of Directdtsee NME Plan provides fc
granting incentive stock options (ISOs) to emplayard nonstatutory stock options (NSOs) to empkydieectors, and consultants of NME.
Options granted under the NME Plan may be grardegdriods up to ten years and at prices no less 86% of the estimated fair value of
the shares on the date of grant as determinedebMRHE Board of Directors, provided, however, thiathe exercise price of an ISO and NSO
shall not be less than 100% and 85% of the estuffaievalue of the shares on the date of graspeetively, and (ii) the exercise price of an
ISO and NSO granted to a 10% shareholder shabedess than 110% of the estimated fair value @ktiares on the date of grant,
respectively. To date, options granted vest over years. However, in the event of a change inrobfés defined in the NME Plan
document) vesting for certain options will be aecated.

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding at March 31, 2001:

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

SHARES AVAI LABLE SHARES SUBJECT TO EXERCISE PRICE
FOR GRAN T OPTIONS OUTSTANDING  PER SHARE
Shares reserved at NME Plan's
inception..........cccoeviveennnne 5,000,0 00 - $ -
Granted........cccoeveeriieinnenn. (3,572,0 00) 3,572,000 0.50
Returned to plan...................... 400,0 00 (400,000) 0.50
Balance at March 31, 2001............. 1,828,0 00 3,172,000 $0.50

As of March 31, 2001, no options were exercisahle weighted average remaining contractual life agsroximately 9.8 years, and the
weighted average exercise price was $0.50 per share

Centile, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan

Centile's 2001 Stock Option Plan (the Centile Plaa3 adopted in March 2001 by the Centile BoarDicdctors. The Centile Plan provides
for granting incentive stock options (ISOs) to eaygles and nonstatutory stock options (NSOs) to @yepls, directors, and consultants of
Centile. Options granted under the Centile Plan begranted for periods up to ten years and aépmo less than 85% of the estimated fair
value of the shares on the date of grant as daetedby the Centile Board of Directors, providedwhwer, that (i) the exercise price of an |
and NSO shall not be less than 100% and 85% dafstimated fair value of the shares on the dateasftgrespectively, and (ii) the exercise
price of an ISO and NSO granted to a
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10% shareholder shall not be less than 110% oédtimmated fair value of the shares on the dateaftgrespectively. To date, options grat
vest over four years.

The following table summarizes the information atstock options outstanding at March 31, 2001

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

SHARES AVAILA BLE SHARES SUBJECTTO EXERCISE PRICE
FOR GRANT OPTIONS OUTSTANDING PER SHARE
Shares reserved at Centile Plan's
inception..........cccceeveeunne 4,500,000 - $ -
Granted........cccoeevvveeeennnen. (4,107,000 ) 4,107,000 0.43
Balance at March 31, 2001........... 393,000 4,107,000 $0.43

As of March 31, 2001, no options were exercisatle weighted average remaining contractual life agsoximately 10 years, and the
weighted average exercise price was $0.43 per share

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company's 1996 Stock Purchase Plan (the PeréHar) was adopted in June 1996 and became efegion the closing of the
Company's initial public offering in July 1997. Usrdhe Purchase Plan, a total of 500,000 sharesmimon stock were initially reserved for
issuance. At the start of each fiscal year, thebmmof shares of common stock subject to the PsecRéan increases so that 500,000 shares
remain available for issuance. This provision reslin increases of 180,910 and 187,491 shareskiksunder the Purchase Plan during the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2001 and 2000, reispdctDuring fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999, 281,5830,910, and 187,491 shares,
respectively, were issued under the Purchase Plan.

The Purchase Plan permits eligible employees tohase common stock through payroll deductionspaica equal to 85% of the fair market
value of the common stock at the beginning of eéachyear offering period or the end of a six moptinchase period, whichever is lower.
The contribution amount may not exceed ten perckah employee's base compensation, including cesiaris but not including bonuses
and overtime, In the event of a merger of the Comwypaith or into another corporation or the salalbr substantially all of the assets of the
Company, the Purchase Plan provides that a neweisgedate will be set for each option under tha plaich exercise date will occur before
the date of the merger or asset sale.

For the purpose of providing pro forma disclosutbse,estimated fair value of stock purchase riggse estimated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model with the following weighted-averagesamptions:

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999
Expected volatility.............cccceeernnne 141% 70% 71%
Expected dividend yield....................... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate..............cc....... 4.92% 5.84% 4.49%
Weighted average expected option term......... 1.2 S5years 1.25years 0.9 years
Weighted average fair value of options
granted.........cccovvieiiiiiiie i $ 3.00 $ 5.52 $ 181
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Certain pro forma disclosures

The Company accounts for its stock plans in acemweavith the provisions of APB Opinion No. 25. Hammpensation cost for the
Company's stock plans been determined based daithalue of options at their grant dates, as@ibed in FAS 123, the Company's net
loss would have been as follows (in thousands, Eqoer share amounts):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Net loss:

As reported $(74,399) $(24,848) $(19,224)

Pro forma.......ccccoeveiiiiiiiiecee e, $(87,233) $(30,670) $(24,175)
Basic and diluted loss per share:

As reported.........coceeveieeiieeiieecinn $ (2.99) $ (1.38) $ (1.28)
Pro forma.......ccccoeveiiiiiiiec e, $ (3.51) $ (1.70) $ (1.61)

For the purposes of the disclosure above, thev&dire of each of the Company's option grants, eetuthose options issued under the NME
and Centile Plans, has been estimated on the tigtartt using the Black-Scholes pricing model viith following assumptions:

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999
Expected volatility..................... 141% 70% 71%
Expected dividend yield.................. 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate.................. 4.7% to 6.8% 5.5%1t06.4% 4.2% to 5.6%
Weighted average expected option term.... 5 year s 5.3 years 5.3 years
Weighted average fair value of options
granted........cccceeeeeiirenineenns $5.17 $5.12 $2.76

Options granted under the NME and Centile Planmsddiscal year 2001 were also calculated usingBlaek-Scholes pricing model, with tl
following assumptions: dividend yield of 0%, weigtitaverage expected option term of five years;thityaof 70%; and risk free interest
rates of 4.7% to 5.1%. The weighted average fdiresaof NME and Centile options granted duringdls2001 were $0.31 and $0.26,
respectively.

NOTE 12 -- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Savings Plan

In April 1991, the Company adopted a 401(k) savipigs (the Savings Plan) covering substantiallyfits U.S. employees. Eligible
employees may contribute to the Savings Plan fiweir tompensation up to the maximum allowed byitibernal Revenue Service. The
Company's matching contribution is $1,500 per eygxoper calendar year at a dollar for dollar rétine employee contribution. The
matching contributions vest over three years. Tam@any contributed $125,000, $124,000, and $144@@0e Savings Plan during fiscal
2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

Profit Sharing Plan

The Company's profit sharing plan provides for pagta of up to 15% of total quarterly net incomeargfes related to this plan were not
significant for the fiscal years ended March 3102®000 or 1999.
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NOTE 13 -- SEGMENT REPORTING

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2001, @@mpany changed its internal reporting processdslatermined that it had two new
reportable segments, NME and Centile. NME and Gewére new subsidiaries formed by the Companiérthird and fourth quarters,
respectively, of fiscal 2001. The Company's refietdegments have been determined based on the watihe operations and products
offered to customers. The NME segment reflectattizvity associated with sales of semiconductosratated software focused on the IP
telephony and videoconferencing markets, as wedh#ess of media hub systems. The Centile segmBettsactivity associated with the
development and sales of a hosted iPBX solutior. Cbrporate and Other segment includes the aeswviti the Company's Canadian
operations (see Notes 3 and 4), its discontinuad Viproduct line (see Note 14) and the video maimtpbusiness (see Note 5) which was
sold in May 2000. Consequently, the reported resutd amounts for the Corporate and Other segmelnte historical activity of the
discontinued product lines and related operatiensell as certain transactions and residual amastsciated with their sale or cessation.

Intersegment revenues between the reportable ségmvere not significant during the periods presgén&hared support service functions
such as human resources, facilities managemengtaad infrastructure support and overhead areatiésl between the segments. Accour
policies are applied consistently to the segmevitgre applicable.

Due to limitations in the Company's internal repaytsystems, it is not practicable to disclose apeg losses by segment for fiscal 2000 and
1999. The following illustrates results by segmientthe periods during which the information wasitable:

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Revenues:
NME ..ot ... $15,850 $16,308 $15,795
Centile......oveiiiiieeee e 198 70 -
Corporate and Other..........cccccoviiieeens .. 2,180 9,006 15,887
Total revenues.........ccceevveveeneen. .. $18,228 $25,384 $31,682
Gross profit (loss):
NME- ..ot .. $10,792 $13,137 $12,561
Centile ... 71 45 -
Corporate and Other..........ccccoeiiiieens .. 379 3,604 (5,160)
Total gross profit.........ccccceeeenns .. $11,242 $16,786 $ 7,401

Operating losses for the NME, Centile and the Catgoand Other segments for the fiscal year endaatih31, 2001 were $5.7 million,
$13.0 million and $55.8 million, respectively. Teavere no reconciling items between the segmenthéorevenue, gross profit, and
operating loss amounts.
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The following table illustrates net revenues byugpiags of similar products:

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

Videoconferencing semiconductors................... . $9,478 $11,323 $10,302
IP telephony semiconductors..............cccceuee. . 1,878 37 -
Consumer videophone systems............ccccecenee . 105 3,000 12,935
Video monitoring systems..........ccoeeeeveinnnns . 915 6,006 2,952
Media hub systems..........ccccccevvviiiiinnnnns . 432 451
Product revenues............cccocuueee.. . 12,808 20,817 26,189
Videoconferencing licenses and royalties........... . 3,237 4,318 4,248
IP telephony licenses and royalties................ . 825 179
Nonrecurring engineering fees............cccc...... . - 1,245
Hosted iPBX licenses.........cccoveeeiiineeeenne . 198 70 -
Professional services...........cccccvevvveeeenn. . 1,160 -- --
License and other revenues............... . 5,420 4,567 5,493
Total revenues.........cccceevveveeneen. . $18,228 $25,384 $31,682

The following illustrates net revenues by geogratea. Revenues are attributed to countries l@as#uk destination of shipment (in
thousands):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2001 2000 1999

United States........cccoeeeeiiieiiiieiiiens ... $5,632 $13,381 $18,116
EUrope.....cevveeeiiieeeeeieeeeee ... 5862 5808 5,393
Japan.......ccccciiiei .. 1,188 2,351 4,227
Other...ccoiiiiiii e .. 5546 3,844 3,946

$18,228 $25,384 $31,682

No customer represented greater than 10% of tevainues for the fiscal years ended March 31, 22000, and 199¢
NOTE 14 -- INVENTORY CHARGES

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, the Compasjedmined that a combination of factors including high cost of maintaining a consumer
distribution channel, the slower than expected gnawate of the consumer videophone market, antbthgross margins typical of a
consumer electronics product made it unlikely thatconsumer videophone business would be proéitakthe foreseeable future. As a res
the Company announced in April 1999 that it wowddse production of the ViaTV product line and withwd from its distribution channels
over the subsequent several quarters. In conjungtith this decision, the Company recorded a $5llfom charge associated with the write-
off of ViaTV videophone inventories in the fourtbarter of fiscal 1999.

NOTE 15 -- SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On April 6, 2001, the Company, along with Sun Mgystems, Inc., Netscape Communications CanadaBamtsand Inc., and Intraware
Canada Inc., was sued by Milinx Business Services,and Milinx Business Group Inc. (collectiveMilinx) in the Supreme Court of British
Columbia, Canada (the Court). Milinx has allegedt the Company failed to perform certain contraobldigations and knowingly
misrepresented the capabilities of its product® [Blwsuit seeks general, special, and aggravatedgizs
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totaling in excess of Canadian $65 million plugiest, costs, and any other relief which the Caay choose to provide. Management
believes that the Company has valid defenses dghmslaims alleged by Milinx and intends to defehis lawsuit vigorously. However, due
to the nature of litigation and because the lawisuiit the very early pre-discovery stages, the gamy cannot determine the possible loss, if
any, that may ultimately be incurred either in to@text of a trial or a negotiated settlement. &htle Company not prevail in the litigation,
its operating results and financial condition wolbiadversely impacted.
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(IN THOUSANDS)

ADDITIONS  WRITE-OFFS/
BALANCE AT CHARGED TO RECOVERIES OF
BEGINNING OF COSTS AND UNCOLLECTIBLE BALANC

DESCRIPTION PERIOD EXPENSES ACCOUNTS END OF
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
March 31, 1999......cccccvevviieneeiienn. $610 $ 86 $10 $68
March 31, 2000........ccccceevvvereeiiirnnnnn. 686 (200) 44 44
March 31, 2001......ccccceeevviiieeeeennen. 442 25 78 38
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2001

Total revenues........c.ccceeeueenes
Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Research and development............ 4,866
Selling, general, and

administrative.................... 5,189
In-process research and

development..........cccooceeenne --
Amortization of intangibles.. . 3,612

Restructuring charge 33,316
Total operating expenses...... 46,983
Loss from operations (44,269)
Other income (expense), net. (94)
Loss before income taxes.............. (44,363)
Provision for income taxes. . 5

Net loss before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle...... (44,368)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle................ -

Net10SS....cccveviiiiiiciiiiens $(44,368)

Net loss per share:
Basic and diluted................... $ (1.67)
Shares used in per share calculations:
Basic and diluted................... 26,541

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

(UNAUDITED)

QUARTER ENDED

DEC. 31, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30, MARCH 31, DEC.
2000 2000 2000 2000 19
$ 4,104 $ 3,892 $5823 $6,542 $6,
1,948 1,765 1,578 1,806 1,
2,156 2,127 4,245 4,736 4,
4,868 4,788 4,214 3,772 2,
4,497 4,728 3,699 10,389 3,
- 4563 - -
3,612 3,573 190 190
12,977 17,652 8,03 14,351 6,
(10,821) (15,525) (3,858) (9,615) (2,
67 554 645 231
(10,754) (14,971) (3,213) (9,384) (2,
- L 12 54
(10,754) (14,971) (3,225) (9,438) (2,
(1,081 - - -
$(11,835) $(14,971) $(3,225) $(9,438) $(2,
$ (0.47) $ (0.60) $(0.14) $(0.47) $(0
25,337 24,923 22,582 20,023 18,
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31, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30,
99 1999 1999

238 $6,710 $ 5,894

993 1,446 3,353
245 5,264 2,541
854 2,860 2,423
545 3,786 3,587
- - 10,100
189 185 50
588 6,831 16,160
343) (1,567) (13,619)
109 195 1,881
234) (1,372) (11,738)
- 66 -
234) (1,438) (11,738)

234) $(1,438) $(11,738)

12) $(0.08) $ (0.72)

035 17,886 16,341



ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
None.
PART llI

Certain information required by Part Ill is omitte]dm this Report on Form 10-K in that the Registnaill file its definitive Proxy Statement
for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the 20008 Statement) pursuant to Regulation 14A of theusisges Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, not later than 120 days after the enldediigcal year covered by this Report, and ceitdormation included in the 2001 Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this is included in 2@01 Proxy Statement under the captions "Elecaifddirectors -- Nominees," "Additional
Information -- Executive Officers" and "Additionkdformation -- Section 16(a) Beneficial OwnershipgRrting Compliance” and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is includedthe 2001 Proxy Statement under the captions tieleof Directors -- Compensation of
Directors," "Additional Information -- Executive Ggpensation" and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item is set farihthe 2001 Proxy Statement under the caption "#alatl Information -- Security
Ownership" and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item is set farththe 2001 Proxy Statement under the captions Ithatl Information -- Certain
Relationships and Transactions," "Additional Infation -- Employment Contracts and Termination offfsgment and Change in Control
Arrangements,” "Additional Information -- ComperisatCommittee Interlocks and Insider Participatid@dditional Information -- Report
of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Doex’ and "Additional Information -- Stock Performee Graph" and is incorporated
herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a)(1) Financial Statements.
The information required by this item is includedtem 8.
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules.
The information required by this item is includedtem 8.
(a)(3) Exhibits.

The documents listed on the Exhibit Index appeaaingages 63 - 64 of this Report are filed herevitbpies of the exhibits listed in the
Exhibit Index will be furnished, upon request, tders or beneficial owners of the Company's comstook.
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(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

The Company filed two reports on Form 8-K during tluarter ended March 31, 2001. Information regaythie items reported on is as
follows:

DATE ITEMS REPORT

February 7, 2001 The Company reported the resignat

ions of Paul Voois, as

Chief Executive Officer, Robert H
Officer and member of the Board o
Calonne, as Senior Vice President
General Manager of the Company's
Company also reported the resigna
employees of the Company's Montre

The Company also reported the app
as Interim Chief Executive Office
Operating Officer and member of t

The Company reported its results
month periods ending December 31,

January 3, 2001 The Company reported a change in

ending on the Thursday closest to
on the last calendar day of March
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abibi, as Chief Operating
f Directors, and Jean-Luc
for Business Operations/
Montreal office. The
tions of approximately 50
al office.

ointments of Joe Parkinson
r and Bryan Martin as Chief
he Board of Directors.

for the three and nine
2000.

its fiscal year from a year
March 31 to a year ending
, beginning in fiscal 2001.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyist Netergy Networks, Inc., a Delaw
corporation, has duly caused this Report on ForfK 10 be signed on its behalf by the undersignieerdunto duly authorized, in the City of
Santa Clara, State of California, on May 24, 2001.

NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.

By: /s/ JOE PARKI NSON

Joe Parki nson,
Chai rman & Chi ef Executive O ficer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT, that each pensbiose signature appears below constitutes andrapplne Parkinson and
David M. Stoll, jointly and severally, his attorrein-fact, each with the power of substitution, fiim in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this Report on Form 10-K, and talidiesame, with exhibits thereto and other docusientonnection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ragjfgimd confirming all that each of said attorneyfaat, or his substitute or substitutes, 1
do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesEmtiange Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K Iesn signed by the following persons
in the capacities and on the date indicated:

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/sl JOE PARKINSON Chairman of the Board and May 24, 2001
Chief Executive Officer

Joe Parkinson (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ DAVID M. STOLL Chief Financial Officer, May 24, 2001
Vice President, Finance and
David M. Stoll Secretary (Principal Financial
and

Accounting Officer)

/sl LEE CAMP Director May 24, 2001
Lee Camp -

/sl BERND GIROD Director May 24, 2001
Bernd Girod B

/s/ GUY L. HECKER Director May 24, 2001

Guy L. Hecker, Jr.

/s/ CHRISTOS LAGOMICHOS Director May 24, 2001

Christos Lagomichos

/sl JOE MARKEE Director May 24, 2001
Joe Markee
/sl BRYAN MARTIN Director, President and May 24, 2001

Chief Operating Officer
Bryan Martin

/s/ WILLIAM TAI Director May 24, 2001

William Tai
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EXHIBIT INDEX

EXHIBIT

NUMBER EXHIBIT TITLE

2.1(c) Stock Exchange Agreement, dated as of Ma
among 8x8, Inc., Odisei S.A. and the Sec
therein and the agreements related there

2.2(g) Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of Ma
among Netergy, U/Force, all of the share
and indirect owners of the shares of U/F

3.1(a) Form of Amended and Restated Certificate
Registrant.

3.2(a) Bylaws of Registrant.

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and
of Incorporation.

4.1(d) Securities Purchase Agreement by and amo
Ltd. and Fisher Capital Ltd. (collective
8x8, Inc. dated December 15, 1999, with
Exhibits.

4.2(d) Registration Rights Agreement by and amo
Buyers dated December 15, 1999.

4.3(d) Form of Series A Warrant by and among 8x
FleetBoston Robertson Stephens, Inc. dat
1999.

4.4(d) Form of Series B Warrant by and among 8x
FleetBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. date

4.5(d) Registration Rights Agreement by and amo
FleetBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. date

4.6(f) Common Stock Purchase Agreement by and a
STMicroelectronics dated January 24, 200

4.7(f) Form of Investor Rights Agreement by and
STMicroelectronics dated January 24, 200

10.1(a) Form of Indemnification Agreement.

10.2(a) 1992 Stock Option Plan, as amended, and
Agreement.

10.3(a) Key Personnel Plan, as amended, and form
Agreement.

10.4()) 1996 Stock Plan, as amended, and form of
Agreement.

10.5(a) 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as am
Subscription Agreement.

10.6()) 1996 Director Option Plan, as amended, a
Option Agreement.

10.7(a) Amended and Restated Registration Rights
of September 6, 1996 among the Registran
holders of the Registrant's Common Stock

10.8(a) Facility lease dated as of July 3, 1990
Sobrato Interests, a California Limited
Registrant, as amended.

10.9(a) Promissory Note between Sandra L. Abbott
dated June 29, 1996.

10.10(a) Promissory Note between David M. Harper
June 29, 1996.

10.11(a) Promissory Note between Bryan R. Martin
June 29, 1996.

10.12(a) Promissory Note between Chris McNiffe an
June 29, 1996.

10.13(a) Promissory Note between Mike Noonen and
June 29, 1996.

10.14(a) Promissory Note between Samuel T. Wang a
June 29, 1996.

10.15(b) Warrant Number CS-01 issued by 8x8, Inc.
University on February 17, 1998.

10.16(b) Fifth Amendment to Lease dated January 2
Sobrato Interests and the Registrant.
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EXHIBIT

NUMBER EXHIBIT TITLE

10.17(b) Landlord's Consent to Sublease dated Feb
Sobrato Interests, Bay Networks, Inc. an

10.18(e) 1999 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, as

ruary 23, 1998 among
d the Registrant.
amended, and form of

Stock Option Agreement.

10.19(h) Asset Purchase Agreement by and among 8x 8, Inc. and
Interlogix, Inc. dated May 19, 2000.
10.20(h) Technology License Agreement by and amon g 8x8, Inc. and

Interlogix, Inc. dated May 19, 2000.

10.21(k) UForce Company -- Societe UForce Amended
Stock Option Plan.

10.22  Settlement Agreement and Release by and
and Keith Barraclough dated July 10, 200

10.23  Severance Agreement and Mutual Release b
Netergy Networks, Inc., Netergy Networks

and Restated 1999

between 8x8, Inc.

0

y and between
Canada Corporation

and Dominique Pitteloud dated October 13 , 2000.
21.1 Subsidiaries of Registrant.
23.1 Consent of Independent Accountants.
241 Power of Attorney (see page 62).

(a) Incorporated by reference to identically numbe red exhibits
filed in response to Item 16 (a), "Exhibits," of the
registrant's Registration Statement on Form S- 1 (File No.
333-15627), as amended, declared effective on July 1, 1997.

(b) Incorporated by reference to identically numbe red exhibits
filed in response to Item 14 (a), "Exhibits," of the
Registrant's Report on Form 10-K for the fisca | year ended
March 31, 1998.

(c) Incorporated by reference to identically numbe red exhibits

filed in response to Item 7, "Exhibits," of th
Report on Form 8-K dated June 7, 1999 and 8-K/
9, 1999.

e Registrant's
A dated August

(d) Incorporated by reference to identically numbe red exhibits
filed in response to Item 6(a), "Exhibits," of the
Registrant's Report on Form 10-Q for the fisca | quarter
ended December 31, 1999.

(e) Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 filed in response

to Item 8, "Exhibits," of the Registrant's Sta
S-8 dated July 17, 2000.

(f) Incorporated by reference to identically numbe
filed in response to Item 7, "Exhibits," of th
Report on Form 8-K filed on February 16, 2000.

(g) Incorporated by reference to identically numbe
filed in response to Item 7, "Exhibits," of th
Report on Form 8-K filed on May 23, 2000.

(h) Incorporated by reference to identically numbe
filed in response to Item 7, "Exhibits," of th
Report on Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2000.

tement on Form

red exhibits
e Registrant's

red exhibits
e Registrant's

red exhibits
e Registrant's

(i) Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 filed in response
to Item 8, "Exhibits," of the Registrant's Rep ort on Form
S-8 dated November 7, 2000.

() Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 filed in response
to Item 8, "Exhibits," of the Registrant's Rep ort on Form
S-8 dated November 7, 2000.

(k) Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 filed in response

to Item 8, "Exhibits," of the Registrant's Sta
S-8 dated July 17, 2000.
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EXHIBIT 3.3

STATE OF DELAWARE
SECRETARY OF STATE
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 09:00 AM 08/15/2000
001415701 - 2676673

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
AMENDED AND RESTATED

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
8X8, INC.

8X8, Inc., a corporation organized and existingerrahd by virtue of the General Corporation Lawhef State of Delaware, DOES HEREBY
CERTIFY:

FIRST: That, by written consent of the Board ofdgiiors of said corporation as of April 18, 200@otations were duly adopted setting forth
proposed amendments to the Certificate of Incotporaf said corporation, declaring said amendmantse advisable and directing its
officers to submit said amendments to the stocldrsldf said corporation for consideration ther@bie resolutions setting forth the proposed
amendments are as follows:

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be advisable and in tist inéerest of the Corporation and its stockholdeas the Corporation's Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation be amendethamge the name of the Corporation to Netergy Nisy Inc. and to increase the number
of authorized shares of Common Stock;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Article 1 ¢fet Corporation's Amended and Restated Certifickltecorporation be amende
to read as follows:

"l. The name of this corporation is Netergy Netwsyriac. (the "Corporation")."

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the first paragraph of AgitV of the Corporation's Amended and Restatedif@zte of Incorporation be
amended to read as follows:

"IV. This corporation is authorized to issue twasdes of shares to be designated respectively CorSBtock and Preferred Stock. Each share
of Common Stock shall have a par value of $0.0@lLesath share of Preferred Stock shall have a piae wé $0.001. The total number of
shares of Common Stock tt



corporation shall have authority to issue is 100,000, and the total number of shares of Prefe8tedk this Corporation shall have authority
to issue is 5,000,000."

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers of the Corparatbe, and each of them hereby is, authorized pgraped and directed, on behalf of
the Corporation, to submit the foregoing amendmemntke stockholders of the Corporation for consitien thereof; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, that following approval of thedgoing amendments by the stockholders of the Catiom, the officers of the
Corporation be, and each of them hereby is, ambdriempowered and directed, on behalf of the Catjom, to prepare or cause to be
prepared and to execute a Certificate of Amendmoktite Corporation's Amended and Restated Certéfioflncorporation, to file or cause
be filed said Certificate of Amendment with the &ghre Secretary of State, and to execute such dtioeiments and take such other actions
as such officer or officers shall deem necessaprapriate or advisable in order to carry out thitert and purposes of the foregoing
resolutions.

SECOND: That, thereafter, by written consent ofiblers of more than 50% of the issued and oustgrshares of Common Stock and
Special Voting Stock, voting together as a singgss; of said corporation, the necessary numbsharfes required by statute were voted in
favor of the amendment.

THIRD: That said amendment was duly adopted in mtzotce with the provisions of Section 242 of thex&al Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 8X8, INC. has caused this fiedte to be signed by David M. Stoll, its Chieh&ncial Officer, Vice President a
Secretary this 14th day of August, 2000.

8X8, Inc.

By: /s/ David M Stoll

David M Stoll
Chi ef Financial Oficer, Vice President
and Secretary
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STATE OF DELAWARE

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATH DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A
TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE RESTATED CERTIFICATEG8XS8, INC.", CHANGING ITS NAME FROM "8X8, INC." D
"NETERGY NETWORKS, INC.", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ONHE FIFTEENTH DAY OF AUGUST, A.D. 2000, AT 9 O'CLOCK
A.M.

A FILED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED TO THE NEW CASTLE
COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS.

[ SEAL] /'s/ EDWARD J. FREEL
Edward J. Freel, Secretary of State
AUTHENTI CATI ON: 0623475

DATE: 08-16-00



EXHIBIT 10.22
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

This Settlement Agreement and Release ("Agreementiipde by and between 8 X 8, INC., a Delawarparation (the "Company"), and
KEITH BARRACLOUGH ("Employee").

WHEREAS, Employee was employed by the Company aesitRent and Chief Operating Officer;

WHEREAS, the Company and Employee (collectivelgnefd to as "the Parties") have entered into anl&mpent, Confidential Information
and Invention Assignment Agreement (the "Confidaityi Agreement");

WHEREAS, Employee has been granted stock optiorsuput to certain Stock Option Agreements betwkeerCompany and Employee
dated January 27, 1995 (15,000 shares), Decemb&®4% (20,000 shares), June 24, 1996 (20,000sh&eptember 21, 1998 (170,000
shares), September 21, 1998 (30,000 shares), Segt&th, 1998 (50,000 shares), September 21, 1%980@ shares), October 19, 1998
(25,000 shares), April 9, 1999 (15,000 sharesy, 20] 1999 (20,000 shares), and May 16, 2000 (200sbares) (together the "Stock Option
Agreements"); and

WHEREAS, the Company, on the one hand, and Emplayethe other hand, have mutually agreed to teataithe employment relationsh

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual preesimade herein, the Company, on the one hand;rapbbyee on the other ha
hereby agree as follows:

1. Resignation. Upon acceptance of this Agreemeihé Parties, Employee resigns from Employee'd@mpent at the Company effective
as of June 19, 2000 (the "Resignation Date"). leurtBmployee shall also be deemed to have resigosdthe Company's Board of Directors
effective June 19, 2000.

2. Consideration.

(a) Severance. Immediately following the date omctvithe parties execute this Agreement, (the "Hffedate"), the Company agrees to pay
Employee, as severance, a lump sum of Ninety Fhau$and Dollars ($95,000), representing his cumaetof pay for six months of work.
Six months after the Effective Date, the Compangeag to pay Employee, as additional severanceg@itianal lump sum of Ninety-Five
Thousand Dollars ($95,000), minus withholding,@glas Employee has not accepted employment vaitimgany listed on the attached
Exhibit A, whether as an employee, independentreattr, consultant, or otherwise ("Payment Perio88id second $95,000 payment is
expressly conditioned on the Employee's agreenwrtbraccept employment with any company listedghibit A for a period expiring one
year following the date of Employee's resignatiemployee agrees that if he accepts employmentssitbed above, with an Exhibit
company after the receipt of his second $95



payment, but before the completion of the one pesiod following the Resignation Date, he shalbbégated to repay the Company on a
rata basis for each month he is so employed, pedvitiat only the second $95,000 payment shall bestto repayment (at a rate of 16.6%
per month worked less withholding). Employee agteawotify Company immediately upon his earning e&from a subsequent employer
and his failure to do so will constitute a breaélthis Agreement. Employee understands that thef2om shall issue a Form W-2 to
Employee for said payments.

(b) Vesting of Stock. On the Effective Date, thetieéa agree that for purposes of determining thalmer of shares of the Company's common
stock which Employee is entitled to purchase framm@ompany pursuant to the exercise of outstaraftigns, the Employee shall, as of the
Resignation Date, be vested as to that numbertarophares as to which Employee would have bestedainder the Stock Option
Agreements had Employee remained employed witiCtdrapany through and until January 31, 2001 (thest®@ Option Shares"). Said
vesting shall include vesting under the May 16,@88ck Option Agreement, notwithstanding any vestequirements or cliff provisions to
the contrary. The Parties agree that the total murabshares that shall be vested as of the Effe@ate, pursuant to the terms set forth at

is Three Hundred Forty-Five Thousand, Eight Hundiatety Two (345,892) shares (see attached ExBipiTo the extent option shares are
not vested (including any accelerated vesting @nsto the preceding sentence) on the Resignatate, Ehey shall be immediately forfeited
back to the Company's Stock Option Plan upon tregRation Date. The Vested Option Shares shalll@@te and become immediately
exercisable. The exercise of any Vested Optione&hsinall continue to be subject to the terms anditons of the Company's Stock Option
Plan and the Stock Option Agreements. Except asrwtbe provided herein, the terms of the Stock @pAigreements remain in full force
and effect. The Company agrees that the CompalligisKout period" shall not apply to Employee, amdgfoyee acknowledges that he must
comply with all applicable securities laws and fagjons. Further, to the extent permitted by aggile law, Employee's ISOs shall vest prior
to his NSOs.

(c) Loan. The Company agrees to extend to Emplaylean not to exceed the amount of Eight Hundrea®tg-Three Thousand, Four
Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars ($873,487.00). Theppse of said loan is to enable Employee to exehitseested employee stock options.
The terms of the loan are reflected in Exhibit @etted.

(d) COBRA/Benefits. Employee and each eligible aefemt who constitutes a qualified beneficiary, efnéd in Section 4980B(g)(1) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, willigéble to continue applicable benefits coveragdar the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended ("COBRA")thin the time period prescribed
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pursuant to COBRA, Company agrees to reimburse &eplfor any COBRA premiums for such benefits tigtoand including June 20,
2001. The Company further agrees to reimburse Eyapléor premiums for life insurance, through anduding June 20, 2001, to the extent
Employee converts his group policy to an individpalicy.

(e) Voicemail and E-mail. The Company agrees, fpedod of (3) months following the Effective Date,provide an autoresponse on
Employee's enail address advising the sender of any messag€&ihgloyee is no longer employed with the Compamy providing any nev
e-mail address for the Employee. The autorespdraérsot state any reason for the termination eféemployment relationship between the
parties. In turn, Employee agrees to notify the @any about any calls or messages he has receilaithgeto Company business, if any.

(f) Health Club Membership. The Company agreesapits portion of Employee's Decathalon Club mershigrdues from the Effective De
through June 20, 2001.

(9) Expense Reimbursement. The Company agreegbuese Employee for all reasonable unreimbursesihiess expenses within two (2)
weeks after he submits documentation of the expelgaployee agrees to provide any such businesnegmlocumentation not later than
thirty (30) days from the Effective Date.

(h) Sabbatical. The Company agrees to pay Emplbigeaccrued sabbatical.

3. Confidential Information. Employee understartus the Confidentiality Agreement remains in faltde and effect, and agrees to continue
to comply with its terms and conditions. Employbalkreturn to the Company all Company property emwffidential and proprietary
information in Employee's possession not later thanEffective Date of this Agreement.

4. Payment of Salary. Employee acknowledges angsepts that the Company has paid all salary, wagesises, accrued vacation,
commissions, stock options and any and all otheefitis due to Employee, except as otherwise pravfdein this Agreement.

5. No Reinstatement or Reemployment. Employee agheg, as further consideration and inducement@iconsideration Employee is
receiving herein, Employee will not, at any timele future, apply for, or in any other matter seeinstatement or reemployment by the
Company, and that the Company may refuse to englogemploy Employee, and that doing so shall na gse to any claim or cause of
action of any nature whatsoever, nor may any sutttought by Employee against Company or its agamgsg out of any such refusal to
reemploy.

6. Release of Claims. The Parties agree that tlegding consideration represents settlement irofudlll outstanding obligations owed to e
other. The Parties, on their own
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behalf, and on behalf of their respective heimilamembers, executors, officers, directors, emeés, investors, shareholders,
administrators, affiliates, divisions, subsidiaripgedecessor and successor corporations and sskayeby fully and forever release each
other and their respective heirs, family membexscators, officers, directors, employees, investeinareholders, administrators, affiliates,
divisions, subsidiaries, predecessor and successporations and assigns, from, and agree note@aah other concerning, any claim, duty,
obligation or cause of action relating to any nratf any kind, whether presently known or unknosugpected or unsuspected, that either
party may possess arising from any omissions,adtscts that have occurred up, until and including Effective Date of this Agreement
including, without limitation,

(a) any and all claims relating to or arising fre&mployee's employment relationship with the Compamg the termination of that
relationship;

(b) any and all claims relating to, or arising froBmployee's right to purchase, or actual purclodsdares of stock of the Company,
including, without limitation, any claims for frauthisrepresentation, breach of fiduciary duty, breaf duty under applicable state corporate
law, and securities fraud under any state or fddiang

(c) any and all claims for wrongful terminationevhployment; termination in violation of public pofi discrimination; breach of contract,
both express and implied; breach of a covenanbotidaith and fair dealing, both express and inthlgromissory estoppel; negligent or
intentional infliction of emotional distress; neggint or intentional misrepresentation; negligerihtentional interference with contract or
prospective economic advantage; unfair businesgipes; defamation; libel; slander; negligencespeal injury; assault; battery; invasion of
privacy; false imprisonment; and conversion;

(d) any and all claims for violation of any federstlate or municipal statute, including, but notited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Age Disciiration in Employment Act of 1967, the AmericanshwDisabilities Act of 1990, the Fair
Labor Standards Act, the Employee Retirement Inc8ewurity Act of 1974, The Worker Adjustment andrRiaing Notification Act, Older
Workers Benefit Protection Act; the California FRimployment and Housing Act, and Labor Code se@iih et seq. and section 970, et
seq.;

(e) any and all claims for violation of the fedemal any state, constitution;
(f) any and all claims arising out of any other $aand regulations relating to employment or empleytaiscrimination; and
(9) any and all claims for attorneys' fees andsost

The Parties agree that the release set forth srstigtion shall be and remain in effect in all ee$pas a complete general release as to the
matters released. This release does not extend/toldigations incurred under this Agreement. Samyl, this release does not apply to any
claims Employee may have for indemnification by @@mpany under any applicable agreement, insuraoléey (including that providing
coverage for the actions of Company directors dfidens), Company byaws, or under any applicable statute. FurtherQbmpany agrees
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indemnify Employee in the same manner as its aifferers and directors. Finally, nothing stateddieishall adversely affect any rights
Employee may have under the Company's 401(k) plan.

7. Civil Code Section 1542. The Parties repredmattthey are not aware of any claims against etiwdr except for those claims that are
released by this Agreement. Moreover, the Partieseaand represent that it is within their conteatiph that they may have claims against
each other of which, at the time of the executibthis Agreement, they have no knowledge or suspidbut that this Agreement extends to
claims in any way based upon, connected with @tedlto the matters described in paragraph 6, whettnot known, claimed or suspected
by the Parties. The Parties acknowledge that theyaailiar with the provisions of California Civ@ode Section 1542, which provides as
follows:

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICHHE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN
HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WKIH IF KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED
HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.

The Parties, being aware of said code sectionaagdther similar state or federal statute, agveexpressly waive any rights they may have
thereunder, as well as under any other statuteronmn law principles of similar effect.

8. Confidentiality. The Parties agree to use thest efforts to maintain in confidence the exiséeofcthis Agreement, the contents and terms
of this Agreement, and the consideration for thigeg®ement (hereinafter collectively referred to @sttlement Information™). The Parties a¢
to take every reasonable precaution to preventadige of any Settlement Information to third pestiand agrees that there will be no
publicity, directly or indirectly, concerning anygtlement Information. The Parties further agregake every precaution to disclose
Settlement Information only to those attorneyspacatants, governmental entities (including the &dea Exchange Commission) and farr
members who have a reasonable need to know ofSeitlement Information.

9. No Cooperation. Employee agrees that Employéierati counsel or assist any attorneys or the@rib in the presentation or prosecution of
any disputes, differences, grievances, claims,gasror complaints by any third party against tben@any and/or any officer, director,
employee, agent, representative, stockholder orregy of the Company, unless under a subpoenaier oburt order to do so.

10. Non-Disparagement. Employee agrees to refram iny defamation, libel or slander of the Compang its officers, directors,
employees, investors, stockholders, administratdfiéiates, divisions, subsidiaries, predecessat successor corporations, and assigns, or
tortious interference with the contracts and rel&hips of the Company and its officers, directersployees, investors, stockholders,
administrators, affiliates, divisions, subsidiaripeedecessor and successor corporations, anahas$ige Company agrees that it will advise
its executive management team to refrain from afgrdation, libel or slander of the Employee or frimmiously interfering with the
contracts and business relationships of the Employe

-5



11. No Admission of Liability. The Parties understaand acknowledge that this Agreement constitesmpromise and settlement of
disputed claims, and is made to buy peace anddfatimer reason. No action taken by the Partiesteve either of them, either previously or
in connection with this Agreement shall be deemecbostrued to be (a) an admission of the trutfalsity of any claims heretofore made or
(b) an acknowledgement or admission by either pafrgny fault or liability whatsoever to the othmarty or to any third party.

12. Costs. The Parties shall each bear their owtscexpert fees, attorneys' fees and other feeisread in connection with this Agreement.

13. Arbitration. The Parties agree that any andiafputes arising out of the terms of this Agreetntneir interpretation, and any of the
matters herein released, shall be subject to bjnalihitration in Santa Clara County before the Aozar Arbitration Association under its
National Rules for the Resolution of Employmentites, or by a judge to be mutually agreed upos. Hérties agree that the prevalil

party in any arbitration shall be entitled to injtime relief in any court of competent jurisdictiomenforce the arbitration award. The parties
shall each pay one-half of the costs and experfsasch arbitration, and each Party shall separgt&yits counsel fees and expenses. The
Parties may apply to any court of competent jucisadin for a temporary restraining order, preliminarjunction, or other interim or
conservatory relief, as necessary, without bredc¢his arbitration agreement and without abridgmafrthe powers of the arbitrator.

14. Authority. The Company represents and warrdnaisthe undersigned has the authority to act tvalbef the Company and to bind the
Company and all that may claim through it to theneand conditions of this Agreement. Employeeeasgnts and warrants that Employee
has the capacity to act on Employee's own behdlibanbehalf of all whom might claim through Empleyte bind them to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement. Each Party warrant @presents that there are no liens or clainigmfr assignments in law or equity or
otherwise of or against any of the claims or caedestion released herein.

15. No Representations. The Parties representhtépthave had the opportunity to consult with daraey, and have carefully read and
understand the scope and effect of the provisibtisi®Agreement. Neither party has relied upon spresentations or statements made by
the other party hereto which are not specificadtyferth in this Agreement. The Parties understhatiafter signing this Agreement, they
cannot proceed against any person mentioned iithitrespect to or on account of the matters refetoan it. The Parties further covenant not
to sue each other, or to participate or aid insuiyor proceeding (or to execute, seek to imposkect or recover upon, or otherwise enforce
or accept any judgment, decision, award, warraattachment) upon any claim released by the Partidsr paragraphs 6 and 7.

16. Severability. In the event that any provisiendof becomes or is declared by a court of compg@igrdiction to be illegal, unenforceable
or void, this Agreement shall continue in full ferand effect without said provision.
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17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, taken togettith the Stock Option Agreements and the Confiiddity Agreement, represents the
entire agreement and understanding between the &ompn the one hand, and Employee on the otheigdplete, final and exclusive
embodiment of their agreements concerning Empleyagaration from, and compensation by, the Compadysupersedes and replaces any
and all prior and contemporaneous agreements,sepiaEions and understandings regarding said dabjeus Agreement is executed

without reliance on any promise, warranty or repnéations by any party or any representative offaryy other than those expressly
contained in this Agreement. Notwithstanding thevisions of California Evidence Code

Section 1152, this Agreement is admissible for pags of enforcement.

18. No Oral Madification. This Agreement may notddeered, amended, modified or otherwise changedhynrespect or particular except by
a writing signed by Employee and the Chief Exeautdfficer of the Company. Any such writing mustrbéfied by the Board of Directors of
the Company.

19. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be goveimgthe laws of the State of California.
20. Effective Date. This Agreement is effectivetba date that it has been signed by both Parties'gffective Date").

21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executedunterparts, and each counterpart shall havsaime force and effect as an original
shall constitute an effective, binding agreementh@npart of each of the undersigned. The Agreemmarytbe transmitted by facsimile or
otherwise.

22. Voluntary Execution of Agreement. This Agreefrisrexecuted voluntarily and without any duressimdue influence on the part or bel
of the Parties hereto, with the full intent of deng all claims. The Parties acknowledge that:

(a) They have read this Agreement;

(b) They have been represented in the preparategutiation, and execution of the Agreement byllegansel of their own choice or that
they have voluntarily declined to seek such coynsel

(c) They know and understand the terms and consegaaf this Agreement and of the releases it amtand
(d) They are fully aware of the legal and bindiffiget of this Agreement.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executedAliseement on the respective dates set forth below.
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Dat ed:

July 10, 2000

KEITH BARRACLOUGH, an individual

Dat ed:

July 10, 2000

8 x 8, INC.

By:

By:

/'s/ DAVID STOLL

David Stoll
Chi ef Financial Oficer

/'s/ KEI TH BARRACLOUGH

Kei t h Barracl ough



Analog Devices
Audiocodes
Broadcom
Broadsoft
Clarent

IPVerse
Komodo

Lucent Microelectronics
Mediatrix

Mitel

PingTel
Radvision
Sylantro
Syndeo
Tl/Telogy
Trillium

Tundo
Vocaldata
VocalTec

EXHIBIT A



KEITH BARRACLOUGH
OPTIONS EXERCISABLE AS OF JANUARY 31, 2001

GRANT OPTIONS OPTIONS GRA NT EXERCISE EXTENDED
DATE OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE TYP E PRICE EXERCISE PRICE
1/27/1995 6,000 6,000 Incenti ve $0.500 $ 3,000.00
12/11/1995 10,000 10,000 Incenti ve $0.500 5,000.00
6/24/1996 20,000 20,000 Incenti ve $0.500 10,000.00
9/21/1998 122,509 122,509 Non-qua lified  $3.000 367,527.00
9/21/1998 17,491 17,491 Incenti ve $3.000 52,473.00
9/21/1998 26,249 26,249 Non-qua lified  $3.000 78,747.00
9/21/1998 3,751 625 Incenti ve $3.000 1,875.00
9/21/1998 25,000 25,000 Non-qua lified  $3.000 75,000.00
9/21/1998 31,549 31,549 Incenti ve $3.130 98,748.37
9/21/1998 18,451 18,451 Non-qua lified  $3.130 57,751.63
10/19/1998 17,709 6,771 Incenti ve $2.440 16,521.24
10/19/1998 7,291 7,291 Non-qua lified  $2.440 17,790.04
4/9/1999 7,500 7,500 Non-qua lified  $4.500 33,750.00
4/9/1999 7,500 5,624 Incenti ve $ 4.500 25,308.00
7/20/1999 15,000 2,499 Incenti ve $ 4.000 9,996.00
7/20/1999 5,000 5,000 Non-qua lified  $4.000 20,000.00
5/16/2000 200,000 33,333 Non-qua lified  $12.563 418,762.48
541,000 345,892 $1,292,249.76

(1) Assumes vesting of 1/48th/month beginning athefdate of gran



EXHIBIT 10.23
SEVERANCE AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE

This Severance Agreement and Mutual Release ("Agea#’) is made by and between Netergy Networks, (the "Company"), Netergy
Networks Canada Corporation ("Netergy Canada")ahinique Pitteloud ("Employee”

WHEREAS, Employee was employed by the Companysagide-President of Marketing;
WHEREAS, the Company and Employee have enteredaiddon-Competition Agreement (the "Non-Competithgreement”);

WHEREAS, the Company and Employee have enterecaimmployment and Stock Restriction Agreementterpurchase of the
Company's common stock (the "Stock Restriction &grent");

WHEREAS, the Company and Employee have enteredsitutok Option Agreement(s) for the purchase ofGbepany's common stock (the
"Option Agreements(s)");

WHEREAS the Company and Employee have enteredai®elocation Program Agreement (the "Relocatiorgfmm") wherein Employee
was assigned to work for Netergy Canada,;

WHEREAS, the Company and Employee have mutuallgedjto terminate the employment relationship aedisignment to Netergy
Canada and to release each other from any claisiagafrom or related to the employment relatiopséund/or the assignment to Netergy
Canada;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual preesimade herein, the Company, Netergy Canada apbbjae (collectively referre
to as "the Parties") hereby agree as follows:

1. Resignation. Employee resigned from his employméth the Company and assignment to Netergy Caeffgctive October 13, 2000 (t
"Resignation Date").

2. Consideration.

(a) Severance. The Company agrees to pay Emplayé®) snonth's severance for the time period Octdlge 2000 through April 14, 2001
(the "payment period") at the rate of thirteen gemd seven hundred and fifty U.S. Dollars ($13,080per month, less applicable
withholding, in accordance with the Company's plynactices. If Employee is still unemployed ardiding in Montreal, Canada as of Aj
14, 2001, Company will continue to pay Employethatrate of thirteen thousand seven hundred atydUifS. Dollars ($13,750.00) per
month, so long as Employee remains unemployedesiding in Montreal, Canada, up to and includingeJ80, 2001. As of the Resignation
Date, Employee will not be entitled to any furtlaecrual of any employee benefits, including, butlimited to, vacation benefits,
commissions or bonuses.

For purposes of this Section, Employee shall baired to notify the Company in the event that hemoences new employment and/or
moves out of Montreal, Canada at any time pric



June 30, 2001. To ensure continued severance payifnem April 14, 2001 to June 30, 2001, if appliea Employee shall be required to
notify the Company of his employment and residéstatus each month on the first day of the mom#egding the scheduled severance
payment. Required natifications shall be directediine Grenier at Netergy Canada, 1001 De Maisorm@uest, Montreal, Quebec,
Canada, H3A 3C8.

(b) Stock Restriction Agreement. As of the TermimaiDate, the Company agrees to waive its Repuectgsion, as defined in the Stock
Restriction Agreement, as to any unvested shareedCompany's common stock subject to the Stoskrieon Agreement. For sake of
clarity, all previously unvested shares hereby bezoested shares as of the Termination Date. Thep@oy hereby agrees that upon receipt
of share certificates representing such vestedeshamwill instruct its transfer agent to reissumv certificates that will include the following
restrictive legend:

"THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE BER ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT AND NOT WITH A VIEW
TO, OR IN CONNECTION WITH, THE SALE OF DISTRIBUTIONHEREOF. NO SUCH SALE OR DISPOSITION MAY BE
EFFECTED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENRELATED THERETO OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
SATISFACTORY TO NETERGY NETWORKS, INC. THAT SUCH RESTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITY
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED."

To the extent this Agreement conflicts with therterof the Stock Restriction Agreement, this Agreeinseipersedes and replaces such terms.

(c) Rights of Stock Option Agreement. Employee kshalentitled to exercise his right to purchaseveisted shares within 270 calendar days
of the Resignation Date granted pursuant to thegaf the Option Agreement(s) and the Company'skS@iption Plan. An additional 6250
shares shall be deemed immediately vested andisxble at an exercise price of 12.5630 U.S. $ jpares so long as such right is exercised
within 270 calendar days of the Resignation Datapleyee shall not have the right to exercise anhefremaining shares granted pursua
the Option Agreements(s) and such shares shatirbeited. To the extent Employee fails to exertiseoption as to the accelerated shares
within 270 calendar days of the Resignation Ddtte aption shall terminate and shall not theredfteexercisable by Employee.

To the extent this Agreement conflicts with therterof the Stock Option Agreement(s), this Agreensepiersedes and replaces such terms.

(d) Living Expenses/Relocation Expenses. The Compgnees to continue payment of Employee's reoutiir the payment period (not to
exceed $4,000.00 CDN Dollars per month). The Compaall also pay the expenses of Employee's rétotat California, including movir
expenses (furniture and normal household goodsiwigpy residence), standard moving insurance, etiog of one car, and airfare (coach
airfare) for Employee and Employee's immediate famiembers (total moving expenses not to exceedd®07U.S. Dollars). Prior to
relocation, the Company will pay the airfare cqstzach airfare) of one (1) round trip from Montrgaanada to California, U.S.A. and back
for Employee and Employee's immediate family meralfeot to exceed $3,000 U.S. Dollars) as per tlezaéion program dated July 25,
2000.
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(e) Benefits. Employee's health insurance bengfiigdl cease at the end of the month of EmployeesigRation Date. Should Employee so
elect, the Company will maintain Employee's heatite coverage for Employee and his dependentsgitirenpayment period. As of the
Resignation Date, Employee's right to contributthioCompany's 401(k) Plan shall cease, as wélea€ompany's contributions. Employee
shall have the right to elect the manner in whichviested 401(k) benefits will be converted.

(f) Tax Equalization. The Company shall pay thedgualization amount for the Employee's 2000 artid Fiscal Year to the extent said
amounts are in fact due and, should the Employetintees to reside in Montreal, Canada.

(9) Miscellaneous. The Company shall reimburse Byg#'s costs associated with Employee's utilizadifddPMG for financial services
and/or the preparation of Employee's tax returngfecal Year 2000 and 2001.

3. Confidential Information. Employee shall con&no maintain the confidentiality of all confideaitand proprietary information of the
Company. Employee shall return all the Company @riypand confidential and proprietary informatiorhis possession to the Company on
the Effective Date, except for cellular phone anterbook as agreed by the Company.

4. Payment of Salary. With the exception of therpegts in Section 2 of this Agreement, Employee asltedges and represents Employee
has received all sums which are, were, or mayarfuture be owing by the Company by way of notiteemmination of employment,
compensatory indemnity in lieu of notice of termiaa of employment, severance pay, contractuakbtmecontractual damages, salary,
commissions, bonus, allowances, vacation pay, apglghy, benefits or any other claim of any natunatsoever pursuant to any law
(including specifically the Civil Code of Quebea Act respecting Labour Standards and the Quebac&tof Human Rights and
Freedoms), contract(including specifically the Kt&estriction Agreement and the Relocation Programljcy, plan, regulation, decree, or
practice whatsoever.

5. Release of Claims. Employee agrees that thgdarg consideration represents settlement in fudllicoutstanding obligations owed to
Employee by the Company and/or Netergy Canada. @&map| the Company and/or Netergy Canada, on behtilémselves, and their
respective heirs, family members, executors, officdirectors, employees, investors, shareholdersjnistrators, affiliates, divisions,
subsidiaries, predecessor and successor corpasatind assigns, hereby fully and forever releask ether and their respective heirs, family
members, executors, officers, directors, employieesstors, shareholders, administrators, affiiathvisions, subsidiaries, predecessor and
successor corporations, and assigns, from, an@ agiteto sue concerning, any claim, duty, obligatio cause of action relating to any
matters of any kind, whether presently known orngwn, suspected or unsuspected, that any of theyrpossess arising from any
omissions, acts or facts that have occurred up ammdi including the Effective Date of this Agreematluding, without limitation,

(a) any and all claims relating to or arising fre&mployee's employment relationship with the Compamy the termination of that
relationship;
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(b) any and all claims relating to or arising fr@mployee's assignment to Netergy Canada in accoedaith the Relocation Program;

(c) any and all claims relating to, or arising fraamployee's right to purchase, or actual purclodshares of stock of the Company,
including, without limitation, any claims for brdaof contract, fraud, or misrepresentation;

(d) any and all claims for wrongful discharge ofpgayment; termination in violation of public policgiscrimination; breach of contract, both
express and implied; breach of a covenant of gatt &nd fair dealing, both express and impliednussory estoppel; negligent or
intentional infliction of emotional distress; neggint or intentional misrepresentation; negligenntentional interference with contract or
prospective economic advantage; unfair businesgipes; defamation; libel; slander; negligencespeal injury; assault; battery; invasion of
privacy; false imprisonment; and conversion;

(e) any and all claims for violation of any federgthte or municipal statute, including, but notited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Age Disciiration in Employment Act of 1967, the AmericanshwDisabilities Act of 1990, the Fair
Labor Standards Act, the Employee Retirement Inc8eeurity Act of 1974, The Worker Adjustment andrRi@ing Notification Act, Older
Workers Benefit Protection Act; the California FRimployment and Housing Act, and Labor Code se@iih et seq. and section 970, et
seq.;

() any and all claims for violation of the federat any state constitution;
(9) any and all claims arising out of any otherdaamd regulations relating to employment or empleyndiscrimination; and

(h) any and all claims for notice of terminationemfiployment, compensatory indemnity in lieu of cetof termination of employment,
severance pay, contractual or extra-contractuabdas) salary, bonus, allowances, vacation payddypfpay or any other claim of any nature
whatsoever pursuant to any Canadian or Quebedtading specifically the Civil Code of Quebec, Awrt respecting Labour Standards
the Quebec Charter of Human Rights and Freedoms);act (including specifically the Stock RestractiAgreement and the Relocation
Program), policy, plan, regulation, decree, or pcaovhatsoever.

(i) any and all claims for attorneys' fees and sost

The Company, Netergy Canada and Employee agreththaglease set forth in this section shall beranthin in effect in all respects as a
complete general release as to the matters releBkmdrelease shall expressly exclude all:

(1) obligations incurred under this Agreement; &jdclaims, complaints, charges, duties, obligationcauses of action relating to
Employee's ownership of shares in the Companynarisnder federal or state securities laws.

6. Civil Code Section 1542. The Parties repredmatitthey are not aware of any claim by either ehifother than the claims that are released
by this Agreement. Employee, the Company and Ngt€anada acknowledge that they have been advisézhbicounsel and are familiar
with
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the provisions of California Civil Code Section P54r any similar state or federal statute, whichvjgles as follows:

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICHHE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN
HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHIH IF KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED
HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.

Employee, the Company and Netergy Canada, beingeaviaaid code section, agree to expressly waiyeights they may have thereunder,
as well as under any other statute or common lanciptes of similar effect.

7. No Pending or Future Lawsuits. Employee reprtsstirat he has no lawsuits, claims, or actions jpgnid his name, or on behalf of any
other person or entity, against the Company oradhgr person or entity referred to herein. Emplogise represents that he does not inter
bring any claims on his own behalf or on behalény other person or entity against the Companygrogher person or entity referred to
herein.

Company represents that it has no lawsuits, clasmactions pending in its name, or on behalf of atiher person or entity, against Employee
or any other person or entity referred to heremm@any also represents that it does not intending lny claims on its own behalf or on
behalf of any other person or entity against Emgéogr any other person or entity referred to herein

8. Confidentiality. The Parties hereto each agoagse their best efforts to maintain in confidetimeexistence of this Agreement, the cont
and terms of this Agreement, and the considerdtinthis Agreement (hereinafter collectively regarto as "Severance Information™). Each
Party hereto agrees to take every reasonable gi@cdo prevent disclosure of any Severance Infdionao third parties, and each agrees
there will be no publicity, directly or indirectlgoncerning any Severance Information. The Paltesto agree to take every precaution to
disclose Severance Information only to those engdeyofficers, directors, attorneys, accountameeigymental entities, and family members
who have a reasonable need to know of such Sewetafarmation.

9. Non-Competition/Non-Solicitation. Employee agréieat the terms of the Non-Competition Agreemierctuding its non-solicitation
provisions, shall remain in full force and effeot fwelve (12) months from the Resignation Datetfi@extent this Agreement conflicts with
the terms of the Non-Competition Agreement, thiselgnent supersedes and replaces such terms.

10. No Cooperation. Employee agrees he will notraaty manner that might damage the businesseo€timpany or Netergy Canada.
Employee agrees that he will not counsel or assigtattorneys or their clients in the presentatioprosecution of any disputes, differences,
grievances, claims, charges, or complaints by hingt party against the Company and/or Netergy Canad
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and/or any officer, director, employee, agent, @spntative, shareholder or attorney of the Compaayor Netergy Canada, unless under a
subpoena or other court order to do so.

11. Non-Disparagement. Each party agrees to refiram any defamation, libel or slander of the ottogrtortious interference with the
contracts and relationships of the other. All imgps by potential future employers of Employee Wwél directed to the Company 's Vice
President of Human Resources. Upon inquiry, the @2om shall only state the following: Employee & laosition and dates of employment.

12. No Admission of Liability. The Parties understaand acknowledge that this Agreement constimtssmpromise and settlement of
disputed claims. No action taken by the Partiestoeor either of them, either previously or in geation with this Agreement shall be
deemed or construed to be (a) an admission ofitie or falsity of any claims heretofore made grgh acknowledgment or admission by
either party of any fault or liability whatsoeverthe other party or to any third party.

13. Costs. The Parties shall each bear their owtscexpert fees, attorneys' fees and other feesrad in connection with this Agreement.

14. Authority. The Company and Netergy Canada ssres and warrants that the undersigned has theréytto act on behalf of the
Company and Netergy Canada and to bind the Compadi\Netergy Canada and all who may claim througihtihe terms and conditions of
this Agreement. Employee represents and warraatdithhas the capacity to act on his own behalfoanokehalf of all who might claim
through him to bind them to the terms and condgiohthis Agreement. Each Party warrants and repteshat there are no liens or claims of
lien or assignments in law or equity or otherwiferoagainst any of the claims or causes of aatideased herein.

15. No Representations. Each party representst thas had the opportunity to consult with an aiéy;, and has carefully read and
understands the scope and effect of the provigibitss Agreement. Neither party has relied upoy @presentations or statements made by
the other party hereto which are not specificadlyferth in this Agreement.

16. Severability. In the event that any provisiendof becomes or is declared by a court of compg@igrdiction to be illegal, unenforceable
or void, this Agreement shall continue in full ferand effect without said provision.

17. Entire Agreement. This Agreement representgiitiee agreement and understanding between thep@omNetergy Canada and
Employee concerning Employee's separation fronCiinapany and termination of his assignment to Ngt€@anada, and supersedes and
replaces any and all prior agreements and undelisgsconcerning Employee's relationship with tleen@any and/or Netergy Canada, his
compensation by the Company and assignment to dNe@anada.

18. No Oral Modification. This Agreement may only @amended in writing signed by Employee and thsigeat of the Company.
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19. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be goveimgthe laws of the State of California.
20. Effective Date. This Agreement is effectiveeaft has been signed by both Parties.

21. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executedunterparts, and each counterpart shall havsaime force and effect as an original
shall constitute an effective, binding agreementhenpart of each of the undersigned.

22. Voluntary Execution of Agreement. This Agreemmsrexecuted voluntarily and without any duressimidue influence on the part or bel
of the Parties hereto, with the full intent of deng all claims. The Parties acknowledge that:

(a) They have read this Agreement;

(b) They have been represented in the preparategutiation, and execution of this Agreement byalegunsel of their own choice or that
they have voluntarily declined to seek such coynsel

(c) They understand the terms and consequencegsdigreement and of the releases it contains;

(d) They are fully aware of the legal and bindiffiget of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executedAliieement on the respective dates set forth below.
Netergy Networks, Inc.

Dat ed: October 13, 2000 By /s/ Jean-Luc Cal onne

Jean- Luc Cal onne
Sr. Vice-President, Business Operations

Netergy Networks Canada Corporation
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Dated: COctober 13, 2000 By /s/ Jean-Luc Cal onne

Jean- Luc Cal onne
Sr. Vice-President, Business Operations

Dominique Pitteloud, an individual

Dat ed: October 13, 2000 By /s/ Dom nique Pittel oud

Domi ni que Pittel oud
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

Name

3044007 Nova Scotia Company Nova Scotia, Canada
3044869 Nova Scotia Company Nova Scotia, Canada
Centile, Inc. Delaware, USA
Netergy Microelectronics, Inc. California, USA
Netergy Microelectronics, Ltd. United Kingdom
Netergy Networks Canada Company Nova Scotia, Canada
Netergy Networks Canada Holding Company Delaware, USA
Odisei S.A. France

UForce Holding Company Delaware, USA
Visit, Inc. California, USA




EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N83-&928, 333-32930, 333-32932,
333-49414 and 333-80379) and Form S-8 (Nos. 33330833-50519, 333-41594, and 333-49410) of Netdigiyvorks, Inc. of our report
dated May 4, 2001 relating to the consolidatedrioia statements and financial statement schediiizh appears in this Form 10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California

May 24, 2001

End of Filing
Pewerad By EDGAR
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